
 

 

Notice of meeting and agenda 

 

 

Development Management Sub-Committee 

 

1.00 pm Wednesday, 19th January, 2022 

 

Virtual Meeting - via Microsoft Teams 

 

This is a public meeting and members of the public are welcome to watch the webcast 

via the Council’s website. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contacts 

Email:  jamie.macrae@edinburgh.gov.uk / blair.ritchie@edinburgh.gov.uk 

Tel:  0131 553 8242 / 0131 529 4085 

 

 

 

 

Public Document Pack



 

Development Management Sub-Committee - 19 

January 2022 

Page 2 of 7 

 

 

 

1. Order of business 

1.1        Including any notices of motion, hearing requests from ward 

councillors and any other items of business submitted as urgent 

for consideration at the meeting. 

1.2        Any member of the Council can request a Hearing if an item raises 

a local issue affecting their ward. Members of the Sub-Committee 

can request a presentation on any items in part 4 or 5 of the 

agenda. Members must advise Committee Services of their 

request by no later than 1.00pm on Monday 17th January 2022 

(see contact details in the further information section at the end of 

this agenda).  

1.3        If a member of the Council has submitted a written request for a 

hearing to be held on an application that raises a local issue 

affecting their ward, the Development Management Sub-

Committee will decide after receiving a presentation on the 

application whether or not to hold a hearing based on the 

information submitted. All requests for hearings will be notified to 

members prior to the meeting. 

 

2. Declaration of interests 

2.1   Members should declare any financial and non-financial interests 

they have in the items of business for consideration, identifying 

the relevant agenda item and the nature of their interest.  

 

 

3. Minutes 

3.1   None. 

 

 

4. General Applications, Miscellaneous Business and Pre-Application 

Reports 

The key issues for the Pre-Application reports and the 

recommendation by the Chief Planning Officer or other Chief 

 



 

Development Management Sub-Committee - 19 

January 2022 

Page 3 of 7 

 

 

Officers detailed in their reports on applications will be approved 

without debate unless the Clerk to the meeting indicates otherwise 

during “Order of Business” at item 1.  

4.1   19 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh - Permission is sought for outdoor 

seating area comprising of timber platform and fence with 

parasols - application no. 21/05388/FUL - Report by the Chief 

Planning Officer 

It is recommended that this application be REFUSED. 

9 - 24 

4.2   34 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh - Planning permission is sought 

for outdoor seating area comprising of timber platform and fence 

with clear polycarbonate roof for shelter - application no. 

21/06159/FUL - Report by the Chief Planning Officer 

It is recommended that this application be REFUSED. 

25 - 40 

4.3   45 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh - Planning permission is sought 

for outdoor seating area comprising of timber platform and fence 

with clear polycarbonate roof for shelter - application no. 

21/06160/FUL - Report by the Chief Planning Officer 

It is recommended that this application be REFUSED. 

41 - 56 

4.4   61 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh - Planning permission is sought 

for outdoor seating area comprising of timber platform and fence 

with parasols - application no. 21/05625/FUL - Report by the 

Chief Planning Officer 

It is recommended that this application be REFUSED. 

57 - 72 

4.5   63 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh - Planning permission is sought 

for outdoor seating area comprising of timber platform and fence 

with parasols - application no. 21/05216/FUL - Report by the 

Chief Planning Officer 

It is recommended that this application be REFUSED. 

73 - 88 

4.6   73 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh - Planning permission is sought 

for outdoor seating area comprising of timber platform and 

fencing with timber rain screen covers over - application 

89 - 104 



 

Development Management Sub-Committee - 19 

January 2022 

Page 4 of 7 

 

 

no.21/05905/FUL - Report by the Chief Planning Officer 

It is recommended that this application be REFUSED. 

4.7   119 High Street, Edinburgh - Outdoor seating area - application 

no. 21/06213/FUL - Report by the Chief Planning Officer 

It is recommended that this application be REFUSED. 

105 - 120 

4.8   148 High Street, Edinburgh - Planning permission is sought for 

outdoor seating area comprising of timber platform and fence with 

parasols - application no. 21/05674/FUL - Report by the Chief 

Planning Officer 

It is recommended that this application be REFUSED. 

121 - 134 

4.9   231 High Street, Edinburgh - Planning permission is sought for 

outdoor seating area comprising of timber platform and fence with 

parasols - application no. 21/05691/FUL - Report by the Chief 

Planning Officer 

It is recommended that this application be REFUSED. 

135 - 150 

4.10   8 - 10 North Bridge Arcade, Edinburgh - To erect outdoor seating 

area - application no. 21/05721/FUL - Report by the Chief 

Planning Officer 

It is recommended that this application be REFUSED. 

151 - 166 

4.11   36 - 38 Victoria Street, Edinburgh - Erection of decking area on 

roadway in front of applicant premises for use as an external 

dining area (subject to Roads Department Permits and Licensing) 

- application no. 21/05431/FUL - Report by the Chief Planning 

Officer 

It is recommended that this application be REFUSED. 

 

167 - 182 

5. Returning Applications 

These applications have been discussed previously by the Sub- 

Committee.  A decision to grant, refuse or continue consideration 

will be made following a presentation by the Chief Planning Officer 

 



 

Development Management Sub-Committee - 19 

January 2022 

Page 5 of 7 

 

 

and discussion on each item. 

5.1   None.   

 

 

6. Applications for Hearing 

The Chief Planning Officer has identified the following applications 

as meeting the criteria for Hearings. The protocol note by the Head 

of Strategy and Insight sets out the procedure for the hearing. 

 

6.1   None. 

 

 

7. Applications for Detailed Presentation 

The Chief Planning Officer has identified the following applications 

for detailed presentation to the Sub-Committee.  A decision to 

grant, refuse or continue consideration will be made following the 

presentation and discussion on each item. 

 

7.1   None. 

 

 

8. Returning Applications Following Site Visit 

These applications have been discussed at a previous meeting of 

the Sub-Committee and were continued to allow members to visit 

the sites. A decision to grant, refuse or continue consideration will 

be made following a presentation by the Chief Planning Officer 

and discussion on each item. 

 

8.1   None. 

 

 

Nick Smith  

Service Director, Legal and Assurance 

 



 

Development Management Sub-Committee - 19 

January 2022 

Page 6 of 7 

 

 

Committee Members 

Councillor Neil Gardiner (Convener), Councillor Maureen Child (Vice-Convener), 

Councillor Chas Booth, Councillor Lezley Marion Cameron, Councillor Denis Dixon, 

Councillor George Gordon, Councillor Max Mitchell, Councillor Joanna Mowat, 

Councillor Hal Osler, Councillor Cameron Rose and Councillor Alex Staniforth 

 

Information about the Development Management Sub-Committee 

The Development Management Sub-Committee consists of 11 Councillors and is 

appointed by the City of Edinburgh Council.  The meeting will be held by Teams and 

will be webcast live for viewing by members of the public. 

 

Further information 

If you have any questions about the agenda or meeting arrangements, please contact 

Jamie Macrae, Committee Services, City of Edinburgh Council, Business Centre 2.1, 

Waverley Court, 4 East Market Street, Edinburgh EH8 8BG,  Tel 0131 553 8242 / 0131 

529 4085, email jamie.macrae@edinburgh.gov.uk / blair.ritchie@edinburgh.gov.uk. 

The agenda, minutes and public reports for this meeting and all the main Council 

committees can be viewed online by going to https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/.  

 

Webcasting of Council meetings 

Please note this meeting may be filmed for live and subsequent broadcast via the 

Council’s internet site – at the start of the meeting the Convener will confirm if all or part 

of the meeting is being filmed. 

The Council is a Data Controller under current Data Protection legislation.  We 

broadcast Council meetings to fulfil our public task obligation to enable members of the 

public to observe the democratic process.  Data collected during this webcast will be 

retained in accordance with the Council’s published policy including, but not limited to, 

for the purpose of keeping historical records and making those records available via the 

Council’s internet site. 

Any information presented by individuals to the Council at a meeting, in a deputation or 

otherwise, in addition to forming part of a webcast that will be held as a historical 

record, will also be held and used by the Council in connection with the relevant matter 

until that matter is decided or otherwise resolved (including any potential appeals and 

https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/


 

Development Management Sub-Committee - 19 

January 2022 

Page 7 of 7 

 

 

other connected processes).  Thereafter, that information will continue to be held as 

part of the historical record in accordance with the paragraphs above. 

If you have any queries regarding this, and, in particular, if you believe that use and/or 

storage of any particular information would cause, or be likely to cause, substantial 

damage or distress to any individual, please contact Committee Services 

(committee.services@edinburgh.gov.uk). 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 1 of 15      21/05388/FUL 

Development Management Sub Committee 

Wednesday 19 January 2022 

 

 

 

Application for Planning Permission 21/05388/FUL 
at 19 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BP. 
Permission is sought for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols. 

 

 

Summary 

 
As a result of its location, form and design, the proposal does not comply with Sections 
59 and 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997.  
 
The proposal is not acceptable in principle and would be harmful to the Edinburgh 
World Heritage Site and the Old Town Conservation Area. The proposal is likely to lead 
to an unacceptable impact on residential amenity and is not acceptable in terms of its 
impact on road safety. It fails to comply with the Local Development Plan, associated 
guidance and the principles of sustainability as set out by Scottish Planning Policy. 
There are no material considerations that outweigh this conclusion and refusal is 
recommended. 
 
Notwithstanding the reason for decision as set out above, no planning enforcement 
action will be taken until a decision of Planning Committee on 23 February 2022 on a 
proposed approach to planning enforcement for temporary structures for hospitality 
 
 

 

 Item number  

 Report number 

 

 

 

 

 

Wards B11 - City Centre 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4.1



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 2 of 15      21/05388/FUL 

Links 

Policies and guidance for 

this application 

LDPP, LEN01, LEN03, LEN06, LDEL02, LDES04, 

LDES05, LHOU07, NSG, NSLBCA, OTH, CRPOLD,  

Page 10

file:///C:/uniform/temp/uf04148.rtf%23Policies
file:///C:/uniform/temp/uf04148.rtf%23Policies


 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022   Page 3 of 15 21/05388/FUL 

Report 

Application for Planning Permission 21/05388/FUL 
at 19 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BP. 
Permission is sought for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols. 
 

Recommendations  

1.1 It is recommended that this application be Refused for the reasons below. 

Background 

2.1 Site description 
 
The site is an area of adopted road located adjacent to Ecco Vino at 19 Cockburn 
Street (B listed; reference: LB28574; listing date: 14/12/1970).  
 
Cockburn Street is an important Victorian Street within the Old Town. It connects 
Waverley Station and Princes Street Gardens to the Royal Mile and constitutes a 
strategic link between the Old Town and the New Town. It is both a residential and 
commercial street, and all buildings on the street are statutorily listed, being a mix of 
both 'A' and 'B' listed buildings. It has a unique townscape; tall narrow buildings frame 
the street and give it a strong sense of enclosure as well as continuous active frontage. 
It is also a serpentine street characterised by its sinuous path sloping up towards the 
Royal Mile. Whilst the response of urban form to topography is a distinctive feature of 
the Old Town of Edinburgh in general, it is well exemplified in Cockburn Street.  
 
The site is located within the Edinburgh World Heritage Site. 
This application site is located within the Old Town Conservation Area. 
 
2.2 Site History 
 
Other seating applications on High Street 
 
25 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 148 High Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1QS 
(application reference 21/05674/FUL). 
 
26 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 231 High Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1PE 
(application reference 21/05691/FUL). 
 
24 November 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area at 119 High 
Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1SG (application reference 21/06213/FUL) 
 
 
 

Page 11



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 4 of 15 21/05388/FUL 

Other seating applications on Cockburn Street 
 
22 November 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with clear polycarbonate at 34 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, 
EH1 1PB (application reference 21/06159/FUL). 
 
22 November 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with clear polycarbonate at 45 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, 
EH1 1BS (application reference 21/06060/FUL). 
 
22 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 61 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BS 
(application reference 21/05625/FUL). 
 
5 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 63 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BS 
(application reference 21/05216/FUL). 
 
27 October 2021- Planning application made to erect outdoor seating area at 8 - 10 
North Bridge Arcade, Edinburgh, EH1 1QL (application reference 21/05721/FUL) 
 
5 November 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fencing with timber rain-screen covers over at 73 Cockburn Street, 
Edinburgh, EH1 1BU (application reference 21/05905/FUL). 
 
Other seating applications on Victoria Street 
 
15 October 2021 - Planning application made for erection of decking area on roadway 
in front of applicant premises for use as an external dining area (subject to Roads 
Department Permits and Licensing) at 36 - 38 Victoria Street, Edinburgh, EH1 2JW 
(application reference 21/05431/FUL). 

Main report 

3.1 Description of the Proposal 
 
Planning permission is sought for the permanent installation of a decked outdoor 
seating area. The seating area would be eight metres in length and two metres wide, 
measuring 90cm in height. The drawings show decking would be finished in timber with 
parasols for coverage. The outdoor seating area is to be used by customers of Ecco 
Vino. 
 
Notwithstanding the above, the structure has been built. It steps down the street and 
instead of parasols has a solid flat roof supported by timber posts. The sides are timber 
decking boards.  
 
3.2 Determining Issues 
 
Section 25 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 states - Where, in 
making any determination under the planning Acts, regard is to be had to the 
development plan, the determination shall be made in accordance with the plan unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise. 

Page 12



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 5 of 15 21/05388/FUL 

 
Section 59 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997 states that in considering whether to grant planning permission for development 
which affects a listed building or its setting, a planning authority shall have special 
regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of 
special architectural or historic interest which it possesses. 
 
Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997 states - special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or 
enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area.  
 
Do the proposals comply with the development plan? 
 
If the proposals do comply with the development plan, are there any compelling 
reasons for not approving them? 
 
If the proposals do not comply with the development plan, are there any compelling 
reasons for approving them? 
 
3.3 Assessment  
To address these determining issues, the Committee needs to consider whether: 
 

a) the proposal will have an acceptable impact on built heritage; 
b) the proposal is acceptable in principle; 
c) the proposal will have any adverse impact on residential amenity; 
d) the proposal will have an adverse impact on road safety; 
e) other material considerations and 
f) public comments have been addressed. 

 
a) Built Heritage 
 
Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997 (the LBCA Act) states that special attention shall be paid to the desirability of 
preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area. If there 
is harm to a Conservation Area as a result of development, there is a strong 
presumption against granting planning permission. This presumption can only be 
overcome if there are advantages to the scheme a its location which outweigh the harm 
and justify granting planning permission. If such advantages are found, is necessary to 
consider then whether these can only be delivered at the development's particular 
location.  
 
The Old Town Conservation Area Character Appraisal states that:  
 
The provision of consistent and high quality natural materials, street furniture and 
lighting in the public realm is a critical factor in uniting and complementing the built 
heritage. Natural stone paving slabs and stone setts have historically been used for 
street surfaces for many centuries. The historic paving displays a tradition of high 
quality workmanship, attention to detail and the use of robust and durable materials. 
 
 
 

Page 13



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 6 of 15 21/05388/FUL 

It notes that: 
 
Cockburn Street has thirty Baronial blocks built between 1859 and 1864 along a 
serpentine curve to provide access to Waverley Station from the Old Town and clear 
the densely packed backlands of existing closes. The Edinburgh Railway Station Act, of 
1853, which authorised its construction, specified the need to preserve the architectural 
style and antique character of the locality to secure harmony between the new 
buildings and those of the Old Town. The variegated Baronial architecture 
acknowledged the steep gradient of the street, recreated some of the intimacy of an old 
Edinburgh close and provided a new architectural gateway to the Old Town. 
 
The proposal is for a deck that is surrounded by a timber fence, with parasol structures 
to provide a covering. As noted above, instead of parasols, the structure that has been 
built has a flat roof supported timber posts. It has a utilitarian character that does not 
demonstrate a high standard of design, nor does it utilise materials appropriate to the 
historic environment. Seen within the this uniquely designed street, the proposed 
structure detracts from the visual quality of the street as a whole. It therefore harms the 
character and appearance of the Conservation Area. The presumption against granting 
planning permission is therefore engaged. 
 
The primary advantage to this installation is that it provides additional space for the 
business to enable social distancing (as a result of the coronavirus pandemic). Its use 
will help support the business and bring some economic benefit.  However, only limited 
weight can be attached to these benefits as this application is for a permanent 
installation. The benefits do not outweigh the harm identified above.  
 
The proposal therefore does not comply with Section 64 of the LBCA Act.   
 
As a result of this, the proposal does not comply with Edinburgh Local Development 
Plan (LDP) Policy Env 6 Conservation Areas - Development or LDP Policy Des 4 
Development Design - Impact on Setting. 
 
Section 59 of the LBCA Act states that in considering whether to grant planning 
permission for development which affects a listed building or its setting, a planning 
authority or the Secretary of State, as the case may be, shall have special regard to the 
desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of special 
architectural or historic interest which it possesses. The impact on the setting of 
surrounding listed buildings needs to be considered.  
 
The setting of these buildings includes the street itself. As a result of the impacts 
described above, there would be harm to the setting of the listed buildings that are in 
close proximity to the structure. For similar reasons as described above, the proposal 
breaches the requirements of section 59 of the LBCA Act. Similarly, the advantages 
described above, do not outweigh the harm. The proposal is therefore not acceptable in 
relation to LDP Policy Env 3 - Listed Buildings Setting.   
 
As well as the conservation area, and listed buildings, the proposal's impact on the Old 
and New Towns of Edinburgh World Heritage Site also needs to be considered.  
 
The proposed development would harm the qualities which justified the inscription of 
the World Heritage Site and would have a detrimental impact on the site's setting.  

Page 14



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 7 of 15 21/05388/FUL 

The use of low quality materials, not in keeping with the area, and poor design would 
negatively impact the outstanding universal value of the World Heritage Site. The 
proposal would essentially restrict public space and in doing so upset the balance and 
uniqueness of the historic streets. 
 
In summary, the proposal is not acceptable in relation to Sections 59 and 64 of the 
LBCA Act as a result of the harm to the setting of listed buildings and to the character 
and appearance of the conservation area. As a result, it does not comply with LDP 
Policies, Env 3, Env 6 and Des 4. It would harm the World Heritage Site contrary to 
LDP Policy Env 1. 
 
b) Principle 
 
The site is located within the city centre where LDP Policy Del 2 applies. The proposal 
would be detrimental to the character and attractiveness of the city centre by virtue of 
the structure's poor quality design and use of unsympathetic materials. Furthermore, 
the siting of the structure on a public road would impact on the vitality and accessibility 
of the city centre by cluttering up the street and creating difficulties for access. 
 
As a result of its impact on the character and attractiveness of the street, the proposal 
fails to comply with LDP Policy Del 2 City Centre. 
 
c) Residential Amenity 
 
The proposal is likely to result in an adverse impact on local residential amenity. 
Although it is a busy area with a vibrant night-time economy, the permanent addition of 
a decked outdoor seating area would alter the character of the area though creating a 
formalised arrangement that is conducive to the congregation of groups.   
 
Environmental Protection has objected to the proposal and consider that it could lead to 
a noise nuisance that would be detrimental to the living standards of local residents. 
Discussion between Environmental Protection and Planning explored the potential for a 
condition to control the use. It is not however appropriate to restrict the hours of 
operation of one part of a premises with the remainder having different hours of 
operation. Therefore, a condition is not appropriate.  
 
The proposal is likely to be detrimental to residential amenity and fails to comply with 
LDP Policies Des 5 Development Design - Amenity and Hou 7 Inappropriate Uses in 
Residential Areas. 
 
d) Road Safety 
 
Following consultation, Transportation has recommended refusal as the proposal would 
be detrimental to road safety. The permanent occupancy of a section of adopted road 
would not be supported. Furthermore, the structure would result in the loss of parking 
and loading bays to the detriment of disabled drivers and passengers as well as 
residents, visitors and business operations. The presence of a structure on the road 
would have an adverse impact on various road operations (road maintenance, gully 
cleaning, gritting, street cleansing, events etc) and obligations (utilities access etc).  
 
The proposal would be detrimental to road safety.  

Page 15



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 8 of 15 21/05388/FUL 

 
e) Other Material Considerations 
 
Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) presumption in favour of sustainable development is a 
significant material consideration due to the development plan being over five years 
old. The planning system should support economically, environmentally and socially 
sustainable places by enabling development that balances the costs and benefits of a 
proposal over the longer term. The aim is to achieve the right development in the right 
place; it is not to allow development at any cost. SPP sets out thirteen principles of 
sustainable development. The proposal is assessed against the relevant principles 
below. 
 

− giving due weight to net economic benefit 
Although it is acknowledged that there may be economic benefit to the outdoor seating 
area, this is outweighed by the issues set out above relating to the historic 
environment, residential amenity and road safety.  
 

− supporting good design and the six qualities of successful places 
As set out above the structure is of a poor-quality design and out of keeping with the 
character of the area. The proposal does not comply with the six qualities of successful 
places as it would impact on the ability to move around, would not be welcoming and 
due to the potential for nuisance would not be safe and welcoming. 
 

− improving health and well-being by offering opportunities for social interaction 
and physical activity, including sport and recreation 

The proposals could offer opportunities for social interaction, particularly where 
Coronavirus is concerned (this is discussed further below), however this does not 
outweigh the impact on the historic environment, residential amenity and road safety. 
 

− protecting, enhancing and promoting access to cultural heritage, including the 
historic environment 

The proposal would have a negative impact on the outstanding universal value of the 
Edinburgh World Heritage Site as well as on the character and appearance of the Old 
Town Conservation Area. 
 

− avoiding over-development, protecting the amenity of new and existing 
development and considering the implications of development for water, air and 
soil quality 

The proposal is likely to result in an adverse impact on the amenity of local residents. 
 
The proposal does not comply with the relevant principles of sustainable development 
as set out in Scottish Planning Policy. 
 
Coronavirus Pandemic 
 
Although there is an understanding that a flexible approach is required given the fast-
changing nature of the global pandemic and that it continues to impact on hospitality 
businesses, the application seeks permission for the permanent siting of the structure. 
It should be noted that the recent letter from the Scottish Government Chief Planner 
has stated that a relaxed approach to planning enforcement should remain in place 
until September 2022.  

Page 16



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 9 of 15 21/05388/FUL 

A report will be brought to Planning Committee on 23 February 2022 which will set out 
a proposed approach to planning enforcement for temporary structures for hospitality.  
This will enable Planning Committee to decide on the extent of relaxation to planning 
enforcement for the months ahead.  
 
Given the current restrictions on social distancing etc remain in place, if the application 
is refused, the Chief Planning Officer would not instigate any planning enforcement 
action until further consideration has been given to enforcement by Planning 
Committee on 23 February 2022.   
 
Consideration has been given to whether a temporary permission could be granted by 
means of a planning condition to restrict the duration of the operation. However, as the 
length of coronavirus restrictions is unknown, the approach to enforcement to 23 
February with subsequent Planning Committee oversight provides a better, more 
flexible framework for continued use of this installation.  
 
f) Public Comments 
 
Thirteen letters of representation have been received. Of these, eleven object to the 
proposal and two make neutral comments. 
 
Material Considerations 

− Amenity: this has been addressed in section 3.3(c); 

− Design: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a) and (b); 

− Privatisation of public space: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a); 

− Impact on Conservation Area: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a); 

− Impact on World Heritage Site: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a); 

− Impact on Listed Buildings: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a); 

− Road safety: this has been addressed in section 3.3(d). 
 
Conclusion 
 
As a result of its location, form and design, the proposal does not comply with Sections 
59 and 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997.  
 
The proposal is not acceptable in principle and would be harmful to the Edinburgh 
World Heritage Site and the Old Town Conservation Area. The proposal is likely to lead 
to an unacceptable impact on residential amenity and is not acceptable in terms of its 
impact on road safety. It fails to comply with the Local Development Plan, associated 
guidance and the principles of sustainability as set out by Scottish Planning Policy. 
There are no material considerations that outweigh this conclusion and refusal is 
recommended. 
 
Notwithstanding the reason for decision as set out above, no planning enforcement 
action will be taken until a decision of Planning Committee on 23 February 2022 on a 
proposed approach to planning enforcement for temporary structures for hospitality 
 
 
 
 

Page 17



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 10 of 15 21/05388/FUL 

It is recommended that this application be Refused for the reasons below. 
 
3.4 Conditions/reasons/informatives 
 
Reasons:- 
 
1. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Env 1 World Heritage Sites as 

the proposed development would harm the qualities which justified the 
inscription of the Old and New Towns of Edinburgh as a World Heritage Site and 
would have a detrimental impact on the site's setting. 

 
2. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Env 6 Conservation Areas - 

Development as the proposal would not preserve or enhance the special 
character or appearance of the Old Town Conservation Area. 

 
3. The proposal fails to comply with the principles of sustainability as set out by 

Scottish Planning Policy. 
 
4. The proposal's adverse impact on setting of listed buildings and the conservation 

area means it does not comply with the requirements of Sections 59 and 64 of 
the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 1997. 

 
5. The proposal will have a negative impact on road safety as it would result in the 

permanent occupancy of a section of adopted road. 
 
6. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Des 5 Development Design - 

Amenity as it is likely to adversely impact on the amenity of neighbouring 
properties. 

 
7. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Hou 7 Inappropriate Uses in 

Residential Areas as it is likely to have a materially detrimental 
effect on the living conditions of nearby residents. 

 
 

Financial impact  

4.1 The financial impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
In general, in respect of on carriageway installations, any loss of parking income may 
be mitigated by income from tables and chair licences. 

Risk, Policy, compliance and governance impact 

5.1 Provided planning applications are determined in accordance with statutory 
legislation, the level of risk is low. 

Equalities impact  

6.1 The equalities impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
The application has been assessed and has no impact in terms of equalities or human 
rights. 

Page 18



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 11 of 15 21/05388/FUL 

Sustainability impact  

7.1 The sustainability impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
This application is not subject to the sustainability requirements of the Edinburgh 
Design Guidance. 

Consultation and engagement  

8.1 Pre-Application Process 
 
There is no pre-application process history. 
 
8.2 Publicity summary of representations and Community Council comments 
 
Following statutory neighbour notification and advertisement in the Edinburgh Evening 
News, thirteen letters of representation have been received. 

Background reading/external references 

• To view details of the application go to  

• Planning and Building Standards online services 

• Planning guidelines  

• Conservation Area Character Appraisals  

• Edinburgh Local Development Plan  

• Scottish Planning Policy 

Page 19

https://citydev-portal.edinburgh.gov.uk/idoxpa-web/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/planningguidelines
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/characterappraisals
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/localdevelopmentplan
http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Topics/Built-Environment/planning/Policy


 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 12 of 15 21/05388/FUL 

 

 

 
David Givan 
Chief Planning Officer 
PLACE 
The City of Edinburgh Council 
 
 
Contact: Murray Couston, Planning Officer 

E-mail:murray.couston@edinburgh.gov.uk  

Links - Policies 

 
Relevant Policies: 
 
Relevant policies of the Local Development Plan. 
 
LDP Policy Env 1 (World Heritage Site) protects the quality of the World Heritage Site 
and its setting. 
 
LDP Policy Env 3 (Listed Buildings - Setting) identifies the circumstances in which 
development within the curtilage or affecting the setting of a listed building will be 
permitted. 
 
LDP Policy Env 6 (Conservation Areas - Development) sets out criteria for assessing 
development in a conservation area. 
 

 Statutory Development 

Plan Provision 

 

The site is within the City Centre, Old Town 

Conservation Area and Edinburgh World Heritage Site 

as defined by the adopted Local Development Plan. 

 

 

 Date registered 14 October 2021 

 

 

 

 

Drawing numbers/Scheme 01-02, 

 

 

 

Scheme 1 
 

 

Page 20



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 13 of 15 21/05388/FUL 

LDP Policy Del 2 (City Centre) sets criteria for assessing development in the city 
centre. 
 
LDP Policy Des 4 (Development Design - Impact on Setting) sets criteria for assessing 
the impact of development design against its setting. 
 
LDP Policy Des 5 (Development Design - Amenity) sets criteria for assessing amenity.  
 
LDP Policy Hou 7 (Inappropriate Uses in Residential Areas) establishes a presumption 
against development which would have an unacceptable effect on the living conditions 
of nearby residents. 
 
Relevant Non-Statutory Guidelines 
 
Non-statutory guidelines  'LISTED BUILDINGS AND CONSERVATION AREAS' 
provides guidance on repairing, altering or extending listed buildings and unlisted 
buildings in conservation areas. 
 
Other Relevant policy guidance 
 
The Old Town Conservation Area Character Appraisal emphasises the survival of 
the original medieval street pattern; the wealth of important landmark buildings; the 
survival of an outstanding collection of archaeological remains, medieval buildings, and 
17th-century town houses; the consistent and harmonious height and mass of 
buildings; the importance of stone as a construction material for both buildings and the 
public realm; the vitality and variety of different uses; and the continuing presence of a 
residential community 
 

Page 21



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 14 of 15 21/05388/FUL 

Appendix 1 
 
Application for Planning Permission 21/05388/FUL 
at 19 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BP. 
Permission is sought for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols. 
 
Consultations 

 
 
Environmental Protection 
 
Environmental Protection cannot support this application and recommend refusal. 
 
The application proposes the erection of an outdoor customer seating area for use by 
patrons of an associated restaurant premises at 19 Cockburn Street. The customer 
area is to be situated on the road-side adjacent to the footpath. The associated 
premises fronts onto Cockburn Street adjacent to several other commercial and retail 
uses. Some of the existing commercial units on Cockburn Street already have existing 
outdoor seating areas for customers. 
 
Environmental Protection considered that this application could be supported with a 
robust condition restricting hours of operation of the proposed seating area. However, 
discussions with Planning have confirmed that the recommended condition regarding 
time restriction is unlikely to pass the 6 tests required of any planning condition and is 
therefore not a condition that can be applied to the outdoor seating area.  
 
With this in mind, and the fact that the area could therefore be utilised within the more 
noise sensitive times of the night, Environmental Protection has concerns that the use 
of the external dining area may generate noise, impact upon residential amenity and 
cause noise complaints to be received by the Council. 
 
Therefore, as there appears to be no other avenue available to control the hours of use 
of the outdoor seating area, Environmental Protection is unable to support the 
application and recommends it be refused. 
 
Transportation 
 
The application should be refused. 
 
Reasons: 
1. The proposals seek to occupy a section of the carriageway that forms part of the 
adopted road; 
2. The placement of a structure on a road or footway is considered detrimental to road 
safety; 
3. The structure results in the loss of parking and/or loading bays to the detriment of 
disabled drivers/passengers, residents, visitors and business operations and will likely 
lead to indiscriminate parking nearby; 

Page 22



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 15 of 15 21/05388/FUL 

4. The presence of a structure on a road or footway has an adverse impact on various 
road operations (road maintenance, gully cleaning, gritting, street cleansing, events 
etc) and obligations (utilities access etc); 
5. The operation of the facility may result in restrictions on the adjacent footway which 
is contrary to the Councils Equal Pavements Pledge. 
 
Notes - 
1. The Council as Roads Authority has confirmed that written approval, as required 
under Section 59 of the Roads (Scotland) Act 1984, will not be given for these 
structures. 
 
 
 
 

Location Plan 

 
 

© Crown Copyright and database right 2014. All rights reserved. Ordnance Survey License number 100023420 

END 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 1 of 15      21/06159/FUL 

Development Management Sub Committee 

Wednesday 19 January 2022 

 

 

 

Application for Planning Permission 21/06159/FUL 
at 34 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1PB. 
Planning permission is sought for outdoor seating area 
comprising of timber platform and fence with clear 
polycarbonate roof for shelter. 

 

 

Summary 

 
As a result of its location, form and design, the proposal does not comply with Sections 
59 and 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997.  
 
The proposal is not acceptable in principle and would be harmful to the Edinburgh 
World Heritage Site and the Old Town Conservation Area. The proposal is likely to lead 
to an unacceptable impact on residential amenity and is not acceptable in terms of its 
impact on road safety. It fails to comply with the Local Development Plan, associated 
guidance and the principles of sustainability as set out by Scottish Planning Policy. 
There are no material considerations that outweigh this conclusion and refusal is 
recommended. 
 
Notwithstanding the reason for decision as set out above, no planning enforcement 
action will be taken until a decision of Planning Committee on 23 February 2022 on a 
proposed approach to planning enforcement for temporary structures for hospitality. 
 
 

 

 Item number  

 Report number 

 

 

 

 

 

Wards B11 - City Centre 

Page 25

Agenda Item 4.2



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 2 of 15      21/06159/FUL 

Links 

Policies and guidance for 

this application 

LDPP, LEN01, LEN03, LEN06, LDEL02, LDES04, 

LDES05, LHOU07, NSG, NSLBCA, OTH, CRPOLD,  

Page 26

file:///C:/uniform/temp/uf04148.rtf%23Policies
file:///C:/uniform/temp/uf04148.rtf%23Policies


 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022   Page 3 of 15 21/06159/FUL 

Report 

Application for Planning Permission 21/06159/FUL 
at 34 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1PB. 
Planning permission is sought for outdoor seating area 
comprising of timber platform and fence with clear 
polycarbonate roof for shelter. 
 

Recommendations  

1.1 It is recommended that this application be Refused for the reasons below. 

Background 

2.1 Site description 
 
The site is an area of adopted road located adjacent to Coffee 'N' More at 34 Cockburn 
Street (B listed; reference: LB49064; listing date: 19/12/2002).  
 
Cockburn Street is an important Victorian Street within the Old Town. It connects 
Waverley Station and Princes Street Gardens to the Royal Mile and constitutes a 
strategic link between the Old Town and the New Town. It is both a residential and 
commercial street, and all buildings on the street are statutorily listed, being a mix of 
both 'A' and 'B' listed buildings. It has a unique townscape; tall narrow buildings frame 
the street and give it a strong sense of enclosure as well as continuous active frontage. 
It is also a serpentine street characterised by its sinuous path sloping up towards the 
Royal Mile. Whilst the response of urban form to topography is a distinctive feature of 
the Old Town of Edinburgh in general, it is well exemplified in Cockburn Street.  
 
The site is located within the Edinburgh World Heritage Site. 
This application site is located within the Old Town Conservation Area. 
 
2.2 Site History 
 
Other seating applications on High Street 
 
25 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 148 High Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1QS 
(application reference 21/05674/FUL). 
 
26 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 231 High Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1PE 
(application reference 21/05691/FUL). 
 
24 November 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area at 119 High 
Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1SG (application reference 21/06213/FUL) 
 

Page 27



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 4 of 15 21/06159/FUL 

Other seating applications on Cockburn Street 
 
14 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 19 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BP 
(application reference 21/05388/FUL). 
 
22 November 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with clear polycarbonate at 45 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, 
EH1 1BS (application reference 21/06060/FUL). 
 
22 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 61 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BS 
(application reference 21/05625/FUL). 
 
5 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 63 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BS 
(application reference 21/05216/FUL). 
 
27 October 2021 - Planning application made to erect outdoor seating area at 8 - 10 
North Bridge Arcade, Edinburgh, EH1 1QL (application reference 21/05721/FUL) 
 
5 November 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fencing with timber rain-screen covers over at 73 Cockburn Street, 
Edinburgh, EH1 1BU (application reference 21/05905/FUL). 
 
Other seating applications on Victoria Street 
 
15 October 2021 - Planning application made for erection of decking area on roadway 
in front of applicant premises for use as an external dining area (subject to Roads 
Department Permits and Licensing) at 36 - 38 Victoria Street, Edinburgh, EH1 2JW 
(application reference 21/05431/FUL). 

Main report 

3.1 Description of the Proposal 
 
Planning permission is sought for the permanent installation of a decked outdoor 
seating area with a polycarbonate roof. The seating area would be seven metres in 
length and two metres wide, measuring approximately two metres in height. The 
decking would be finished in timber. The outdoor seating area is to be used by 
customers of Coffee 'N' More. 
 
This structure has not been built. 
 
3.2 Determining Issues 
 
Section 25 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 states - Where, in 
making any determination under the planning Acts, regard is to be had to the 
development plan, the determination shall be made in accordance with the plan unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 

Page 28



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 5 of 15 21/06159/FUL 

Section 59 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997 states that in considering whether to grant planning permission for development 
which affects a listed building or its setting, a planning authority shall have special 
regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of 
special architectural or historic interest which it possesses. 
 
Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997 states - special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or 
enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area.  
 
Do the proposals comply with the development plan? 
 
If the proposals do comply with the development plan, are there any compelling 
reasons for not approving them? 
 
If the proposals do not comply with the development plan, are there any compelling 
reasons for approving them? 
 
3.3 Assessment  
To address these determining issues, the Committee needs to consider whether: 
 

a) the proposal will have an acceptable impact on built heritage; 
b) the proposal is acceptable in principle; 
c) the proposal will have any adverse impact on residential amenity; 
d) the proposal will have an adverse impact on road safety; 
e) other material considerations and 
f) public comments have been addressed. 

 
a) Built Heritage 
 
Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997 (the LBCA Act) states that special attention shall be paid to the desirability of 
preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area. If there 
is harm to a Conservation Area as a result of development, there is a strong 
presumption against granting planning permission. This presumption can only be 
overcome if there are advantages to the scheme a its location which outweigh the harm 
and justify granting planning permission. If such advantages are found, is necessary to 
consider then whether these can only be delivered at the development's particular 
location.  
 
The Old Town Conservation Area Character Appraisal states that:  
 
The provision of consistent and high quality natural materials, street furniture and 
lighting in the public realm is a critical factor in uniting and complementing the built 
heritage. Natural stone paving slabs and stone setts have historically been used for 
street surfaces for many centuries. The historic paving displays a tradition of high 
quality workmanship, attention to detail and the use of robust and durable materials. 
 
 
 
 

Page 29



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 6 of 15 21/06159/FUL 

It notes that: 
 
Cockburn Street has thirty Baronial blocks built between 1859 and 1864 along a 
serpentine curve to provide access to Waverley Station from the Old Town and clear 
the densely packed backlands of existing closes. The Edinburgh Railway Station Act, of 
1853, which authorised its construction, specified the need to preserve the architectural 
style and antique character of the locality to secure harmony between the new 
buildings and those of the Old Town. The variegated Baronial architecture 
acknowledged the steep gradient of the street, recreated some of the intimacy of an old 
Edinburgh close and provided a new architectural gateway to the Old Town. 
 
The proposal is for a deck that is surrounded by a timber fence, with a clear 
polycarbonate roof. It has a utilitarian character that does not demonstrate a high 
standard of design, nor does it utilise materials appropriate to the historic environment. 
Seen within the this uniquely designed street, the proposed structure detracts from the 
visual quality of the street as a whole. It therefore harms the character and appearance 
of the Conservation Area. The presumption against granting planning permission is 
therefore engaged. 
 
The primary advantage to this installation is that it provides additional space for the 
business to enable social distancing (as a result of the coronavirus pandemic). Its use 
will help support the business and bring some economic benefit.  However, only limited 
weight can be attached to these benefits as this application is for a permanent 
installation. The benefits do not outweigh the harm identified above.  
 
The proposal therefore does not comply with Section 64 of the LBCA Act.   
 
As a result of this, the proposal does not comply with Edinburgh Local Development 
Plan (LDP) Policy Env 6 Conservation Areas - Development or LDP Policy Des 4 
Development Design - Impact on Setting. 
 
Section 59 of the LBCA Act states that in considering whether to grant planning 
permission for development which affects a listed building or its setting, a planning 
authority or the Secretary of State, as the case may be, shall have special regard to the 
desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of special 
architectural or historic interest which it possesses. The impact on the setting of 
surrounding listed buildings needs to be considered.  
 
The setting of these buildings includes the street itself. As a result of the impacts 
described above, there would be harm to the setting of the listed buildings that are in 
close proximity to the structure. For similar reasons as described above, the proposal 
breaches the requirements of section 59 of the LBCA Act. Similarly, the advantages 
described above, do not outweigh the harm. The proposal is therefore not acceptable in 
relation to LDP Policy Env 3 - Listed Buildings Setting.   
 
As well as the conservation area, and listed buildings, the proposal's impact on the Old 
and New Towns of Edinburgh World Heritage Site also needs to be considered.  
 
The proposed development would harm the qualities which justified the inscription of 
the World Heritage Site and would have a detrimental impact on the site's setting.  

Page 30



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 7 of 15 21/06159/FUL 

The use of low quality materials, not in keeping with the area, and poor design would 
negatively impact the outstanding universal value of the World Heritage Site. The 
proposal would essentially restrict public space and in doing so upset the balance and 
uniqueness of the historic streets. 
 
In summary, the proposal is not acceptable in relation to Sections 59 and 64 of the 
LBCA Act as a result of the harm to the setting of listed buildings and to the character 
and appearance of the conservation area. As a result, it does not comply with LDP 
Policies, Env 3, Env 6 and Des 4. It would harm the World Heritage Site contrary to 
LDP Policy Env 1. 
 
b) Principle 
 
The site is located within the city centre where LDP Policy Del 2 applies. The proposal 
would be detrimental to the character and attractiveness of the city centre by virtue of 
the structure's poor quality design and use of unsympathetic materials. Furthermore, 
the siting of the structure on a public road would impact on the vitality and accessibility 
of the city centre by cluttering up the street and creating difficulties for access. 
 
As a result of its impact on the character and attractiveness of the street, the proposal 
fails to comply with LDP Policy Del 2 City Centre. 
 
c) Residential Amenity 
 
The proposal is likely to result in an adverse impact on local residential amenity. 
Although it is a busy area with a vibrant night-time economy, the permanent addition of 
a decked outdoor seating area would alter the character of the area though creating a 
formalised arrangement that is conducive to the congregation of groups.   
 
Environmental Protection has objected to the proposal and consider that it could lead to 
a noise nuisance that would be detrimental to the living standards of local residents. 
Discussion between Environmental Protection and Planning explored the potential for a 
condition to control the use. It is not however appropriate to restrict the hours of 
operation of one part of a premises with the remainder having different hours of 
operation. Therefore, a condition is not appropriate.  
 
The proposal is likely to be detrimental to residential amenity and fails to comply with 
LDP Policies Des 5 Development Design - Amenity and Hou 7 Inappropriate Uses in 
Residential Areas. 
 
d) Road Safety 
 
Following consultation, Transportation has recommended refusal as the proposal would 
be detrimental to road safety. The permanent occupancy of a section of adopted road 
would not be supported. Furthermore, the structure would result in the loss of parking 
and loading bays to the detriment of disabled drivers and passengers as well as 
residents, visitors and business operations. The presence of a structure on the road 
would have an adverse impact on various road operations (road maintenance, gully 
cleaning, gritting, street cleansing, events etc) and obligations (utilities access etc).  
 
The proposal would be detrimental to road safety.  

Page 31



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 8 of 15 21/06159/FUL 

 
e) Other Material Considerations 
 
Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) presumption in favour of sustainable development is a 
significant material consideration due to the development plan being over five years 
old. The planning system should support economically, environmentally and socially 
sustainable places by enabling development that balances the costs and benefits of a 
proposal over the longer term. The aim is to achieve the right development in the right 
place; it is not to allow development at any cost. SPP sets out thirteen principles of 
sustainable development. The proposal is assessed against the relevant principles 
below. 
 

- giving due weight to net economic benefit 
Although it is acknowledged that there may be economic benefit to the outdoor seating 
area, this is outweighed by the issues set out above relating to the historic 
environment, residential amenity and road safety.  
 

- supporting good design and the six qualities of successful places 
As set out above the structure is of a poor-quality design and out of keeping with the 
character of the area. The proposal does not comply with the six qualities of successful 
places as it would impact on the ability to move around, would not be welcoming and 
due to the potential for nuisance would not be safe and welcoming. 
 

- improving health and well-being by offering opportunities for social interaction 
and physical activity, including sport and recreation 

The proposals could offer opportunities for social interaction, particularly where 
Coronavirus is concerned (this is discussed further below), however this does not 
outweigh the impact on the historic environment, residential amenity and road safety. 
 

- protecting, enhancing and promoting access to cultural heritage, including the 
historic environment 

The proposal would have a negative impact on the outstanding universal value of the 
Edinburgh World Heritage Site as well as on the character and appearance of the Old 
Town Conservation Area. 
 

- avoiding over-development, protecting the amenity of new and existing 
development and considering the implications of development for water, air and 
soil quality 

The proposal is likely to result in an adverse impact on the amenity of local residents. 
 
The proposal does not comply with the relevant principles of sustainable development 
as set out in Scottish Planning Policy. 
 
Coronavirus Pandemic 
 
Although there is an understanding that a flexible approach is required given the fast-
changing nature of the global pandemic and that it continues to impact on hospitality 
businesses, the application seeks permission for the permanent siting of the structure. 
It should be noted that the recent letter from the Scottish Government Chief Planner 
has stated that a relaxed approach to planning enforcement should remain in place 
until September 2022.  

Page 32



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 9 of 15 21/06159/FUL 

A report will be brought to Planning Committee on 23 February 2022 which will set out 
a proposed approach to planning enforcement for temporary structures for hospitality.  
This will enable Planning Committee to decide on the extent of relaxation to planning 
enforcement for the months ahead.  
 
Given the current restrictions on social distancing etc remain in place, if the application 
is refused, the Chief Planning Officer would not instigate any planning enforcement 
action until further consideration has been given to enforcement by Planning 
Committee on 23 February 2022.   
 
Consideration has been given to whether a temporary permission could be granted by 
means of a planning condition to restrict the duration of the operation. However, as the 
length of coronavirus restrictions is unknown, the approach to enforcement to 23 
February with subsequent Planning Committee oversight provides a better, more 
flexible framework for continued use of this installation.  
 
f) Public Comments 
 
Ten letters of representation have been received. All representations objected to the 
proposal. 
 
Material Considerations 

- Amenity: this has been addressed in section 3.3(c); 
- Design: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a) and (b); 
- Privatisation of public space: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a); 
- Impact on Conservation Area: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a); 
- Impact on World Heritage Site: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a); 
- Impact on Listed Buildings: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a); 
- Road safety: this has been addressed in section 3.3(d). 

 
Conclusion 
 
As a result of its location, form and design, the proposal does not comply with Sections 
59 and 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997.  
 
The proposal is not acceptable in principle and would be harmful to the Edinburgh 
World Heritage Site and the Old Town Conservation Area. The proposal is likely to lead 
to an unacceptable impact on residential amenity and is not acceptable in terms of its 
impact on road safety. It fails to comply with the Local Development Plan, associated 
guidance and the principles of sustainability as set out by Scottish Planning Policy. 
There are no material considerations that outweigh this conclusion and refusal is 
recommended. 
 
Notwithstanding the reason for decision as set out above, no planning enforcement 
action will be taken until a decision of Planning Committee on 23 February 2022 on a 
proposed approach to planning enforcement for temporary structures for hospitality. 
 
 
 
 

Page 33



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 10 of 15 21/06159/FUL 

It is recommended that this application be Refused for the reasons below. 
 
3.4 Conditions/reasons/informatives 
 
Reasons:- 
 
1. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Env 1 World Heritage Sites as 

the proposed development would harm the qualities which justified the 
inscription of the Old and New Towns of Edinburgh as a World Heritage Site and 
would have a detrimental impact on the site's setting. 

 
2. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Env 6 Conservation Areas - 

Development as the proposal would not preserve or enhance the special 
character or appearance of the Old Town Conservation Area. 

 
3. The proposal fails to comply with the principles of sustainability as set out by 

Scottish Planning Policy. 
 
4. The proposal's adverse impact on setting of listed buildings and the conservation 

area means it does not comply with the requirements of Sections 59 and 64 of 
the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 1997. 

 
5. The proposal will have a negative impact on road safety as it would result in the 

permanent occupancy of a section of adopted road. 
 
6. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Des 5 Development Design - 

Amenity as it is likely to adversely impact on the amenity of neighbouring 
properties. 

 
7. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Hou 7 Inappropriate Uses in 

Residential Areas as it is likely to have a materially detrimental effect on the 
living conditions of nearby residents. 

 
 

Financial impact  

4.1 The financial impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
In general, in respect of on carriageway installations, any loss of parking income may 
be mitigated by income from tables and chair licences. 

Risk, Policy, compliance and governance impact 

5.1 Provided planning applications are determined in accordance with statutory 
legislation, the level of risk is low. 

Equalities impact  

6.1 The equalities impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
The application has been assessed and has no impact in terms of equalities or human 
rights. 

Page 34



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 11 of 15 21/06159/FUL 

Sustainability impact  

7.1 The sustainability impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
This application is not subject to the sustainability requirements of the Edinburgh 
Design Guidance. 

Consultation and engagement  

8.1 Pre-Application Process 
 
There is no pre-application process history. 
 
8.2 Publicity summary of representations and Community Council comments 
 
Following statutory neighbour notification and advertisement in the Edinburgh Evening 
News, ten letters of representation have been received. 

Background reading/external references 

• To view details of the application go to  

• Planning and Building Standards online services 

• Planning guidelines  

• Conservation Area Character Appraisals  

• Edinburgh Local Development Plan  

• Scottish Planning Policy 

Page 35

https://citydev-portal.edinburgh.gov.uk/idoxpa-web/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/planningguidelines
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/characterappraisals
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/localdevelopmentplan
http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Topics/Built-Environment/planning/Policy


 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 12 of 15 21/06159/FUL 

 

 

 
David Givan 
Chief Planning Officer 
PLACE 
The City of Edinburgh Council 
 
 
Contact: Murray Couston, Planning Officer 

E-mail:murray.couston@edinburgh.gov.uk  

Links - Policies 

 
Relevant Policies: 
 
Relevant policies of the Local Development Plan. 
 
LDP Policy Env 1 (World Heritage Site) protects the quality of the World Heritage Site 
and its setting. 
 
LDP Policy Env 3 (Listed Buildings - Setting) identifies the circumstances in which 
development within the curtilage or affecting the setting of a listed building will be 
permitted. 
 
LDP Policy Env 6 (Conservation Areas - Development) sets out criteria for assessing 
development in a conservation area. 
 

 Statutory Development 

Plan Provision 

 

The site is within the City Centre, Old Town 

Conservation Area and Edinburgh World Heritage Site 

as defined by the adopted Local Development Plan. 

 

 

 Date registered 22 November 2021 

 

 

 

 

Drawing numbers/Scheme 01-02, 

 

 

 

Scheme 1 
 

 

Page 36



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 13 of 15 21/06159/FUL 

LDP Policy Del 2 (City Centre) sets criteria for assessing development in the city 
centre. 
 
LDP Policy Des 4 (Development Design - Impact on Setting) sets criteria for assessing 
the impact of development design against its setting. 
 
LDP Policy Des 5 (Development Design - Amenity) sets criteria for assessing amenity.  
 
LDP Policy Hou 7 (Inappropriate Uses in Residential Areas) establishes a presumption 
against development which would have an unacceptable effect on the living conditions 
of nearby residents. 
 
Relevant Non-Statutory Guidelines 
 
Non-statutory guidelines  'LISTED BUILDINGS AND CONSERVATION AREAS' 
provides guidance on repairing, altering or extending listed buildings and unlisted 
buildings in conservation areas. 
 
Other Relevant policy guidance 
 
The Old Town Conservation Area Character Appraisal emphasises the survival of 
the original medieval street pattern; the wealth of important landmark buildings; the 
survival of an outstanding collection of archaeological remains, medieval buildings, and 
17th-century town houses; the consistent and harmonious height and mass of 
buildings; the importance of stone as a construction material for both buildings and the 
public realm; the vitality and variety of different uses; and the continuing presence of a 
residential community 
 

Page 37



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 14 of 15 21/06159/FUL 

Appendix 1 
 
Application for Planning Permission 21/06159/FUL 
at 34 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1PB. 
Planning permission is sought for outdoor seating area 
comprising of timber platform and fence with clear 
polycarbonate roof for shelter. 
 
Consultations 

 
 
Environmental Protection 
 
The application proposes the erection of an outdoor customer seating area for use by 
patrons of an associated café bistro premises at 34 Cockburn Street. The customer 
area is to be situated on the road-side adjacent to the footpath. The associated 
takeaway premises fronts onto Cockburn Street adjacent to a number of other 
commercial and retail uses. Cockburn Street includes a mix of ground floor commercial 
with residential properties above and can be a vibrant location with heavy footfall. 
 
Environmental Protection has concerns that the use of external dining areas; especially 
late at night, may generate noise and complaints will be received by the Council.  
 
Discussions have taken place with Planning who have confirmed that it is not possible 
to restrict the hours of use of the outdoor seating area as any condition is unlikely to 
pass the 6 tests required of any planning condition.  
 
With this in mind, and the fact that the area could therefore be utilised within the more 
noise sensitive times of the night, Environmental Protection has concerns that the use 
of the external seating area may generate noise, impact upon residential amenity and 
cause noise complaints to be received by the Council. 
 
Therefore, Environmental Protection is unable to support the application and 
recommends it be refused. 
 
Transportation 
 
The application should be refused. 
 
Reasons: 
1. The proposals seek to occupy a section of the carriageway that forms part of the 
adopted road; 
2. The placement of a structure on a road or footway is considered detrimental to road 
safety; 
3. The structure results in the loss of parking and/or loading bays to the detriment of 
disabled drivers/passengers, residents, visitors and business operations and will likely 
lead to indiscriminate parking nearby; 

Page 38



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 15 of 15 21/06159/FUL 

4. The presence of a structure on a road or footway has an adverse impact on various 
road operations (road maintenance, gully cleaning, gritting, street cleansing, events 
etc) and obligations (utilities access etc); 
5. The operation of the facility may result in restrictions on the adjacent footway which 
is contrary to the Councils Equal Pavements Pledge. 
 
Notes - 
1. The Council as Roads Authority has confirmed that written approval, as required 
under Section 59 of the Roads (Scotland) Act 1984, will not be given for these 
structures. 
 
 
 
 

Location Plan 

 
 

© Crown Copyright and database right 2014. All rights reserved. Ordnance Survey License number 100023420 

END 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 1 of 15      21/06160/FUL 

Development Management Sub Committee 

Wednesday 19 January 2022 

 

 

 

Application for Planning Permission 21/06160/FUL 
at 45 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BS. 
Planning permission is sought for outdoor seating area 
comprising of timber platform and fence with clear 
polycarbonate roof for shelter. 

 

 

Summary 

 
As a result of its location, form and design, the proposal does not comply with Sections 
59 and 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997.  
 
The proposal is not acceptable in principle and would be harmful to the Edinburgh World 
Heritage Site and the Old Town Conservation Area. The proposal is likely to lead to an 
unacceptable impact on residential amenity and is not acceptable in terms of its impact 
on road safety. It fails to comply with the Local Development Plan, associated guidance 
and the principles of sustainability as set out by Scottish Planning Policy. There are no 
material considerations that outweigh this conclusion and refusal is recommended. 
 
Notwithstanding the reason for decision as set out above, no planning enforcement 
action will be taken until a decision of Planning Committee on 23 February 2022 on a 
proposed approach to planning enforcement for temporary structures for hospitality. 
 
 

 

 

 Item number  

 Report number 

 

 

 

 

 

Wards B11 - City Centre 

Page 41

Agenda Item 4.3



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 2 of 15      21/06160/FUL 

Links 

Page 42



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022   Page 3 of 15 21/06160/FUL 

Report 

Application for Planning Permission 21/06160/FUL 
at 45 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BS. 
Planning permission is sought for outdoor seating area 
comprising of timber platform and fence with clear 
polycarbonate roof for shelter. 
 

Recommendations  

1.1 It is recommended that this application be Refused for the reasons below. 

Background 

2.1 Site description 
 
The site is an area of adopted road located adjacent to The Wall at 45 Cockburn Street 
(B listed; reference: LB30081; listing date: 12/12/1974).  
 
Cockburn Street is an important Victorian Street within the Old Town. It connects 
Waverley Station and Princes Street Gardens to the Royal Mile and constitutes a 
strategic link between the Old Town and the New Town. It is both a residential and 
commercial street, and all buildings on the street are statutorily listed, being a mix of 
both 'A' and 'B' listed buildings. It has a unique townscape; tall narrow buildings frame 
the street and give it a strong sense of enclosure as well as continuous active frontage. 
It is also a serpentine street characterised by its sinuous path sloping up towards the 
Royal Mile. Whilst the response of urban form to topography is a distinctive feature of 
the Old Town of Edinburgh in general, it is well exemplified in Cockburn Street.  
 
The site is located within the Edinburgh World Heritage Site. 
 
This application site is located within the Old Town Conservation Area. 
 
2.2 Site History 
 
Other seating applications on High Street 
 
25 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 148 High Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1QS 
(application reference 21/05674/FUL). 
 
26 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 231 High Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1PE 
(application reference 21/05691/FUL). 
 
24 November 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area at 119 High 
Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1SG (application reference 21/06213/FUL) 

Page 43



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 4 of 15 21/06160/FUL 

Other seating applications on Cockburn Street 
 
14 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 19 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BP 
(application reference 21/05388/FUL). 
 
22 November 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with clear polycarbonate at 34 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, 
EH1 1PB (application reference 21/06159/FUL). 
 
22 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 61 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BS 
(application reference 21/05625/FUL). 
 
5 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 63 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BS 
(application reference 21/05216/FUL). 
 
27 October 2021 - Planning application made to erect outdoor seating area at 8 - 10 
North Bridge Arcade, Edinburgh, EH1 1QL (application reference 21/05721/FUL) 
 
5 November 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fencing with timber rain-screen covers over at 73 Cockburn Street, 
Edinburgh, EH1 1BU (application reference 21/05905/FUL). 
 
Other seating applications on Victoria Street 
 
15 October 2021 - Planning application made for erection of decking area on roadway 
in front of applicant premises for use as an external dining area (subject to Roads 
Department Permits and Licensing) at 36 - 38 Victoria Street, Edinburgh, EH1 2JW 
(application reference 21/05431/FUL). 

Main report 

3.1 Description of the Proposal 
 
Planning permission is sought for the permanent installation of a decked outdoor 
seating area with a polycarbonate roof. The seating area would be 7.5 metres in length 
and two metres wide, measuring approximately two metres in height. The decking 
would be finished in timber. The outdoor seating area is to be used by customers of 
The Wall. 
 
Notwithstanding the above, the structure has been built. It is finished in painted 
plywood. 
 
3.2 Determining Issues 
 
Section 25 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 states - Where, in 
making any determination under the planning Acts, regard is to be had to the 
development plan, the determination shall be made in accordance with the plan unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 

Page 44



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 5 of 15 21/06160/FUL 

Section 59 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997 states that in considering whether to grant planning permission for development 
which affects a listed building or its setting, a planning authority shall have special 
regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of 
special architectural or historic interest which it possesses. 
 
Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997 states - special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or 
enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area.  
 
Do the proposals comply with the development plan? 
 
If the proposals do comply with the development plan, are there any compelling 
reasons for not approving them? 
 
If the proposals do not comply with the development plan, are there any compelling 
reasons for approving them? 
 
3.3 Assessment  
To address these determining issues, the Committee needs to consider whether: 
 

a) the proposal will have an acceptable impact on built heritage; 
b) the proposal is acceptable in principle; 
c) the proposal will have any adverse impact on residential amenity; 
d) the proposal will have an adverse impact on road safety; 
e) other material considerations and 
f) public comments have been addressed. 

 
a) Built Heritage 
 
Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997 (the LBCA Act) states that special attention shall be paid to the desirability of 
preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area. If there 
is harm to a Conservation Area as a result of development, there is a strong 
presumption against granting planning permission. This presumption can only be 
overcome if there are advantages to the scheme a its location which outweigh the harm 
and justify granting planning permission. If such advantages are found, is necessary to 
consider then whether these can only be delivered at the development's particular 
location.  
 
The Old Town Conservation Area Character Appraisal states that:  
 
The provision of consistent and high quality natural materials, street furniture and 
lighting in the public realm is a critical factor in uniting and complementing the built 
heritage. Natural stone paving slabs and stone setts have historically been used for 
street surfaces for many centuries. The historic paving displays a tradition of high 
quality workmanship, attention to detail and the use of robust and durable materials. 
 
 
 
 

Page 45



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 6 of 15 21/06160/FUL 

It notes that: 
 
Cockburn Street has thirty Baronial blocks built between 1859 and 1864 along a 
serpentine curve to provide access to Waverley Station from the Old Town and clear 
the densely packed backlands of existing closes. The Edinburgh Railway Station Act, of 
1853, which authorised its construction, specified the need to preserve the architectural 
style and antique character of the locality to secure harmony between the new 
buildings and those of the Old Town. The variegated Baronial architecture 
acknowledged the steep gradient of the street, recreated some of the intimacy of an old 
Edinburgh close and provided a new architectural gateway to the Old Town. 
 
The proposal is for a deck that is surrounded by solid sides, with a clear polycarbonate 
roof. The as built structure is finished in painted ply. It has a rough and ready  character 
that does not demonstrate a high standard of design, nor does it utilise materials 
appropriate to the historic environment. Seen within the this uniquely designed street, 
the proposed structure detracts from the visual quality of the street as a whole. It 
therefore harms the character and appearance of the Conservation Area. The 
presumption against granting planning permission is therefore engaged. 
 
The primary advantage to this installation is that it provides additional space for the 
business to enable social distancing (as a result of the coronavirus pandemic). Its use 
will help support the business and bring some economic benefit.  However, only limited 
weight can be attached to these benefits as this application is for a permanent 
installation. The benefits do not outweigh the harm identified above.  
 
The proposal therefore does not comply with Section 64 of the LBCA Act.   
 
As a result of this, the proposal does not comply with Edinburgh Local Development 
Plan (LDP) Policy Env 6 Conservation Areas - Development or LDP Policy Des 4 
Development Design - Impact on Setting. 
 
Section 59 of the LBCA Act states that in considering whether to grant planning 
permission for development which affects a listed building or its setting, a planning 
authority or the Secretary of State, as the case may be, shall have special regard to the 
desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of special 
architectural or historic interest which it possesses. The impact on the setting of 
surrounding listed buildings needs to be considered.  
 
The setting of these buildings includes the street itself. As a result of the impacts 
described above, there would be harm to the setting of the listed buildings that are in 
close proximity to the structure. For similar reasons as described above, the proposal 
breaches the requirements of section 59 of the LBCA Act. Similarly, the advantages 
described above, do not outweigh the harm. The proposal is therefore not acceptable in 
relation to LDP Policy Env 3 - Listed Buildings Setting.   
 
As well as the conservation area, and listed buildings, the proposal's impact on the Old 
and New Towns of Edinburgh World Heritage Site also needs to be considered.  
 
 
 

Page 46



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 7 of 15 21/06160/FUL 

The proposed development would harm the qualities which justified the inscription of 
the World Heritage Site and would have a detrimental impact on the site's setting. The 
use of low quality materials, not in keeping with the area, and poor design would 
negatively impact the outstanding universal value of the World Heritage Site. The 
proposal would essentially restrict public space and in doing so upset the balance and 
uniqueness of the historic streets. 
 
In summary, the proposal is not acceptable in relation to Sections 59 and 64 of the 
LBCA Act as a result of the harm to the setting of listed buildings and to the character 
and appearance of the conservation area. As a result, it does not comply with LDP 
Policies, Env 3, Env 6 and Des 4. It would harm the World Heritage Site contrary to 
LDP Policy Env 1. 
 
b) Principle 
 
The site is located within the city centre where LDP Policy Del 2 applies. The proposal 
would be detrimental to the character and attractiveness of the city centre by virtue of 
the structure's poor quality design and use of unsympathetic materials. Furthermore, 
the siting of the structure on a public road would impact on the vitality and accessibility 
of the city centre by cluttering up the street and creating difficulties for access. 
 
As a result of its impact on the character and attractiveness of the street, the proposal 
fails to comply with LDP Policy Del 2 City Centre. 
 
c) Residential Amenity 
 
The proposal is likely to result in an adverse impact on local residential amenity. 
Although it is a busy area with a vibrant night-time economy, the permanent addition of 
a decked outdoor seating area would alter the character of the area though creating a 
formalised arrangement that is conducive to the congregation of groups.   
 
Environmental Protection has objected to the proposal and consider that it could lead to 
a noise nuisance that would be detrimental to the living standards of local residents. 
Discussion between Environmental Protection and Planning explored the potential for a 
condition to control the use. It is not however appropriate to restrict the hours of 
operation of one part of a premises with the remainder having different hours of 
operation. Therefore, a condition is not appropriate.  
 
The proposal is likely to be detrimental to residential amenity and fails to comply with 
LDP Policies Des 5 Development Design - Amenity and Hou 7 Inappropriate Uses in 
Residential Areas. 
 
d) Road Safety 
 
Following consultation, Transportation has recommended refusal as the proposal would 
be detrimental to road safety. The permanent occupancy of a section of adopted road 
would not be supported. Furthermore, the structure would result in the loss of parking 
and loading bays to the detriment of disabled drivers and passengers as well as 
residents, visitors and business operations. The presence of a structure on the road 
would have an adverse impact on various road operations (road maintenance, gully 
cleaning, gritting, street cleansing, events etc) and obligations (utilities access etc).  

Page 47



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 8 of 15 21/06160/FUL 

 
The proposal would be detrimental to road safety.  
 
e) Other Material Considerations 
 
Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) presumption in favour of sustainable development is a 
significant material consideration due to the development plan being over five years 
old. The planning system should support economically, environmentally and socially 
sustainable places by enabling development that balances the costs and benefits of a 
proposal over the longer term. The aim is to achieve the right development in the right 
place; it is not to allow development at any cost. SPP sets out thirteen principles of 
sustainable development. The proposal is assessed against the relevant principles 
below. 
 

− giving due weight to net economic benefit 
Although it is acknowledged that there may be economic benefit to the outdoor seating 
area, this is outweighed by the issues set out above relating to the historic 
environment, residential amenity and road safety.  
 

− supporting good design and the six qualities of successful places 
As set out above the structure is of a poor-quality design and out of keeping with the 
character of the area. The proposal does not comply with the six qualities of successful 
places as it would impact on the ability to move around, would not be welcoming and 
due to the potential for nuisance would not be safe and welcoming. 
 

− improving health and well-being by offering opportunities for social interaction 
and physical activity, including sport and recreation 

The proposals could offer opportunities for social interaction, particularly where 
Coronavirus is concerned (this is discussed further below), however this does not 
outweigh the impact on the historic environment, residential amenity and road safety. 
 

− protecting, enhancing and promoting access to cultural heritage, including the 
historic environment 

The proposal would have a negative impact on the outstanding universal value of the 
Edinburgh World Heritage Site as well as on the character and appearance of the Old 
Town Conservation Area. 
 

− avoiding over-development, protecting the amenity of new and existing 
development and considering the implications of development for water, air and 
soil quality 

The proposal is likely to result in an adverse impact on the amenity of local residents. 
 
The proposal does not comply with the relevant principles of sustainable development 
as set out in Scottish Planning Policy. 
 
Coronavirus Pandemic 
 
Although there is an understanding that a flexible approach is required given the fast-
changing nature of the global pandemic and that it continues to impact on hospitality 
businesses, the application seeks permission for the permanent siting of the structure.  

Page 48



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 9 of 15 21/06160/FUL 

It should be noted that the recent letter from the Scottish Government Chief Planner 
has stated that a relaxed approach to planning enforcement should remain in place 
until September 2022. A report will be brought to Planning Committee on 23 February 
2022 which will set out a proposed approach to planning enforcement for temporary 
structures for hospitality.  This will enable Planning Committee to decide on the extent 
of relaxation to planning enforcement for the months ahead.  
 
Given the current restrictions on social distancing etc remain in place, if the application 
is refused, the Chief Planning Officer would not instigate any planning enforcement 
action until further consideration has been given to enforcement by Planning 
Committee on 23 February 2022.   
 
Consideration has been given to whether a temporary permission could be granted by 
means of a planning condition to restrict the duration of the operation. However, as the 
length of coronavirus restrictions is unknown, the approach to enforcement to 23 
February with subsequent Planning Committee oversight provides a better, more 
flexible framework for continued use of this installation.  
 
f) Public Comments 
 
Twelve letters of representation have been received. Of these, eleven object to the 
proposal and one makes neutral comments. 
 
Material Considerations 

− Amenity: this has been addressed in section 3.3(c); 

− Design: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a) and (b); 

− Privatisation of public space: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a); 

− Impact on Conservation Area: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a); 

− Impact on World Heritage Site: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a) 

− Road safety: this has been addressed in section 3.3(d). 
 
Conclusion 
 
As a result of its location, form and design, the proposal does not comply with Sections 
59 and 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997.  
 
The proposal is not acceptable in principle and would be harmful to the Edinburgh 
World Heritage Site and the Old Town Conservation Area. The proposal is likely to lead 
to an unacceptable impact on residential amenity and is not acceptable in terms of its 
impact on road safety. It fails to comply with the Local Development Plan, associated 
guidance and the principles of sustainability as set out by Scottish Planning Policy. 
There are no material considerations that outweigh this conclusion and refusal is 
recommended. 
 
Notwithstanding the reason for decision as set out above, no planning enforcement 
action will be taken until a decision of Planning Committee on 23 February 2022 on a 
proposed approach to planning enforcement for temporary structures for hospitality. 
 
 
 

Page 49



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 10 of 15 21/06160/FUL 

 
It is recommended that this application be Refused for the reasons below. 
 
3.4 Conditions/reasons/informatives 
 
Reasons:- 
 
1. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Env 1 World Heritage Sites as 

the proposed development would harm the qualities which justified the 
inscription of the Old and New Towns of Edinburgh as a World Heritage Site and 
would have a detrimental impact on the site's setting. 

 
2. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Env 6 Conservation Areas - 

Development as the proposal would not preserve or enhance the special 
character or appearance of the Old Town Conservation Area. 

 
3. The proposal fails to comply with the principles of sustainability as set out by 

Scottish Planning Policy. 
 
4. The proposal's adverse impact on setting of listed buildings and the conservation 

area means it does not comply with the requirements of Sections 59 and 64 of 
the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 1997. 

 
5. The proposal will have a negative impact on road safety as it would result in the 

permanent occupancy of a section of adopted road. 
 
6. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Des 5 Development Design - 

Amenity as it is likely to adversely impact on the amenity of neighbouring 
properties. 

 
7. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Hou 7 Inappropriate Uses in 

Residential Areas as it is likely to have a materially detrimental effect on the 
living conditions of nearby residents. 

 

Financial impact  

4.1 The financial impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
In general, in respect of on carriageway installations, any loss of parking income may 
be mitigated by income from tables and chair licences. 

Risk, Policy, compliance and governance impact 

5.1 Provided planning applications are determined in accordance with statutory 
legislation, the level of risk is low. 

Equalities impact  

6.1 The equalities impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
The application has been assessed and has no impact in terms of equalities or human 
rights. 

Page 50



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 11 of 15 21/06160/FUL 

Sustainability impact  

7.1 The sustainability impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
This application is not subject to the sustainability requirements of the Edinburgh 
Design Guidance. 

Consultation and engagement  

8.1 Pre-Application Process 
 
There is no pre-application process history. 
 
8.2 Publicity summary of representations and Community Council comments 
 
Following statutory neighbour notification and advertisement in the Edinburgh Evening 
News, twelve letters of representation have been received. 

Background reading/external references 

• To view details of the application, go to  

• Planning and Building Standards online services 

• Planning guidelines  

• Conservation Area Character Appraisals  

• Edinburgh Local Development Plan  

• Scottish Planning Policy 

  

Page 51

https://citydev-portal.edinburgh.gov.uk/idoxpa-web/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/planningguidelines
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/characterappraisals
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/localdevelopmentplan
http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Topics/Built-Environment/planning/Policy


 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 12 of 15 21/06160/FUL 

 

 
David Givan 
Chief Planning Officer 
PLACE 
The City of Edinburgh Council 
 
 
Contact: Murray Couston, Planning Officer 

E-mail:murray.couston@edinburgh.gov.uk  

Links - Policies 

 
Relevant Policies: 
 
Relevant policies of the Local Development Plan. 
 
LDP Policy Env 1 (World Heritage Site) protects the quality of the World Heritage Site 
and its setting. 
 
LDP Policy Env 3 (Listed Buildings - Setting) identifies the circumstances in which 
development within the curtilage or affecting the setting of a listed building will be 
permitted. 
 
LDP Policy Env 6 (Conservation Areas - Development) sets out criteria for assessing 
development in a conservation area. 
 
LDP Policy Del 2 (City Centre) sets criteria for assessing development in the city 
centre. 
 

 Statutory Development 

Plan Provision 

 

The site is within the City Centre, Old Town 

Conservation Area and Edinburgh World Heritage Site 

as defined by the adopted Local Development Plan. 

 

 

 Date registered 22 November 2021 

 

 

 

 

Drawing numbers/Scheme 01-02, 

 

 

 

Scheme 1 
 

 

Page 52



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 13 of 15 21/06160/FUL 

LDP Policy Des 4 (Development Design - Impact on Setting) sets criteria for assessing 
the impact of development design against its setting. 
 
LDP Policy Des 5 (Development Design - Amenity) sets criteria for assessing amenity.  
 
LDP Policy Hou 7 (Inappropriate Uses in Residential Areas) establishes a presumption 
against development which would have an unacceptable effect on the living conditions 
of nearby residents. 
 
Relevant Non-Statutory Guidelines 
 
Non-statutory guidelines  'LISTED BUILDINGS AND CONSERVATION AREAS' 
provides guidance on repairing, altering or extending listed buildings and unlisted 
buildings in conservation areas. 
 
Other Relevant policy guidance 
 
The Old Town Conservation Area Character Appraisal emphasises the survival of 
the original medieval street pattern; the wealth of important landmark buildings; the 
survival of an outstanding collection of archaeological remains, medieval buildings, and 
17th-century town houses; the consistent and harmonious height and mass of 
buildings; the importance of stone as a construction material for both buildings and the 
public realm; the vitality and variety of different uses; and the continuing presence of a 
residential community 
 

Page 53



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 14 of 15 21/06160/FUL 

Appendix 1 
 
Application for Planning Permission 21/06160/FUL 
At 45 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BS 
Planning permission is sought for outdoor seating area 
comprising of timber platform and fence with clear 
polycarbonate roof for shelter. 
 
Consultations 

 
 
Environmental Protection 
 
Environmental Protection cannot support this application and recommend refusal. 
 
The application proposes the erection of an outdoor customer seating area for use by 
patrons of an associated café premises at 45 Cockburn Street. The customer area is to 
be situated on the road-side adjacent to the footpath. The associated premises fronts 
onto Cockburn Street adjacent to several other commercial and retail uses. Some of the 
existing commercial units on Cockburn Street already have existing outdoor seating 
areas for customers. 
 
Environmental Protection considered that this application could be supported with a 
robust condition restricting hours of operation of the proposed seating area. However, 
discussions with Planning have confirmed that the recommended condition regarding 
time restriction is unlikely to pass the 6 tests required of any planning condition and is 
therefore not a condition that can be applied to the outdoor seating area.  
 
With this in mind, and the fact that the area could therefore be utilised within the more 
noise sensitive times of the night, Environmental Protection has concerns that the use of 
the external dining area may generate noise, impact upon residential amenity and cause 
noise complaints to be received by the Council. 
 
Therefore, as there appears to be no other avenue available to control the hours of use 
of the outdoor seating area, Environmental Protection is unable to support the application 
and recommends it be refused. 
 
Transportation 
 
The application should be refused. 
 
Reasons: 
1. The proposals seek to occupy a section of the carriageway that forms part of the 
adopted road; 
2. The placement of a structure on a road or footway is considered detrimental to road 
safety; 

Page 54



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 15 of 15 21/06160/FUL 

3. The structure results in the loss of parking and/or loading bays to the detriment of 
disabled drivers/passengers, residents, visitors and business operations and will likely 
lead to indiscriminate parking nearby; 
4. The presence of a structure on a road or footway has an adverse impact on various 
road operations (road maintenance, gully cleaning, gritting, street cleansing, events etc) 
and obligations (utilities access etc); 
5. The operation of the facility may result in restrictions on the adjacent footway which is 
contrary to the Councils Equal Pavements Pledge. 
 
Notes - 
1. The Council as Roads Authority has confirmed that written approval, as required under 
Section 59 of the Roads (Scotland) Act 1984, will not be given for these structures. 
 
 
 
 
 

Location Plan 

 
 

© Crown Copyright and database right 2014. All rights reserved. Ordnance Survey License number 100023420 

END 

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 1 of 15      21/05625/FUL 

Development Management Sub Committee 

Wednesday 19 January 2022 

 

 

 

Application for Planning Permission 21/05625/FUL 
at 61 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BS. 
Planning permission is sought for outdoor seating area 
comprising of timber platform and fence with parasols. 

 

 

Summary 

 
As a result of its location, form and design, the proposal does not comply with Sections 
59 and 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997.  
 
The proposal is not acceptable in principle and would be harmful to the Edinburgh 
World Heritage Site and the Old Town Conservation Area. The proposal is likely to lead 
to an unacceptable impact on residential amenity and is not acceptable in terms of its 
impact on road safety. It fails to comply with the Local Development Plan, associated 
guidance and the principles of sustainability as set out by Scottish Planning Policy. 
There are no material considerations that outweigh this conclusion and refusal is 
recommended. 
 
Notwithstanding the reason for decision as set out above, no planning enforcement 
action will be taken until a decision of Planning Committee on 23 February 2022 on a 
proposed approach to planning enforcement for temporary structures for hospitality. 
 
 

 

 Item number  

 Report number 

 

 

 

 

 

Wards B11 - City Centre 

Page 57

Agenda Item 4.4



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 2 of 15      21/05625/FUL 

Links 

Policies and guidance for 

this application 

LDPP, LEN01, LEN03, LEN06, LDEL02, LDES04, 

LDES05, LHOU07, NSG, NSLBCA, OTH, CRPOLD,  

Page 58

file:///C:/uniform/temp/uf04148.rtf%23Policies
file:///C:/uniform/temp/uf04148.rtf%23Policies


 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022   Page 3 of 15 21/05625/FUL 

Report 

Application for Planning Permission 21/05625/FUL 
at 61 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BS. 
Planning permission is sought for outdoor seating area 
comprising of timber platform and fence with parasols. 
 

Recommendations  

1.1 It is recommended that this application be Refused for the reasons below. 

Background 

2.1 Site description 
 
The site is an area of adopted road located adjacent to La Locanda at 61 Cockburn 
Street (B listed; reference: LB30084; listing date: 12/12/1974).  
 
Cockburn Street is an important Victorian Street within the Old Town. It connects 
Waverley Station and Princes Street Gardens to the Royal Mile and constitutes a 
strategic link between the Old Town and the New Town. It is both a residential and 
commercial street, and all buildings on the street are statutorily listed, being a mix of 
both 'A' and 'B' listed buildings. It has a unique townscape; tall narrow buildings frame 
the street and give it a strong sense of enclosure as well as continuous active frontage. 
It is also a serpentine street characterised by its sinuous path sloping up towards the 
Royal Mile. Whilst the response of urban form to topography is a distinctive feature of 
the Old Town of Edinburgh in general, it is well exemplified in Cockburn Street.  
 
The site is located within the Edinburgh World Heritage Site. 
This application site is located within the Old Town Conservation Area. 
 
2.2 Site History 
 
Other seating applications on High Street 
 
25 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 148 High Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1QS 
(application reference 21/05674/FUL). 
 
26 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 231 High Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1PE 
(application reference 21/05691/FUL). 
 
24 November 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area at 119 High 
Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1SG (application reference 21/06213/FUL) 
 
 
 

Page 59



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 4 of 15 21/05625/FUL 

Other seating applications on Cockburn Street 
 
14 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 19 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BP 
(application reference 21/05388/FUL). 
 
22 November 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with clear polycarbonate at 34 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, 
EH1 1PB (application reference 21/06159/FUL). 
 
22 November 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with clear polycarbonate at 45 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, 
EH1 1BS (application reference 21/06060/FUL). 
 
5 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 63 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BS 
(application reference 21/05216/FUL). 
 
27 October 2021 - Planning application made to erect outdoor seating area at 8 - 10 
North Bridge Arcade, Edinburgh, EH1 1QL (application reference 21/05721/FUL) 
 
5 November 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fencing with timber rain-screen covers over at 73 Cockburn Street, 
Edinburgh, EH1 1BU (application reference 21/05905/FUL). 
 
Other seating applications on Victoria Street 
 
15 October 2021 - Planning application made for erection of decking area on roadway 
in front of applicant premises for use as an external dining area (subject to Roads 
Department Permits and Licensing) at 36 - 38 Victoria Street, Edinburgh, EH1 2JW 
(application reference 21/05431/FUL). 

Main report 

3.1 Description of the Proposal 
 
Planning permission is sought for the permanent installation of a decked outdoor 
seating area. The seating area would be 6.6 metres in length and two metres wide, 
measuring 90cm in height. The decking would be finished in timber with parasols for 
coverage. The outdoor seating area is to be used by customers of La Locanda. 
 
3.2 Determining Issues 
 
Section 25 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 states - Where, in 
making any determination under the planning Acts, regard is to be had to the 
development plan, the determination shall be made in accordance with the plan unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
 
 
 

Page 60



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 5 of 15 21/05625/FUL 

Section 59 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997 states that in considering whether to grant planning permission for development 
which affects a listed building or its setting, a planning authority shall have special 
regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of 
special architectural or historic interest which it possesses. 
 
Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997 states - special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or 
enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area.  
 
Do the proposals comply with the development plan? 
 
If the proposals do comply with the development plan, are there any compelling 
reasons for not approving them? 
 
If the proposals do not comply with the development plan, are there any compelling 
reasons for approving them? 
 
3.3 Assessment  
To address these determining issues, the Committee needs to consider whether: 
 

a) the proposal will have an acceptable impact on built heritage; 
b) the proposal is acceptable in principle; 
c) the proposal will have any adverse impact on residential amenity; 
d) the proposal will have an adverse impact on road safety; 
e) other material considerations and 
f) public comments have been addressed. 

 
a) Built Heritage 
 
Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997 (the LBCA Act) states that special attention shall be paid to the desirability of 
preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area. If there 
is harm to a Conservation Area as a result of development, there is a strong 
presumption against granting planning permission. This presumption can only be 
overcome if there are advantages to the scheme at its location which outweigh the 
harm and justify granting planning permission. If such advantages are found, is 
necessary to consider then whether these can only be delivered at the development's 
particular location.  
 
The Old Town Conservation Area Character Appraisal states that:  
 
The provision of consistent and high quality natural materials, street furniture and 
lighting in the public realm is a critical factor in uniting and complementing the built 
heritage. Natural stone paving slabs and stone setts have historically been used for 
street surfaces for many centuries. The historic paving displays a tradition of high 
quality workmanship, attention to detail and the use of robust and durable materials. 
 
 
 
 

Page 61



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 6 of 15 21/05625/FUL 

It notes that: 
 
Cockburn Street has thirty Baronial blocks built between 1859 and 1864 along a 
serpentine curve to provide access to Waverley Station from the Old Town and clear 
the densely packed backlands of existing closes. The Edinburgh Railway Station Act, of 
1853, which authorised its construction, specified the need to preserve the architectural 
style and antique character of the locality to secure harmony between the new 
buildings and those of the Old Town. The variegated Baronial architecture 
acknowledged the steep gradient of the street, recreated some of the intimacy of an old 
Edinburgh close and provided a new architectural gateway to the Old Town. 
 
The proposal is for a deck that is surrounded by a timber fence, with parasol structures 
to provide a covering. It has a simple character, however its material (timber) is not 
appropriate for the historic environment. Seen within the this uniquely designed street, 
the proposed structure detracts from the visual quality of the street as a whole. It 
therefore harms the character and appearance of the Conservation Area. The 
presumption against granting planning permission is therefore engaged. 
 
The primary advantage to this installation is that it provides additional space for the 
business to enable social distancing (as a result of the coronavirus pandemic). Its use 
will help support the business and bring some economic benefit.  However, only limited 
weight can be attached to these benefits as this application is for a permanent 
installation. The benefits do not outweigh the harm identified above.  
 
The proposal therefore does not comply with Section 64 of the LBCA Act.   
 
As a result of this, the proposal does not comply with Edinburgh Local Development 
Plan (LDP) Policy Env 6 Conservation Areas - Development or LDP Policy Des 4 
Development Design - Impact on Setting. 
 
Section 59 of the LBCA Act states that in considering whether to grant planning 
permission for development which affects a listed building or its setting, a planning 
authority or the Secretary of State, as the case may be, shall have special regard to the 
desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of special 
architectural or historic interest which it possesses. The impact on the setting of 
surrounding listed buildings needs to be considered.  
 
The setting of these buildings includes the street itself. As a result of the impacts 
described above, there would be harm to the setting of the listed buildings that are in 
close proximity to the structure. For similar reasons as described above, the proposal 
breaches the requirements of section 59 of the LBCA Act. Similarly, the advantages 
described above, do not outweigh the harm. The proposal is therefore not acceptable in 
relation to LDP Policy Env 3 - Listed Buildings Setting.   
 
As well as the conservation area, and listed buildings, the proposal's impact on the Old 
and New Towns of Edinburgh World Heritage Site also needs to be considered.  
 
The proposed development would harm the qualities which justified the inscription of 
the World Heritage Site and would have a detrimental impact on the site's setting. The 
use of low quality materials, not in keeping with the area, and poor design would 
negatively impact the outstanding universal value of the World Heritage Site.  

Page 62



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 7 of 15 21/05625/FUL 

The proposal would essentially restrict public space and in doing so upset the balance 
and uniqueness of the historic streets. 
 
In summary, the proposal is not acceptable in relation to Sections 59 and 64 of the 
LBCA Act as a result of the harm to the setting of listed buildings and to the character 
and appearance of the conservation area. As a result, it does not comply with LDP 
Policies, Env 3, Env 6 and Des 4. It would harm the World Heritage Site contrary to 
LDP Policy Env 1. 
 
b) Principle 
 
The site is located within the city centre where LDP Policy Del 2 applies. The proposal 
would be detrimental to the character and attractiveness of the city centre by virtue of 
the structure's poor quality design and use of unsympathetic materials. Furthermore, 
the siting of the structure on a public road would impact on the vitality and accessibility 
of the city centre by cluttering up the street and creating difficulties for access. 
 
As a result of its impact on the character and attractiveness of the street, the proposal 
fails to comply with LDP Policy Del 2 City Centre. 
 
c) Residential Amenity 
 
The proposal is likely to result in an adverse impact on local residential amenity. 
Although it is a busy area with a vibrant night-time economy, the permanent addition of 
a decked outdoor seating area would alter the character of the area though creating a 
formalised arrangement that is conducive to the congregation of groups.   
 
Environmental Protection has objected to the proposal and consider that it could lead to 
a noise nuisance that would be detrimental to the living standards of local residents. 
Discussion between Environmental Protection and Planning explored the potential for a 
condition to control the use. It is not however appropriate to restrict the hours of 
operation of one part of a premises with the remainder having different hours of 
operation. Therefore, a condition is not appropriate.  
 
The proposal is likely to be detrimental to residential amenity and fails to comply with 
LDP Policies Des 5 Development Design - Amenity and Hou 7 Inappropriate Uses in 
Residential Areas. 
 
d) Road Safety 
 
Following consultation, Transportation has recommended refusal as the proposal would 
be detrimental to road safety. The permanent occupancy of a section of adopted road 
would not be supported. Furthermore, the structure would result in the loss of parking 
and loading bays to the detriment of disabled drivers and passengers as well as 
residents, visitors and business operations. The presence of a structure on the road 
would have an adverse impact on various road operations (road maintenance, gully 
cleaning, gritting, street cleansing, events etc) and obligations (utilities access etc).  
 
The proposal would be detrimental to road safety.  
 
 

Page 63



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 8 of 15 21/05625/FUL 

e) Other Material Considerations 
 
Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) presumption in favour of sustainable development is a 
significant material consideration due to the development plan being over five years 
old. The planning system should support economically, environmentally and socially 
sustainable places by enabling development that balances the costs and benefits of a 
proposal over the longer term. The aim is to achieve the right development in the right 
place; it is not to allow development at any cost. SPP sets out thirteen principles of 
sustainable development. The proposal is assessed against the relevant principles 
below. 
 

− giving due weight to net economic benefit 
Although it is acknowledged that there may be economic benefit to the outdoor seating 
area, this is outweighed by the issues set out above relating to the historic 
environment, residential amenity and road safety.  
 

− supporting good design and the six qualities of successful places 
As set out above the structure is of a poor-quality design and out of keeping with the 
character of the area. The proposal does not comply with the six qualities of successful 
places as it would impact on the ability to move around, would not be welcoming and 
due to the potential for nuisance would not be safe and welcoming. 
 

− improving health and well-being by offering opportunities for social interaction 
and physical activity, including sport and recreation 

The proposals could offer opportunities for social interaction, particularly where 
Coronavirus is concerned (this is discussed further below), however this does not 
outweigh the impact on the historic environment, residential amenity and road safety. 
 

− protecting, enhancing and promoting access to cultural heritage, including the 
historic environment 

The proposal would have a negative impact on the outstanding universal value of the 
Edinburgh World Heritage Site as well as on the character and appearance of the Old 
Town Conservation Area. 
 

− avoiding over-development, protecting the amenity of new and existing 
development and considering the implications of development for water, air and 
soil quality 

The proposal is likely to result in an adverse impact on the amenity of local residents. 
 
The proposal does not comply with the relevant principles of sustainable development 
as set out in Scottish Planning Policy. 
 
Coronavirus Pandemic 
 
Although there is an understanding that a flexible approach is required given the fast-
changing nature of the global pandemic and that it continues to impact on hospitality 
businesses, the application seeks permission for the permanent siting of the structure. 
It should be noted that the recent letter from the Scottish Government Chief Planner 
has stated that a relaxed approach to planning enforcement should remain in place 
until September 2022.  

Page 64



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 9 of 15 21/05625/FUL 

A report will be brought to Planning Committee on 23 February 2022 which will set out 
a proposed approach to planning enforcement for temporary structures for hospitality.  
This will enable Planning Committee to decide on the extent of relaxation to planning 
enforcement for the months ahead.  
 
Given the current restrictions on social distancing etc remain in place, if the application 
is refused, the Chief Planning Officer would not instigate any planning enforcement 
action until further consideration has been given to enforcement by Planning 
Committee on 23 February 2022.   
 
Consideration has been given to whether a temporary permission could be granted by 
means of a planning condition to restrict the duration of the operation. However, as the 
length of coronavirus restrictions is unknown, the approach to enforcement to 23 
February with subsequent Planning Committee oversight provides a better, more 
flexible framework for continued use of this installation.  
 
f) Public Comments 
 
Ten letters of representation have been received. All ten object to the proposal. 
 
Material Considerations 

− Amenity: this has been addressed in section 3.3(c); 

− Design: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a) and (b); 

− Privatisation of public space: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a); 

− Impact on Conservation Area: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a); 

− Impact on World Heritage Site: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a); 

− Impact on Listed Buildings: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a); 

− Road safety: this has been addressed in section 3.3(d). 
 
Conclusion 
 
As a result of its location, form and design, the proposal does not comply with Sections 
59 and 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997.  
 
The proposal is not acceptable in principle and would be harmful to the Edinburgh 
World Heritage Site and the Old Town Conservation Area. The proposal is likely to lead 
to an unacceptable impact on residential amenity and is not acceptable in terms of its 
impact on road safety. It fails to comply with the Local Development Plan, associated 
guidance and the principles of sustainability as set out by Scottish Planning Policy. 
There are no material considerations that outweigh this conclusion and refusal is 
recommended. 
 
Notwithstanding the reason for decision as set out above, no planning enforcement 
action will be taken until a decision of Planning Committee on 23 February 2022 on a 
proposed approach to planning enforcement for temporary structures for hospitality. 
 
 
 
 
It is recommended that this application be Refused for the reasons below. 

Page 65



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 10 of 15 21/05625/FUL 

3.4 Conditions/reasons/informatives 
 
Reasons:- 
 
1. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Env 1 World Heritage Sites as 

the proposed development would harm the qualities which justified the 
inscription of the Old and New Towns of Edinburgh as a World Heritage Site and 
would have a detrimental impact on the site's setting. 

 
2. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Env 6 Conservation Areas - 

Development as the proposal would not preserve or enhance the special 
character or appearance of the Old Town Conservation Area. 

 
3. The proposal fails to comply with the principles of sustainability as set out by 

Scottish Planning Policy. 
 
4. The proposal's adverse impact on setting of listed buildings and the conservation 

area means it does not comply with the requirements of Sections 59 and 64 of 
the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 1997. 

 
5. The proposal will have a negative impact on road safety as it would result in the 

permanent occupancy of a section of adopted road. 
 
6. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Des 5 Development Design - 

Amenity as it is likely to adversely impact on the amenity of neighbouring 
properties. 

 
7. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Hou 7 Inappropriate Uses in 

Residential Areas as it is likely to have a materially detrimental 
effect on the living conditions of nearby residents. 
 
 

Financial impact  

4.1 The financial impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
In general, in respect of on carriageway installations, any loss of parking income may 
be mitigated by income from tables and chair licences. 

Risk, Policy, compliance and governance impact 

5.1 Provided planning applications are determined in accordance with statutory 
legislation, the level of risk is low. 

Equalities impact  

6.1 The equalities impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
The application has been assessed and has no impact in terms of equalities or human 
rights. 

 

Page 66



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 11 of 15 21/05625/FUL 

Sustainability impact  

7.1 The sustainability impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
This application is not subject to the sustainability requirements of the Edinburgh 
Design Guidance. 

Consultation and engagement  

8.1 Pre-Application Process 
 
There is no pre-application process history. 
 
8.2 Publicity summary of representations and Community Council comments 
 
Following statutory neighbour notification and advertisement in the Edinburgh Evening 
News, ten letters of representation have been received. 

Background reading/external references 

• To view details of the application go to  

• Planning and Building Standards online services 

• Planning guidelines  

• Conservation Area Character Appraisals  

• Edinburgh Local Development Plan  

• Scottish Planning Policy 

Page 67

https://citydev-portal.edinburgh.gov.uk/idoxpa-web/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/planningguidelines
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/characterappraisals
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/localdevelopmentplan
http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Topics/Built-Environment/planning/Policy


 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 12 of 15 21/05625/FUL 

 

 

 
David Givan 
Chief Planning Officer 
PLACE 
The City of Edinburgh Council 
 
 
Contact: Murray Couston, Planning Officer 

E-mail:murray.couston@edinburgh.gov.uk  

Links - Policies 

 
Relevant Policies: 
 
Relevant policies of the Local Development Plan. 
 
LDP Policy Env 1 (World Heritage Site) protects the quality of the World Heritage Site 
and its setting. 
 
LDP Policy Env 3 (Listed Buildings - Setting) identifies the circumstances in which 
development within the curtilage or affecting the setting of a listed building will be 
permitted. 
 
LDP Policy Env 6 (Conservation Areas - Development) sets out criteria for assessing 
development in a conservation area. 
 

 Statutory Development 

Plan Provision 

 

The site is within the City Centre, Old Town 

Conservation Area and Edinburgh World Heritage Site 

as defined by the adopted Local Development Plan. 

 

 

 Date registered 22 October 2021 

 

 

 

 

Drawing numbers/Scheme 01-02, 

 

 

 

Scheme 1 
 

 

Page 68



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 13 of 15 21/05625/FUL 

LDP Policy Del 2 (City Centre) sets criteria for assessing development in the city 
centre. 
 
LDP Policy Des 4 (Development Design - Impact on Setting) sets criteria for assessing 
the impact of development design against its setting. 
 
LDP Policy Des 5 (Development Design - Amenity) sets criteria for assessing amenity.  
 
LDP Policy Hou 7 (Inappropriate Uses in Residential Areas) establishes a presumption 
against development which would have an unacceptable effect on the living conditions 
of nearby residents. 
 
Relevant Non-Statutory Guidelines 
 
Non-statutory guidelines  'LISTED BUILDINGS AND CONSERVATION AREAS' 
provides guidance on repairing, altering or extending listed buildings and unlisted 
buildings in conservation areas. 
 
Other Relevant policy guidance 
 
The Old Town Conservation Area Character Appraisal emphasises the survival of 
the original medieval street pattern; the wealth of important landmark buildings; the 
survival of an outstanding collection of archaeological remains, medieval buildings, and 
17th-century town houses; the consistent and harmonious height and mass of 
buildings; the importance of stone as a construction material for both buildings and the 
public realm; the vitality and variety of different uses; and the continuing presence of a 
residential community 
 

Page 69



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 14 of 15 21/05625/FUL 

Appendix 1 
 
Application for Planning Permission 21/05625/FUL 
at 61 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BS. 
Planning permission is sought for outdoor seating area 
comprising of timber platform and fence with parasols. 
 
Consultations 

 
 
Environmental Protection 
 
Environmental Protection cannot support this application and recommend refusal. 
 
The application proposes the erection of an outdoor customer seating area for use by 
patrons of an associated restaurant premises at 45 Cockburn Street. The customer 
area is to be situated on the road-side adjacent to the footpath. The associated 
premises fronts onto Cockburn Street adjacent to several other commercial and retail 
uses. Some of the existing commercial units on Cockburn Street already have existing 
outdoor seating areas for customers. 
 
Environmental Protection considered that this application could be supported with a 
robust condition restricting hours of operation of the proposed seating area. However, 
discussions with Planning have confirmed that the recommended condition regarding 
time restriction is unlikely to pass the 6 tests required of any planning condition and is 
therefore not a condition that can be applied to the outdoor seating area.  
 
With this in mind, and the fact that the area could therefore be utilised within the more 
noise sensitive times of the night, Environmental Protection has concerns that the use 
of the external dining area may generate noise, impact upon residential amenity and 
cause noise complaints to be received by the Council. 
 
Therefore, as there appears to be no other avenue available to control the hours of use 
of the outdoor seating area, Environmental Protection is unable to support the 
application and recommends it be refused. 
 
Transportation 
 
The application should be refused. 
 
Reasons: 
1. The proposals seek to occupy a section of the carriageway that forms part of the 
adopted road; 
2. The placement of a structure on a road or footway is considered detrimental to road 
safety; 
3. The structure results in the loss of parking and/or loading bays to the detriment of 
disabled drivers/passengers, residents, visitors and business operations and will likely 
lead to indiscriminate parking nearby; 

Page 70



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 15 of 15 21/05625/FUL 

4. The presence of a structure on a road or footway has an adverse impact on various 
road operations (road maintenance, gully cleaning, gritting, street cleansing, events 
etc) and obligations (utilities access etc); 
5. The operation of the facility may result in restrictions on the adjacent footway which 
is contrary to the Councils Equal Pavements Pledge. 
 
Notes - 
1. The Council as Roads Authority has confirmed that written approval, as required 
under Section 59 of the Roads (Scotland) Act 1984, will not be given for these 
structures. 
 
 
 
 
 

Location Plan 

 
 

© Crown Copyright and database right 2014. All rights reserved. Ordnance Survey License number 100023420 

END 

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 1 of 15      21/05216/FUL 

Development Management Sub Committee 

Wednesday 19 January 2022 

 

 

 

Application for Planning Permission 21/05216/FUL 
at 63 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BS. 
Planning permission is sought for outdoor seating area 
comprising of timber platform and fence with parasols. 

 

 

Summary 

 
As a result of its location, form and design, the proposal does not comply with Sections 
59 and 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997.  
 
The proposal is not acceptable in principle and would be harmful to the Edinburgh 
World Heritage Site and the Old Town Conservation Area. The proposal is likely to lead 
to an unacceptable impact on residential amenity and is not acceptable in terms of its 
impact on road safety. It fails to comply with the Local Development Plan, associated 
guidance and the principles of sustainability as set out by Scottish Planning Policy. 
There are no material considerations that outweigh this conclusion and refusal is 
recommended. 
 
Notwithstanding the reason for decision as set out above, no planning enforcement 
action will be taken until a decision of Planning Committee on 23 February 2022 on a 
proposed approach to planning enforcement for temporary structures for hospitality. 
 
 

 

 Item number  

 Report number 

 

 

 

 

 

Wards B11 - City Centre 

Page 73

Agenda Item 4.5



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 2 of 15      21/05216/FUL 

Links 

Policies and guidance for 

this application 

CRPOLD, LDPP, LEN01, LEN03, LEN06, LDEL02, 

LDES04, LDES05, LHOU07, NSG, NSLBCA, OTH,  

Page 74

file:///C:/uniform/temp/uf04148.rtf%23Policies
file:///C:/uniform/temp/uf04148.rtf%23Policies


 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022   Page 3 of 15 21/05216/FUL 

Report 

Application for Planning Permission 21/05216/FUL 
at 63 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BS. 
Planning permission is sought for outdoor seating area 
comprising of timber platform and fence with parasols. 
 

Recommendations  

1.1 It is recommended that this application be Refused for the reasons below. 

Background 

2.1 Site description 
 
The site is an area of adopted road located adjacent to Laila’s Bistro at 63 Cockburn 
Street (B listed; reference: LB30084; listing date: 12/12/1974).  
 
Cockburn Street is an important Victorian Street within the Old Town. It connects 
Waverley Station and Princes Street Gardens to the Royal Mile and constitutes a 
strategic link between the Old Town and the New Town. It is both a residential and 
commercial street, and all buildings on the street are statutorily listed, being a mix of 
both 'A' and 'B' listed buildings. It has a unique townscape; tall narrow buildings frame 
the street and give it a strong sense of enclosure as well as continuous active frontage. 
It is also a serpentine street characterised by its sinuous path sloping up towards the 
Royal Mile. Whilst the response of urban form to topography is a distinctive feature of 
the Old Town of Edinburgh in general, it is well exemplified in Cockburn Street.  
 
The site is located within the Edinburgh World Heritage Site. 
This application site is located within the Old Town Conservation Area. 
 
2.2 Site History 
 
Other seating applications on High Street 
 
25 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 148 High Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1QS 
(application reference 21/05674/FUL). 
 
26 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 231 High Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1PE 
(application reference 21/05691/FUL). 
 
24 November 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area at 119 High 
Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1SG (application reference 21/06213/FUL) 
 
 
 

Page 75



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 4 of 15 21/05216/FUL 

Other seating applications on Cockburn Street 
 
14 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 19 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BP 
(application reference 21/05388/FUL). 
 
22 November 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with clear polycarbonate at 34 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, 
EH1 1PB (application reference 21/06159/FUL). 
 
22 November 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with clear polycarbonate at 45 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, 
EH1 1BS (application reference 21/06060/FUL). 
 
22 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 61 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BS 
(application reference 21/05625/FUL). 
 
27 October 2021 - Planning application made to erect outdoor seating area at 8 - 10 
North Bridge Arcade, Edinburgh, EH1 1QL (application reference 21/05721/FUL) 
 
5 November 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fencing with timber rain-screen covers over at 73 Cockburn Street, 
Edinburgh, EH1 1BU (application reference 21/05905/FUL). 
 
Other seating applications on Victoria Street 
 
15 October 2021 - Planning application made for erection of decking area on roadway 
in front of applicant premises for use as an external dining area (subject to Roads 
Department Permits and Licensing) at 36 - 38 Victoria Street, Edinburgh, EH1 2JW 
(application reference 21/05431/FUL). 

Main report 

3.1 Description of the Proposal 
 
Planning permission is sought for the permanent installation of a decked outdoor 
seating area. The seating area would be nine metres in length and two metres wide, 
measuring 90cm in height. The decking would be finished in timber with parasols for 
coverage. The outdoor seating area is to be used by customers of Laila's Bistro. 
 
3.2 Determining Issues 
 
Section 25 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 states - Where, in 
making any determination under the planning Acts, regard is to be had to the 
development plan, the determination shall be made in accordance with the plan unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
 
 
 

Page 76



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 5 of 15 21/05216/FUL 

 Section 59 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997 states that in considering whether to grant planning permission for development 
which affects a listed building or its setting, a planning authority shall have special 
regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of 
special architectural or historic interest which it possesses. 
 
Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997 states - special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or 
enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area.  
 
Do the proposals comply with the development plan? 
 
If the proposals do comply with the development plan, are there any compelling 
reasons for not approving them? 
 
If the proposals do not comply with the development plan, are there any compelling 
reasons for approving them? 
 
3.3 Assessment  
To address these determining issues, the Committee needs to consider whether: 
 

a) the proposal will have an acceptable impact on built heritage; 
b) the proposal is acceptable in principle; 
c) the proposal will have any adverse impact on residential amenity; 
d) the proposal will have an adverse impact on road safety; 
e) other material consideration and 
f) public comments have been addressed. 

 
a) Built Heritage 
 
Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997 (the LBCA Act) states that special attention shall be paid to the desirability of 
preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area. If there 
is harm to a Conservation Area as a result of development, there is a strong 
presumption against granting planning permission. This presumption can only be 
overcome if there are advantages to the scheme a its location which outweigh the harm 
and justify granting planning permission. If such advantages are found, is necessary to 
consider then whether these can only be delivered at the development's particular 
location.  
 
The Old Town Conservation Area Character Appraisal states that:  
 
The provision of consistent and high quality natural materials, street furniture and 
lighting in the public realm is a critical factor in uniting and complementing the built 
heritage. Natural stone paving slabs and stone setts have historically been used for 
street surfaces for many centuries. The historic paving displays a tradition of high 
quality workmanship, attention to detail and the use of robust and durable materials. 
 
 
 
 

Page 77



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 6 of 15 21/05216/FUL 

It notes that: 
 
Cockburn Street has thirty Baronial blocks built between 1859 and 1864 along a 
serpentine curve to provide access to Waverley Station from the Old Town and clear 
the densely packed backlands of existing closes. The Edinburgh Railway Station Act, of 
1853, which authorised its construction, specified the need to preserve the architectural 
style and antique character of the locality to secure harmony between the new 
buildings and those of the Old Town. The variegated Baronial architecture 
acknowledged the steep gradient of the street, recreated some of the intimacy of an old 
Edinburgh close and provided a new architectural gateway to the Old Town. 
 
The proposal is for a deck that is surrounded by a timber fence, with parasol structures 
to provide a covering. It has a utilitarian character that does not demonstrate a high 
standard of design, nor does it utilise materials appropriate to the historic environment. 
Seen within the this uniquely designed street, the proposed structure detracts from the 
visual quality of the street as a whole. It therefore harms the character and appearance 
of the Conservation Area. The presumption against granting planning permission is 
therefore engaged. 
 
The primary advantage to this installation is that it provides additional space for the 
business to enable social distancing (as a result of the coronavirus pandemic). Its use 
will help support the business and bring some economic benefit.  However, only limited 
weight can be attached to these benefits as this application is for a permanent 
installation. The benefits do not outweigh the harm identified above.  
 
The proposal therefore does not comply with Section 64 of the LBCA Act.   
 
As a result of this, the proposal does not comply with Edinburgh Local Development 
Plan (LDP) Policy Env 6 Conservation Areas - Development or LDP Policy Des 4 
Development Design - Impact on Setting. 
 
Section 59 of the LBCA Act states that in considering whether to grant planning 
permission for development which affects a listed building or its setting, a planning 
authority or the Secretary of State, as the case may be, shall have special regard to the 
desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of special 
architectural or historic interest which it possesses. The impact on the setting of 
surrounding listed buildings needs to be considered.  
 
The setting of these buildings includes the street itself. As a result of the impacts 
described above, there would be harm to the setting of the listed buildings that are in 
close proximity to the structure. For similar reasons as described above, the proposal 
breaches the requirements of section 59 of the LBCA Act. Similarly, the advantages 
described above, do not outweigh the harm. The proposal is therefore not acceptable in 
relation to LDP Policy Env 3 - Listed Buildings Setting.   
 
As well as the conservation area, and listed buildings, the proposal's impact on the Old 
and New Towns of Edinburgh World Heritage Site also needs to be considered.  
 
The proposed development would harm the qualities which justified the inscription of 
the World Heritage Site and would have a detrimental impact on the site's setting. 

Page 78



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 7 of 15 21/05216/FUL 

The use of low quality materials, not in keeping with the area, and poor design would 
negatively impact the outstanding universal value of the World Heritage Site. The 
proposal would essentially restrict public space and in doing so upset the balance and 
uniqueness of the historic streets. 
 
In summary, the proposal is not acceptable in relation to Sections 59 and 64 of the 
LBCA Act as a result of the harm to the setting of listed buildings and to the character 
and appearance of the conservation area. As a result, it does not comply with LDP 
Policies, Env 3, Env 6 and Des 4. It would harm the World Heritage Site contrary to 
LDP Policy Env 1. 
 
b) Principle 
 
The site is located within the city centre where LDP Policy Del 2 applies. The proposal 
would be detrimental to the character and attractiveness of the city centre by virtue of 
the structure's poor quality design and use of unsympathetic materials. Furthermore, 
the siting of the structure on a public road would impact on the vitality and accessibility 
of the city centre by cluttering up the street and creating difficulties for access. 
 
As a result of its impact on the character and attractiveness of the street, the proposal 
fails to comply with LDP Policy Del 2 City Centre. 
 
c) Residential Amenity 
 
The proposal is likely to result in an adverse impact on local residential amenity. 
Although it is a busy area with a vibrant night-time economy, the permanent addition of 
a decked outdoor seating area would alter the character of the area though creating a 
formalised arrangement that is conducive to the congregation of groups.   
 
Environmental Protection has objected to the proposal and consider that it could lead to 
a noise nuisance that would be detrimental to the living standards of local residents. 
Discussion between Environmental Protection and Planning explored the potential for a 
condition to control the use. It is not however appropriate to restrict the hours of 
operation of one part of a premises with the remainder having different hours of 
operation. Therefore, a condition is not appropriate.  
 
The proposal is likely to be detrimental to residential amenity and fails to comply with 
LDP Policies Des 5 Development Design - Amenity and Hou 7 Inappropriate Uses in 
Residential Areas. 
 
d) Road Safety 
 
Following consultation, Transportation has recommended refusal as the proposal would 
be detrimental to road safety. The permanent occupancy of a section of adopted road 
would not be supported. Furthermore, the structure would result in the loss of parking 
and loading bays to the detriment of disabled drivers and passengers as well as 
residents, visitors and business operations. The presence of a structure on the road 
would have an adverse impact on various road operations (road maintenance, gully 
cleaning, gritting, street cleansing, events etc) and obligations (utilities access etc).  
 
The proposal would be detrimental to road safety.  

Page 79



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 8 of 15 21/05216/FUL 

 
e) Other Material Considerations 
 
Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) presumption in favour of sustainable development is a 
significant material consideration due to the development plan being over five years 
old. The planning system should support economically, environmentally and socially 
sustainable places by enabling development that balances the costs and benefits of a 
proposal over the longer term. The aim is to achieve the right development in the right 
place; it is not to allow development at any cost. SPP sets out thirteen principles of 
sustainable development. The proposal is assessed against the relevant principles 
below. 
 

− giving due weight to net economic benefit 
Although it is acknowledged that there may be economic benefit to the outdoor seating 
area, this is outweighed by the issues set out above relating to the historic 
environment, residential amenity and road safety.  
 

− supporting good design and the six qualities of successful places 
As set out above the structure is of a poor-quality design and out of keeping with the 
character of the area. The proposal does not comply with the six qualities of successful 
places as it would impact on the ability to move around, would not be welcoming and 
due to the potential for nuisance would not be safe and welcoming. 
 

− improving health and well-being by offering opportunities for social interaction 
and physical activity, including sport and recreation 

The proposals could offer opportunities for social interaction, particularly where 
Coronavirus is concerned (this is discussed further below), however this does not 
outweigh the impact on the historic environment, residential amenity and road safety. 
 

− protecting, enhancing and promoting access to cultural heritage, including the 
historic environment 

The proposal would have a negative impact on the outstanding universal value of the 
Edinburgh World Heritage Site as well as on the character and appearance of the Old 
Town Conservation Area. 
 

− avoiding over-development, protecting the amenity of new and existing 
development and considering the implications of development for water, air and 
soil quality 

The proposal is likely to result in an adverse impact on the amenity of local residents. 
 
The proposal does not comply with the relevant principles of sustainable development 
as set out in Scottish Planning Policy. 
 
Coronavirus Pandemic 
 
Although there is an understanding that a flexible approach is required given the fast-
changing nature of the global pandemic and that it continues to impact on hospitality 
businesses, the application seeks permission for the permanent siting of the structure. 
It should be noted that the recent letter from the Scottish Government Chief Planner 
has stated that a relaxed approach to planning enforcement should remain in place 
until September 2022.  

Page 80



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 9 of 15 21/05216/FUL 

A report will be brought to Planning Committee on 23 February 2022 which will set out 
a proposed approach to planning enforcement for temporary structures for hospitality.  
This will enable Planning Committee to decide on the extent of relaxation to planning 
enforcement for the months ahead.  
 
Given the current restrictions on social distancing etc remain in place, if the application 
is refused, the Chief Planning Officer would not instigate any planning enforcement 
action until further consideration has been given to enforcement by Planning 
Committee on 23 February 2022.   
 
Consideration has been given to whether a temporary permission could be granted by 
means of a planning condition to restrict the duration of the operation. However, as the 
length of coronavirus restrictions is unknown, the approach to enforcement to 23 
February with subsequent Planning Committee oversight provides a better, more 
flexible framework for continued use of this installation.  
 
f) Public Comments 
 
Six letters of representation have been received. Of these, five object to the proposal 
and one makes neutral comments. 
 
Material Considerations 

− Amenity: this has been addressed in section 3.3(c); 

− Design: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a) and (b); 

− Privatisation of public space: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a); 

− Impact on Conservation Area: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a); 

− Impact on World Heritage Site: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a) 

− Road safety: this has been addressed in section 3.3(d). 
 
Conclusion 
 
As a result of its location, form and design, the proposal does not comply with Sections 
59 and 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997.  
 
The proposal is not acceptable in principle and would be harmful to the Edinburgh 
World Heritage Site and the Old Town Conservation Area. The proposal is likely to lead 
to an unacceptable impact on residential amenity and is not acceptable in terms of its 
impact on road safety. It fails to comply with the Local Development Plan, associated 
guidance and the principles of sustainability as set out by Scottish Planning Policy. 
There are no material considerations that outweigh this conclusion and refusal is 
recommended. 
 
Notwithstanding the reason for decision as set out above, no planning enforcement 
action will be taken until a decision of Planning Committee on 23 February 2022 on a 
proposed approach to planning enforcement for temporary structures for hospitality 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 81



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 10 of 15 21/05216/FUL 

It is recommended that this application be Refused for the reasons below. 
 
3.4 Conditions/reasons/informatives 
 
Reasons:- 
 
1. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Env 1 World Heritage Sites as 

the proposed development would harm the qualities which justified the 
inscription of the Old and New Towns of Edinburgh as a World Heritage Site and 
would have a detrimental impact on the site's setting. 

 
2. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Env 6 Conservation Areas - 

Development as the proposal would not preserve or enhance the special 
character or appearance of the Old Town Conservation Area. 

 
3. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Des 5 Development Design - 

Amenity as it is likely to adversely impact on the amenity of neighbouring 
properties. 

 
4. The proposal's adverse impact on setting of listed buildings and the conservation 

area means it does not comply with the requirements of Sections 59 and 64 of 
the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 1997. 

 
5. The proposal will have a negative impact on road safety as it would result in the 

permanent occupancy of a section of adopted road. 
 
6. The proposal fails to comply with the principles of sustainability as set out by 

Scottish Planning Policy. 
 
7. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Hou 7 Inappropriate Uses in 

Residential Areas as it is likely to have a materially detrimental 
effect on the living conditions of nearby residents. 

 
 

Financial impact  

4.1 The financial impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
In general, in respect of on carriageway installations, any loss of parking income may 
be mitigated by income from tables and chair licences.   

Risk, Policy, compliance and governance impact 

5.1 Provided planning applications are determined in accordance with statutory 
legislation, the level of risk is low. 

Equalities impact  

6.1 The equalities impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
The application has been assessed and has no impact in terms of equalities or human 
rights. 

Page 82



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 11 of 15 21/05216/FUL 

Sustainability impact  

7.1 The sustainability impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
This application is not subject to the sustainability requirements of the Edinburgh 
Design Guidance. 

Consultation and engagement  

8.1 Pre-Application Process 
 
There is no pre-application process history. 
 
8.2 Publicity summary of representations and Community Council comments 
 
Following statutory neighbour notification and advertisement in the Edinburgh Evening 
News, six letters of representation have been received. 

Background reading/external references 

• To view details of the application, go to  

• Planning and Building Standards online services 

• Planning guidelines  

• Conservation Area Character Appraisals  

• Edinburgh Local Development Plan  

• Scottish Planning Policy 

Page 83

https://citydev-portal.edinburgh.gov.uk/idoxpa-web/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/planningguidelines
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/characterappraisals
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/localdevelopmentplan
http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Topics/Built-Environment/planning/Policy


 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 12 of 15 21/05216/FUL 

 

 

 
David Givan 
Chief Planning Officer 
PLACE 
The City of Edinburgh Council 
 
 
Contact: Murray Couston, Planning Officer 

E-mail:murray.couston@edinburgh.gov.uk  

Links - Policies 

 
Relevant Policies: 
 
The Old Town Conservation Area Character Appraisal emphasises the survival of 
the original medieval street pattern; the wealth of important landmark buildings; the 
survival of an outstanding collection of archaeological remains, medieval buildings, and 
17th-century town houses; the consistent and harmonious height and mass of 
buildings; the importance of stone as a construction material for both buildings and the 
public realm; the vitality and variety of different uses; and the continuing presence of a 
residential community 
 
Relevant policies of the Local Development Plan. 
 
LDP Policy Env 1 (World Heritage Site) protects the quality of the World Heritage Site 
and its setting. 
 

 Statutory Development 

Plan Provision 

 

The site is within the City Centre, Old Town 

Conservation Area and Edinburgh World Heritage Site 

as defined by the adopted Local Development Plan. 

 

 

 Date registered 5 October 2021 

 

 

 

 

Drawing numbers/Scheme 01-02, 

 

 

 

Scheme 1 
 

 

Page 84



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 13 of 15 21/05216/FUL 

LDP Policy Env 3 (Listed Buildings - Setting) identifies the circumstances in which 
development within the curtilage or affecting the setting of a listed building will be 
permitted. 
 
LDP Policy Env 6 (Conservation Areas - Development) sets out criteria for assessing 
development in a conservation area. 
 
LDP Policy Del 2 (City Centre) sets criteria for assessing development in the city 
centre. 
 
LDP Policy Des 4 (Development Design - Impact on Setting) sets criteria for assessing 
the impact of development design against its setting. 
 
LDP Policy Des 5 (Development Design - Amenity) sets criteria for assessing amenity.  
 
LDP Policy Hou 7 (Inappropriate Uses in Residential Areas) establishes a presumption 
against development which would have an unacceptable effect on the living conditions 
of nearby residents. 
 
Relevant Non-Statutory Guidelines 
 
Non-statutory guidelines  'LISTED BUILDINGS AND CONSERVATION AREAS' 
provides guidance on repairing, altering or extending listed buildings and unlisted 
buildings in conservation areas. 
 
Other Relevant policy guidance 
 

Page 85



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 14 of 15 21/05216/FUL 

Appendix 1 
 
Application for Planning Permission 21/05216/FUL 
at 63 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BS. 
Planning permission is sought for outdoor seating area 
comprising of timber platform and fence with parasols. 
 
Consultations 

 
 
Environmental Protection 
 
The application is to install a decking area on the roadway in front of the application 
premises, Laila's at 63 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh; to use as an external dining area. 
 
Environmental Protection have concerns that the use of external dining areas; 
especially late at night, may generate noise and complaints will be received.  The 
premises is licensed and their operating hours are likely to change throughout the year, 
such as during the August festival. 
 
Discussions have taken place with Planning who advised that it is not possible to place 
time restrictions on only part of the premises, namely the use of the decked external 
dining area.  Therefore, it is not possible to recommend a time restriction as a planning 
condition, which would alleviate some of the concerns. 
 
Planning consent would allow an external dining area permanently with no controls in 
place to protect the amenity of residents.  A future operator could operate significantly 
later into the evening than the current business may do. There have also been media 
reports of these dining areas being abused after business trading hours, late at night by 
groups of people, creating noise and disturbance. 
 
There are no other avenues open to ensuring that the decked area does not get used 
during the more sensitive night-time hours. Therefore, on balance Environmental 
Protection is unable to support the application and recommends it is refused. 
 
Transportation 
 
The application should be refused. 
 
Reasons: 
1. The proposals seek to occupy a section of the carriageway that forms part of the 
adopted road; 
2. The placement of a structure on a road or footway is considered detrimental to road 
safety; 
3. The structure results in the loss of parking and/or loading bays to the detriment of 
disabled drivers/passengers, residents, visitors and business operations and will likely 
lead to indiscriminate parking nearby; 

Page 86



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 15 of 15 21/05216/FUL 

4. The presence of a structure on a road or footway has an adverse impact on various 
road operations (road maintenance, gully cleaning, gritting, street cleansing, events 
etc) and obligations (utilities access etc); 
5. The operation of the facility may result in restrictions on the adjacent footway which 
is contrary to the Councils Equal Pavements Pledge. 
 
Notes - 
1. The Council as Roads Authority has confirmed that written approval, as required 
under Section 59 of the Roads (Scotland) Act 1984, will not be given for these 
structures. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Location Plan 

 
 

© Crown Copyright and database right 2014. All rights reserved. Ordnance Survey License number 100023420 

END 

Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 1 of 15      21/05905/FUL 

Development Management Sub Committee 

Wednesday 19 January 2022 

 

 

 

Application for Planning Permission 21/05905/FUL 
at 73 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BU. 
Planning permission is sought for outdoor seating area 
comprising of timber platform and fencing with timber rain-
screen covers over. 

 

 

Summary 

 
As a result of its location, form and design, the proposal does not comply with Sections 
59 and 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997.  
 
The proposal is not acceptable in principle and would be harmful to the Edinburgh 
World Heritage Site and the Old Town Conservation Area. The proposal is likely to lead 
to an unacceptable impact on residential amenity and is not acceptable in terms of its 
impact on road safety. It fails to comply with the Local Development Plan, associated 
guidance and the principles of sustainability as set out by Scottish Planning Policy. 
There are no material considerations that outweigh this conclusion and refusal is 
recommended. 
 
Notwithstanding the reason for decision as set out above, no planning enforcement 
action will be taken until a decision of Planning Committee on 23 February 2022 on a 
proposed approach to planning enforcement for temporary structures for hospitality. 
 
 

 

 Item number  

 Report number 

 

 

 

 

 

Wards B11 - City Centre 

Page 89

Agenda Item 4.6



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 2 of 15      21/05905/FUL 

Links 

Policies and guidance for 

this application 

LDPP, LEN01, LEN03, LEN06, LDEL02, LDES04, 

LDES05, LHOU07, NSG, NSLBCA, OTH, CRPOLD,  

Page 90

file:///C:/uniform/temp/uf04148.rtf%23Policies
file:///C:/uniform/temp/uf04148.rtf%23Policies


 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022   Page 3 of 15 21/05905/FUL 

Report 

Application for Planning Permission 21/05905/FUL 
at 73 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BU. 
Planning permission is sought for outdoor seating area 
comprising of timber platform and fencing with timber rain-
screen covers over. 
 

Recommendations  

1.1 It is recommended that this application be Refused for the reasons below. 

Background 

2.1 Site description 
 
The site is an area of adopted road located adjacent to The Scotsman Lounge at 73 
Cockburn Street (B listed; reference: LB30117; listing date: 12/12/1974).  
 
Cockburn Street is an important Victorian Street within the Old Town. It connects 
Waverley Station and Princes Street Gardens to the Royal Mile and constitutes a 
strategic link between the Old Town and the New Town. It is both a residential and 
commercial street, and all buildings on the street are statutorily listed, being a mix of 
both 'A' and 'B' listed buildings. It has a unique townscape; tall narrow buildings frame 
the street and give it a strong sense of enclosure as well as continuous active frontage. 
It is also a serpentine street characterised by its sinuous path sloping up towards the 
Royal Mile. Whilst the response of urban form to topography is a distinctive feature of 
the Old Town of Edinburgh in general, it is well exemplified in Cockburn Street.  
 
The site is located within the Edinburgh World Heritage Site. 
This application site is located within the Old Town Conservation Area. 
 
2.2 Site History 
 
Other seating applications on High Street 
 
25 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 148 High Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1QS 
(application reference 21/05674/FUL). 
 
26 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 231 High Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1PE 
(application reference 21/05691/FUL). 
 
24 November 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area at 119 High 
Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1SG (application reference 21/06213/FUL) 
 

Page 91



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 4 of 15 21/05905/FUL 

Other seating applications on Cockburn Street 
 
14 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 19 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BP 
(application reference 21/05388/FUL). 
 
22 November 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with clear polycarbonate at 34 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, 
EH1 1PB (application reference 21/06159/FUL). 
 
22 November 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with clear polycarbonate at 45 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, 
EH1 1BS (application reference 21/06060/FUL). 
 
22 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 61 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BS 
(application reference 21/05625/FUL). 
 
5 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 63 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BS 
(application reference 21/05216/FUL). 
 
27 October 2021 - Planning application made to erect outdoor seating area at 8 - 10 
North Bridge Arcade, Edinburgh, EH1 1QL (application reference 21/05721/FUL) 
 
Other seating applications on Victoria Street 
 
15 October 2021 - Planning application made for erection of decking area on roadway 
in front of applicant premises for use as an external dining area (subject to Roads 
Department Permits and Licensing) at 36 - 38 Victoria Street, Edinburgh, EH1 2JW 
(application reference 21/05431/FUL). 

Main report 

3.1 Description of the Proposal 
 
Planning permission is sought for the permanent installation of a decked outdoor 
seating area with a timber roof. The seating area would be fifteen metres in length and 
2.4 metres wide, measuring approximately 2.7 metres in height. The decking would be 
finished in timber. The outdoor seating area is to be used by customers of The 
Scotsman Lounge. 
 
Notwithstanding the above, the structure has been built. Instead of partially open sides, 
three of these are now finished up to roof level with solid boarding. 
 
3.2 Determining Issues 
 
Section 25 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 states - Where, in 
making any determination under the planning Acts, regard is to be had to the 
development plan, the determination shall be made in accordance with the plan unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 

Page 92



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 5 of 15 21/05905/FUL 

Section 59 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997 states that in considering whether to grant planning permission for development 
which affects a listed building or its setting, a planning authority shall have special 
regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of 
special architectural or historic interest which it possesses. 
 
Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997 states - special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or 
enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area.  
 
Do the proposals comply with the development plan? 
 
If the proposals do comply with the development plan, are there any compelling 
reasons for not approving them? 
 
If the proposals do not comply with the development plan, are there any compelling 
reasons for approving them? 
 
3.3 Assessment  
To address these determining issues, the Committee needs to consider whether: 
 

a) the proposal will have an acceptable impact on built heritage; 
b) the proposal is acceptable in principle; 
c) the proposal will have any adverse impact on residential amenity; 
d) the proposal will have an adverse impact on road safety; 
e) other material considerations and 
f) public comments have been addressed. 

 
a) Built Heritage 
 
Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997 (the LBCA Act) states that special attention shall be paid to the desirability of 
preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area. If there 
is harm to a Conservation Area as a result of development, there is a strong 
presumption against granting planning permission. This presumption can only be 
overcome if there are advantages to the scheme a its location which outweigh the harm 
and justify granting planning permission. If such advantages are found, is necessary to 
consider then whether these can only be delivered at the development's particular 
location.  
 
The Old Town Conservation Area Character Appraisal states that:  
 
The provision of consistent and high quality natural materials, street furniture and 
lighting in the public realm is a critical factor in uniting and complementing the built 
heritage. Natural stone paving slabs and stone setts have historically been used for 
street surfaces for many centuries. The historic paving displays a tradition of high 
quality workmanship, attention to detail and the use of robust and durable materials. 
 
 
 
 

Page 93



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 6 of 15 21/05905/FUL 

It notes that: 
 
Cockburn Street has thirty Baronial blocks built between 1859 and 1864 along a 
serpentine curve to provide access to Waverley Station from the Old Town and clear 
the densely packed backlands of existing closes. The Edinburgh Railway Station Act, of 
1853, which authorised its construction, specified the need to preserve the architectural 
style and antique character of the locality to secure harmony between the new 
buildings and those of the Old Town. The variegated Baronial architecture 
acknowledged the steep gradient of the street, recreated some of the intimacy of an old 
Edinburgh close and provided a new architectural gateway to the Old Town. 
 
The proposal is for a deck that is surrounded by a timber fence, with a timber roof. It 
has a utilitarian character that does not demonstrate a high standard of design, nor 
does it utilise materials appropriate to the historic environment. The as built solid sides 
add to its visual prominence. Seen within the this uniquely designed street, the 
proposed structure detracts from the visual quality of the street as a whole. It therefore 
harms the character and appearance of the Conservation Area. The presumption 
against granting planning permission is therefore engaged. 
 
The primary advantage to this installation is that it provides additional space for the 
business to enable social distancing (as a result of the coronavirus pandemic). Its use 
will help support the business and bring some economic benefit.  However, only limited 
weight can be attached to these benefits as this application is for a permanent 
installation. The benefits do not outweigh the harm identified above.  
 
The proposal therefore does not comply with Section 64 of the LBCA Act.   
 
As a result of this, the proposal does not comply with Edinburgh Local Development 
Plan (LDP) Policy Env 6 Conservation Areas - Development or LDP Policy Des 4 
Development Design - Impact on Setting. 
 
Section 59 of the LBCA Act states that in considering whether to grant planning 
permission for development which affects a listed building or its setting, a planning 
authority or the Secretary of State, as the case may be, shall have special regard to the 
desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of special 
architectural or historic interest which it possesses. The impact on the setting of 
surrounding listed buildings needs to be considered.  
 
The setting of these buildings includes the street itself. As a result of the impacts 
described above, there would be harm to the setting of the listed buildings that are in 
close proximity to the structure. For similar reasons as described above, the proposal 
breaches the requirements of section 59 of the LBCA Act. Similarly, the advantages 
described above, do not outweigh the harm. The proposal is therefore not acceptable in 
relation to LDP Policy Env 3 - Listed Buildings Setting.   
 
As well as the conservation area, and listed buildings, the proposal's impact on the Old 
and New Towns of Edinburgh World Heritage Site also needs to be considered.  
 
The proposed development would harm the qualities which justified the inscription of 
the World Heritage Site and would have a detrimental impact on the site's setting.  

Page 94



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 7 of 15 21/05905/FUL 

The use of low quality materials, not in keeping with the area, and poor design would 
negatively impact the outstanding universal value of the World Heritage Site. The 
proposal would essentially restrict public space and in doing so upset the balance and 
uniqueness of the historic streets. 
 
In summary, the proposal is not acceptable in relation to Sections 59 and 64 of the 
LBCA Act as a result of the harm to the setting of listed buildings and to the character 
and appearance of the conservation area. As a result, it does not comply with LDP 
Policies, Env 3, Env 6 and Des 4. It would harm the World Heritage Site contrary to 
LDP Policy Env 1. 
 
b) Principle 
 
The site is located within the city centre where LDP Policy Del 2 applies. The proposal 
would be detrimental to the character and attractiveness of the city centre by virtue of 
the structure's poor quality design and use of unsympathetic materials. Furthermore, 
the siting of the structure on a public road would impact on the vitality and accessibility 
of the city centre by cluttering up the street and creating difficulties for access. 
 
As a result of its impact on the character and attractiveness of the street, the proposal 
fails to comply with LDP Policy Del 2 City Centre. 
 
c) Residential Amenity 
 
The proposal is likely to result in an adverse impact on local residential amenity. 
Although it is a busy area with a vibrant night-time economy, the permanent addition of 
a decked outdoor seating area would alter the character of the area though creating a 
formalised arrangement that is conducive to the congregation of groups.   
 
Environmental Protection has objected to the proposal and consider that it could lead to 
a noise nuisance that would be detrimental to the living standards of local residents. 
Discussion between Environmental Protection and Planning explored the potential for a 
condition to control the use. It is not however appropriate to restrict the hours of 
operation of one part of a premises with the remainder having different hours of 
operation. Therefore, a condition is not appropriate.  
 
The proposal is likely to be detrimental to residential amenity and fails to comply with 
LDP Policies Des 5 Development Design - Amenity and Hou 7 Inappropriate Uses in 
Residential Areas. 
 
d) Road Safety 
 
Following consultation, Transportation has recommended refusal as the proposal would 
be detrimental to road safety. The permanent occupancy of a section of adopted road 
would not be supported. Furthermore, the structure would result in the loss of parking 
and loading bays to the detriment of disabled drivers and passengers as well as 
residents, visitors and business operations. The presence of a structure on the road 
would have an adverse impact on various road operations (road maintenance, gully 
cleaning, gritting, street cleansing, events etc) and obligations (utilities access etc).  
 
The proposal would be detrimental to road safety.  

Page 95



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 8 of 15 21/05905/FUL 

 
e) Other Material Considerations 
 
Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) presumption in favour of sustainable development is a 
significant material consideration due to the development plan being over five years 
old. The planning system should support economically, environmentally and socially 
sustainable places by enabling development that balances the costs and benefits of a 
proposal over the longer term. The aim is to achieve the right development in the right 
place; it is not to allow development at any cost. SPP sets out thirteen principles of 
sustainable development. The proposal is assessed against the relevant principles 
below. 
 

− giving due weight to net economic benefit 
Although it is acknowledged that there may be economic benefit to the outdoor seating 
area, this is outweighed by the issues set out above relating to the historic 
environment, residential amenity and road safety.  
 

− supporting good design and the six qualities of successful places 
As set out above the structure is of a poor-quality design and out of keeping with the 
character of the area. The proposal does not comply with the six qualities of successful 
places as it would impact on the ability to move around, would not be welcoming and 
due to the potential for nuisance would not be safe and welcoming. 
 

− improving health and well-being by offering opportunities for social interaction 
and physical activity, including sport and recreation 

The proposals could offer opportunities for social interaction, particularly where 
Coronavirus is concerned (this is discussed further below), however this does not 
outweigh the impact on the historic environment, residential amenity and road safety. 
 

− protecting, enhancing and promoting access to cultural heritage, including the 
historic environment 

The proposal would have a negative impact on the outstanding universal value of the 
Edinburgh World Heritage Site as well as on the character and appearance of the Old 
Town Conservation Area. 
 

− avoiding over-development, protecting the amenity of new and existing 
development and considering the implications of development for water, air and 
soil quality 

The proposal is likely to result in an adverse impact on the amenity of local residents. 
 
The proposal does not comply with the relevant principles of sustainable development 
as set out in Scottish Planning Policy. 
 
Coronavirus Pandemic 
 
Although there is an understanding that a flexible approach is required given the fast-
changing nature of the global pandemic and that it continues to impact on hospitality 
businesses, the application seeks permission for the permanent siting of the structure. 
It should be noted that the recent letter from the Scottish Government Chief Planner 
has stated that a relaxed approach to planning enforcement should remain in place 
until September 2022.  

Page 96



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 9 of 15 21/05905/FUL 

A report will be brought to Planning Committee on 23 February 2022 which will set out 
a proposed approach to planning enforcement for temporary structures for hospitality.  
This will enable Planning Committee to decide on the extent of relaxation to planning 
enforcement for the months ahead.  
 
Given the current restrictions on social distancing etc remain in place, if the application 
is refused, the Chief Planning Officer would not instigate any planning enforcement 
action until further consideration has been given to enforcement by Planning 
Committee on 23 February 2022.   
 
Consideration has been given to whether a temporary permission could be granted by 
means of a planning condition to restrict the duration of the operation. However, as the 
length of coronavirus restrictions is unknown, the approach to enforcement to 23 
February with subsequent Planning Committee oversight provides a better, more 
flexible framework for continued use of this installation.  
 
f) Public Comments 
 
Seventeen letters of representation have been received. All representations objected to 
the proposal. 
 
Material Considerations 

− Amenity: this has been addressed in section 3.3(c); 

− Design: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a) and (b); 

− Privatisation of public space: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a); 

− Impact on Conservation Area: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a); 

− Impact on World Heritage Site: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a) 

− Road safety: this has been addressed in section 3.3(d). 
 
Conclusion 
 
As a result of its location, form and design, the proposal does not comply with Sections 
59 and 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997.  
 
The proposal is not acceptable in principle and would be harmful to the Edinburgh 
World Heritage Site and the Old Town Conservation Area. The proposal is likely to lead 
to an unacceptable impact on residential amenity and is not acceptable in terms of its 
impact on road safety. It fails to comply with the Local Development Plan, associated 
guidance and the principles of sustainability as set out by Scottish Planning Policy. 
There are no material considerations that outweigh this conclusion and refusal is 
recommended. 
 
Notwithstanding the reason for decision as set out above, no planning enforcement 
action will be taken until a decision of Planning Committee on 23 February 2022 on a 
proposed approach to planning enforcement for temporary structures for hospitality. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 97



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 10 of 15 21/05905/FUL 

It is recommended that this application be Refused for the reasons below. 
 
3.4 Conditions/reasons/informatives 
 
Reasons:- 
 
1. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Env 1 World Heritage Sites as 

the proposed development would harm the qualities which justified the 
inscription of the Old and New Towns of Edinburgh as a World Heritage Site and 
would have a detrimental impact on the site's setting. 

 
2. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Env 6 Conservation Areas - 

Development as the proposal would not preserve or enhance the special 
character or appearance of the Old Town Conservation Area. 

 
3. The proposal fails to comply with the principles of sustainability as set out by 

Scottish Planning Policy. 
 
4. The proposal's adverse impact on setting of listed buildings and the conservation 

area means it does not comply with the requirements of Sections 59 and 64 of 
the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 1997. 

 
5. The proposal will have a negative impact on road safety as it would result in the 

permanent occupancy of a section of adopted road. 
 
6. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Des 5 Development Design - 

Amenity as it is likely to adversely impact on the amenity of neighbouring 
properties. 

 
7. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Hou 7 Inappropriate Uses in 

Residential Areas as it is likely to have a materially detrimental effect on the 
living conditions of nearby residents. 

 
 

Financial impact  

4.1 The financial impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
In general, in respect of on carriageway installations, any loss of parking income may 
be mitigated by income from tables and chair licences. 

Risk, Policy, compliance and governance impact 

5.1 Provided planning applications are determined in accordance with statutory 
legislation, the level of risk is low. 

Equalities impact  

6.1 The equalities impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
The application has been assessed and has no impact in terms of equalities or human 
rights. 

Page 98



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 11 of 15 21/05905/FUL 

Sustainability impact  

7.1 The sustainability impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
This application is not subject to the sustainability requirements of the Edinburgh 
Design Guidance. 

Consultation and engagement  

8.1 Pre-Application Process 
 
There is no pre-application process history. 
 
8.2 Publicity summary of representations and Community Council comments 
 
Following statutory neighbour notification and advertisement in the Edinburgh Evening 
News, seventeen letters of representation have been received. 

Background reading/external references 

• To view details of the application go to  

• Planning and Building Standards online services 

• Planning guidelines  

• Conservation Area Character Appraisals  

• Edinburgh Local Development Plan  

• Scottish Planning Policy 

Page 99

https://citydev-portal.edinburgh.gov.uk/idoxpa-web/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/planningguidelines
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/characterappraisals
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/localdevelopmentplan
http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Topics/Built-Environment/planning/Policy


 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 12 of 15 21/05905/FUL 

 

 

 
David Givan 
Chief Planning Officer 
PLACE 
The City of Edinburgh Council 
 
 
Contact: Murray Couston, Planning Officer 

E-mail:murray.couston@edinburgh.gov.uk  

Links - Policies 

 
Relevant Policies: 
 
Relevant policies of the Local Development Plan. 
 
LDP Policy Env 1 (World Heritage Site) protects the quality of the World Heritage Site 
and its setting. 
 
LDP Policy Env 3 (Listed Buildings - Setting) identifies the circumstances in which 
development within the curtilage or affecting the setting of a listed building will be 
permitted. 
 
LDP Policy Env 6 (Conservation Areas - Development) sets out criteria for assessing 
development in a conservation area. 
 

 Statutory Development 

Plan Provision 

 

The site is within the City Centre, Old Town 

Conservation Area and Edinburgh World Heritage Site 

as defined by the adopted Local Development Plan. 

 

 

 Date registered 5 November 2021 

 

 

 

 

Drawing numbers/Scheme 01-02, 

 

 

 

Scheme 1 
 

 

Page 100



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 13 of 15 21/05905/FUL 

LDP Policy Del 2 (City Centre) sets criteria for assessing development in the city 
centre. 
 
LDP Policy Des 4 (Development Design - Impact on Setting) sets criteria for assessing 
the impact of development design against its setting. 
 
LDP Policy Des 5 (Development Design - Amenity) sets criteria for assessing amenity.  
 
LDP Policy Hou 7 (Inappropriate Uses in Residential Areas) establishes a presumption 
against development which would have an unacceptable effect on the living conditions 
of nearby residents. 
 
Relevant Non-Statutory Guidelines 
 
Non-statutory guidelines  'LISTED BUILDINGS AND CONSERVATION AREAS' 
provides guidance on repairing, altering or extending listed buildings and unlisted 
buildings in conservation areas. 
 
Other Relevant policy guidance 
 
The Old Town Conservation Area Character Appraisal emphasises the survival of 
the original medieval street pattern; the wealth of important landmark buildings; the 
survival of an outstanding collection of archaeological remains, medieval buildings, and 
17th-century town houses; the consistent and harmonious height and mass of 
buildings; the importance of stone as a construction material for both buildings and the 
public realm; the vitality and variety of different uses; and the continuing presence of a 
residential community 
 

Page 101



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 14 of 15 21/05905/FUL 

Appendix 1 
 
Application for Planning Permission 21/05905/FUL 
at 73 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BU 
Planning permission is sought for outdoor seating area 
comprising of timber platform and fencing with timber rain-
screen covers over. 
 
Consultations 

 
 
Environmental Protection 
 
Environmental Protection cannot support this application and recommend refusal. 
 
The application proposes the erection of an outdoor customer seating area for use by 
patrons of an associated public house at 73 Cockburn Street. The customer area is to 
be situated on the road-side adjacent to the footpath. The associated premises fronts 
onto Cockburn Street adjacent to several other commercial and retail uses. Some of 
the existing commercial units on Cockburn Street already have existing outdoor seating 
areas for customers. 
 
Environmental Protection considered that this application could be supported with a 
robust condition restricting hours of operation of the proposed seating area. However, 
discussions with Planning have confirmed that the recommended condition regarding 
time restriction is unlikely to pass the 6 tests required of any planning condition and is 
therefore not a condition that can be applied to the outdoor seating area.  
 
With this in mind, and the fact that the area could therefore be utilised within the more 
noise sensitive times of the night, Environmental Protection has concerns that the use 
of the external dining area may generate noise, impact upon residential amenity and 
cause noise complaints to be received by the Council. 
 
Therefore, as there appears to be no other avenue available to control the hours of use 
of the outdoor seating area, Environmental Protection is unable to support the 
application and recommends it be refused. 
 
Transportation 
 
The application should be refused. 
 
Reasons: 
1. The proposals seek to occupy a section of the carriageway that forms part of the 
adopted road; 
2. The placement of a structure on a road or footway is considered detrimental to road 
safety; 

Page 102



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 15 of 15 21/05905/FUL 

3. The structure results in the loss of parking and/or loading bays to the detriment of 
disabled drivers/passengers, residents, visitors and business operations and will likely 
lead to indiscriminate parking nearby; 
4. The presence of a structure on a road or footway has an adverse impact on various 
road operations (road maintenance, gully cleaning, gritting, street cleansing, events 
etc) and obligations (utilities access etc); 
5. The operation of the facility may result in restrictions on the adjacent footway which 
is contrary to the Councils Equal Pavements Pledge. 
 
Notes - 
1. The Council as Roads Authority has confirmed that written approval, as required 
under Section 59 of the Roads (Scotland) Act 1984, will not be given for these 
structures. 
 
 
 
 

Location Plan 

 
 

© Crown Copyright and database right 2014. All rights reserved. Ordnance Survey License number 100023420 

END 

Page 103



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 1 of 15      21/06213/FUL 

Development Management Sub Committee 

Wednesday 19 January 2022 

 

 

 

Application for Planning Permission 21/06213/FUL 
at 119 High Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1SG. 
Outdoor seating area. 

 

 

Summary 

 
As a result of its location, form and design, the proposal does not comply with Sections 
59 and 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997.  
 
The proposal is not acceptable in principle and would be harmful to the Edinburgh 
World Heritage Site and the Old Town Conservation Area. The proposal is likely to lead 
to an unacceptable impact on residential amenity and is not acceptable in terms of its 
impact on road safety. It fails to comply with the Local Development Plan, associated 
guidance and the principles of sustainability as set out by Scottish Planning Policy. 
There are no material considerations that outweigh this conclusion and refusal is 
recommended. 
 
Notwithstanding the reason for decision as set out above, no planning enforcement 
action will be taken until a decision of Planning Committee on 23 February 2022 on a 
proposed approach to planning enforcement for temporary structures for hospitality. 
 
 

 

 

 Item number  

 Report number 

 

 

 

 

 

Wards B11 - City Centre 

Page 105

Agenda Item 4.7



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 2 of 15      21/06213/FUL 

Links 

Policies and guidance for 

this application 

LDPP, LEN01, LEN03, LEN06, LDEL02, LDES04, 

LDES05, LHOU07, NSG, NSLBCA, OTH, CRPOLD,  

Page 106

file:///C:/uniform/temp/uf04148.rtf%23Policies
file:///C:/uniform/temp/uf04148.rtf%23Policies


 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022   Page 3 of 15 21/06213/FUL 

Report 

Application for Planning Permission 21/06213/FUL 
at 119 High Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1SG. 
Outdoor seating area. 
 

Recommendations  

1.1 It is recommended that this application be Refused for the reasons below. 

Background 

2.1 Site description 
 
The site is an area of adopted road located adjacent to Whiski Bar and Restaurant at 
119 High Street (B listed; reference: LB29039; listing date: 13/08/1987).  
 
The Royal Mile, of which the High Street forms the central portion, is the spine of the 
Old Town, the main thoroughfare and great processional way of old Edinburgh. It is a 
sequence of spaces as well as a street, and these variations reveal buildings and views 
sequentially that are equally impressive in which ever direction they are approached 
from. The ridge, the volcanic tail on which it sits and the natural constraints of the 
former loch and river on its long sides, helped to dictate a linear settlement form which 
is still clearly evident today. The alignment of the Royal Mile is also subject to the 
underlying natural topography and is not straight. Its gentle twists reflect the setting, 
and the work involved in its original creation. 
 
The site is located within the Edinburgh World Heritage Site. 
This application site is located within the Old Town Conservation Area. 
 
2.2 Site History 
 
Other seating applications on High Street 
 
25 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 148 High Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1QS 
(application reference 21/05674/FUL). 
 
26 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 231 High Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1PE 
(application reference 21/05691/FUL). 
 
Other seating applications on Cockburn Street 
 
14 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 19 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BP 
(application reference 21/05388/FUL). 
 

Page 107



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 4 of 15 21/06213/FUL 

22 November 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with clear polycarbonate at 34 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, 
EH1 1PB (application reference 21/06159/FUL). 
 
22 November 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with clear polycarbonate at 45 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, 
EH1 1BS (application reference 21/06060/FUL). 
 
22 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 61 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BS 
(application reference 21/05625/FUL). 
 
5 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 63 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BS 
(application reference 21/05216/FUL). 
 
 27 October 2021 - Planning application made to erect outdoor seating area at 8 - 10 
North Bridge Arcade, Edinburgh, EH1 1QL (application reference 21/05721/FUL) 
 
5 November 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fencing with timber rain-screen covers over at 73 Cockburn Street, 
Edinburgh, EH1 1BU (application reference 21/05905/FUL). 
 
Other seating applications on Victoria Street 
 
15 October 2021 - Planning application made for erection of decking area on roadway 
in front of applicant premises for use as an external dining area (subject to Roads 
Department Permits and Licensing) at 36 - 38 Victoria Street, Edinburgh, EH1 2JW 
(application reference 21/05431/FUL). 
 

Main report 

3.1 Description of the Proposal 
 
Planning permission is sought for the permanent installation of a decked outdoor 
seating area. The seating area would be nine metres in length and 2.5 metres wide, 
measuring approximately 1.5 metres in height at its tallest. The decking would be 
finished in timber with a parasol for coverage. The outdoor seating area is to be used 
by customers of Whiski Bar and Restaurant. 
 
3.2 Determining Issues 
 
Section 25 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 states - Where, in 
making any determination under the planning Acts, regard is to be had to the 
development plan, the determination shall be made in accordance with the plan unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
 
 
 

Page 108



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 5 of 15 21/06213/FUL 

Section 59 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997 states that in considering whether to grant planning permission for development 
which affects a listed building or its setting, a planning authority shall have special 
regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of 
special architectural or historic interest which it possesses. 
 
Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997 states - special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or 
enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area.  
 
Do the proposals comply with the development plan? 
 
If the proposals do comply with the development plan, are there any compelling 
reasons for not approving them? 
 
If the proposals do not comply with the development plan, are there any compelling 
reasons for approving them? 
 
3.3 Assessment  
To address these determining issues, the Committee needs to consider whether: 
 

a) the proposal will have an acceptable impact on built heritage; 
b) the proposal is acceptable in principle; 
c) the proposal will have any adverse impact on residential amenity; 
d) the proposal will have an adverse impact on road safety; 
e) other material considerations and 
f) public comments have been addressed. 

 
a) Built Heritage 
 
Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997 (the LBCA Act) states that special attention shall be paid to the desirability of 
preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area. If there 
is harm to a Conservation Area as a result of development, there is a strong 
presumption against granting planning permission. This presumption can only be 
overcome if there are advantages to the scheme a its location which outweigh the harm 
and justify granting planning permission. If such advantages are found, is necessary to 
consider then whether these can only be delivered at the development's particular 
location.  
 
The Old Town Conservation Area Character Appraisal states that:  
 
The provision of consistent and high quality natural materials, street furniture and 
lighting in the public realm is a critical factor in uniting and complementing the built 
heritage. Natural stone paving slabs and stone setts have historically been used for 
street surfaces for many centuries. The historic paving displays a tradition of high 
quality workmanship, attention to detail and the use of robust and durable materials. 
 
 
 
 

Page 109



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 6 of 15 21/06213/FUL 

It notes that: 
 
The durable architectural character of the Old Town is based around the main medieval 
streets of the Royal Mile - a sequence of five historic streets (Castlehill, Lawnmarket, 
High Street, Canongate and Abbey Strand). Castlehill is the narrow uppermost section 
and opens out into the much broader expanse of the Lawnmarket, which ends at the 
crossroads of George IV Bridge and Bank Street, from which point the Royal Mile 
becomes the High Street. The street narrows at the point where it was formerly closed 
by the main gateway into the town, the Netherbow Port. The original dense medieval 
urban fabric has been overlain by a series of Georgian and Victorian street 
improvements: North Bridge, South Bridge, George IV Bridge, Johnston Terrace, 
Victoria Street, Cockburn Street and Jeffrey Street. 
 
The main streets have a hard urban form with frontages of tall relatively uniform 
buildings. Building facades are generally laid out in continuous rows along main street 
frontages, with few gaps, forming a continuous building line directly abutting the 
footway. 
 
The proposal is for a deck that is surrounded by a timber fence, with parasol structures 
to provide a covering. It has a utilitarian character that does not demonstrate a high 
standard of design, nor does it utilise materials appropriate to the historic environment. 
Seen within the this uniquely designed street, the proposed structure detracts from the 
visual quality of the street as a whole. It therefore harms the character and appearance 
of the Conservation Area. The presumption against granting planning permission is 
therefore engaged. 
 
The primary advantage to this installation is that it provides additional space for the 
business to enable social distancing (as a result of the coronavirus pandemic). Its use 
will help support the business and bring some economic benefit.  However, only limited 
weight can be attached to these benefits as this application is for a permanent 
installation. The benefits do not outweigh the harm identified above.  
 
The proposal therefore does not comply with Section 64 of the LBCA Act.   
 
As a result of this, the proposal does not comply with Edinburgh Local Development 
Plan (LDP) Policy Env 6 Conservation Areas - Development or LDP Policy Des 4 
Development Design - Impact on Setting. 
 
Section 59 of the LBCA Act states that in considering whether to grant planning 
permission for development which affects a listed building or its setting, a planning 
authority or the Secretary of State, as the case may be, shall have special regard to the 
desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of special 
architectural or historic interest which it possesses. The impact on the setting of 
surrounding listed buildings needs to be considered.  
 
The setting of these buildings includes the street itself. As a result of the impacts 
described above, there would be harm to the setting of the listed buildings that are in 
close proximity to the structure. For similar reasons as described above, the proposal 
breaches the requirements of section 59 of the LBCA Act. Similarly, the advantages 
described above, do not outweigh the harm. The proposal is therefore not acceptable in 
relation to LDP Policy Env 3 - Listed Buildings Setting.   

Page 110



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 7 of 15 21/06213/FUL 

 
As well as the conservation area, and listed buildings, the proposal's impact on the Old 
and New Towns of Edinburgh World Heritage Site also needs to be considered.  
 
The proposed development would harm the qualities which justified the inscription of 
the World Heritage Site and would have a detrimental impact on the site's setting. The 
use of low quality materials, not in keeping with the area, and poor design would 
negatively impact the outstanding universal value of the World Heritage Site. The 
proposal would essentially restrict public space and in doing so upset the balance and 
uniqueness of the historic streets. 
 
In summary, the proposal is not acceptable in relation to Sections 59 and 64 of the 
LBCA Act as a result of the harm to the setting of listed buildings and to the character 
and appearance of the conservation area. As a result, it does not comply with LDP 
Policies, Env 3, Env 6 and Des 4. It would harm the World Heritage Site contrary to 
LDP Policy Env 1. 
 
b) Principle 
 
The site is located within the city centre where LDP Policy Del 2 applies. The proposal 
would be detrimental to the character and attractiveness of the city centre by virtue of 
the structure's poor quality design and use of unsympathetic materials. Furthermore, 
the siting of the structure on a public road would impact on the vitality and accessibility 
of the city centre by cluttering up the street and creating difficulties for access. 
 
As a result of its impact on the character and attractiveness of the street, the proposal 
fails to comply with LDP Policy Del 2 City Centre. 
 
c) Residential Amenity 
 
The proposal is likely to result in an adverse impact on local residential amenity. 
Although it is a busy area with a vibrant night-time economy, the permanent addition of 
a decked outdoor seating area would alter the character of the area though creating a 
formalised arrangement that is conducive to the congregation of groups.   
 
Environmental Protection has objected to the proposal and consider that it could lead to 
a noise nuisance that would be detrimental to the living standards of local residents. 
Discussion between Environmental Protection and Planning explored the potential for a 
condition to control the use. It is not however appropriate to restrict the hours of 
operation of one part of a premises with the remainder having different hours of 
operation. Therefore, a condition is not appropriate.  
 
The proposal is likely to be detrimental to residential amenity and fails to comply with 
LDP Policies Des 5 Development Design - Amenity and Hou 7 Inappropriate Uses in 
Residential Areas. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 111



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 8 of 15 21/06213/FUL 

d) Road Safety 
 
Following consultation, Transportation has recommended refusal as the proposal would 
be detrimental to road safety. The permanent occupancy of a section of adopted road 
would not be supported. Furthermore, the structure would result in the loss of parking 
and loading bays to the detriment of disabled drivers and passengers as well as 
residents, visitors and business operations. The presence of a structure on the road 
would have an adverse impact on various road operations (road maintenance, gully 
cleaning, gritting, street cleansing, events etc) and obligations (utilities access etc).  
 
The proposal would be detrimental to road safety.  
 
e) Other Material Considerations 
 
Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) presumption in favour of sustainable development is a 
significant material consideration due to the development plan being over five years 
old. The planning system should support economically, environmentally and socially 
sustainable places by enabling development that balances the costs and benefits of a 
proposal over the longer term. The aim is to achieve the right development in the right 
place; it is not to allow development at any cost. SPP sets out thirteen principles of 
sustainable development. The proposal is assessed against the relevant principles 
below. 
 

− giving due weight to net economic benefit 
Although it is acknowledged that there may be economic benefit to the outdoor seating 
area, this is outweighed by the issues set out above relating to the historic 
environment, residential amenity and road safety.  
 

− supporting good design and the six qualities of successful places 
As set out above the structure is of a poor-quality design and out of keeping with the 
character of the area. The proposal does not comply with the six qualities of successful 
places as it would impact on the ability to move around, would not be welcoming and 
due to the potential for nuisance would not be safe and welcoming. 
 
- improving health and well-being by offering opportunities for social interaction and 
physical activity, including sport and recreation 
The proposals could offer opportunities for social interaction, particularly where 
Coronavirus is concerned (this is discussed further below), however this does not 
outweigh the impact on the historic environment, residential amenity and road safety. 
 

− protecting, enhancing and promoting access to cultural heritage, including the 
historic environment 

The proposal would have a negative impact on the outstanding universal value of the 
Edinburgh World Heritage Site as well as on the character and appearance of the Old 
Town Conservation Area. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 112



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 9 of 15 21/06213/FUL 

− avoiding over-development, protecting the amenity of new and existing 
development and considering the implications of development for water, air and 
soil quality 

The proposal is likely to result in an adverse impact on the amenity of local residents. 
 
The proposal does not comply with the relevant principles of sustainable development 
as set out in Scottish Planning Policy. 
 
Coronavirus Pandemic 
 
Although there is an understanding that a flexible approach is required given the fast-
changing nature of the global pandemic and that it continues to impact on hospitality 
businesses, the application seeks permission for the permanent siting of the structure. 
It should be noted that the recent letter from the Scottish Government Chief Planner 
has stated that a relaxed approach to planning enforcement should remain in place 
until September 2022. A report will be brought to Planning Committee on 23 February 
2022 which will set out a proposed approach to planning enforcement for temporary 
structures for hospitality.  This will enable Planning Committee to decide on the extent 
of relaxation to planning enforcement for the months ahead.  
 
Given the current restrictions on social distancing etc remain in place, if the application 
is refused, the Chief Planning Officer would not instigate any planning enforcement 
action until further consideration has been given to enforcement by Planning 
Committee on 23 February 2022.   
 
Consideration has been given to whether a temporary permission could be granted by 
means of a planning condition to restrict the duration of the operation. However, as the 
length of coronavirus restrictions is unknown, the approach to enforcement to 23 
February with subsequent Planning Committee oversight provides a better, more 
flexible framework for continued use of this installation.  
 
f) Public Comments 
 
Four letters of representation have been received. All representations object to the 
proposal. 
 
Material Considerations 

− Amenity: this has been addressed in section 3.3(c); 

− Design: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a) and (b); 

− Privatisation of public space: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a); 

− Impact on Conservation Area: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a); 

− Impact on World Heritage Site: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a) 

− Road safety: this has been addressed in section 3.3(d). 
 
Conclusion 
 
As a result of its location, form and design, the proposal does not comply with Sections 
59 and 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997.  
 

Page 113



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 10 of 15 21/06213/FUL 

The proposal is not acceptable in principle and would be harmful to the Edinburgh 
World Heritage Site and the Old Town Conservation Area. The proposal is likely to lead 
to an unacceptable impact on residential amenity and is not acceptable in terms of its 
impact on road safety. It fails to comply with the Local Development Plan, associated 
guidance and the principles of sustainability as set out by Scottish Planning Policy. 
There are no material considerations that outweigh this conclusion and refusal is 
recommended. 
 
Notwithstanding the reason for decision as set out above, no planning enforcement 
action will be taken until a decision of Planning Committee on 23 February 2022 on a 
proposed approach to planning enforcement for temporary structures for hospitality. 
 
 
 
 
It is recommended that this application be Refused for the reasons below. 
 
3.4 Conditions/reasons/informatives 
 
Reasons:- 
 
1. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Env 1 World Heritage Sites as 

the proposed development would harm the qualities which justified the 
inscription of the Old and New Towns of Edinburgh as a World Heritage Site and 
would have a detrimental impact on the site's setting. 

 
2. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Env 6 Conservation Areas - 

Development as the proposal would not preserve or enhance the special 
character or appearance of the Old Town Conservation Area. 

 
3. The proposal fails to comply with the principles of sustainability as set out by 

Scottish Planning Policy. 
 
4. The proposal's adverse impact on setting of listed buildings and the conservation 

area means it does not comply with the requirements of Sections 59 and 64 of 
the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 1997. 

 
5. The proposal will have a negative impact on road safety as it would result in the 

permanent occupancy of a section of adopted road. 
 
6. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Des 5 Development Design - 

Amenity as it is likely to adversely impact on the amenity of neighbouring 
properties. 

 
7. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Hou 7 Inappropriate Uses in 

Residential Areas as it is likely to have a materially detrimental effect on the 
living conditions of nearby residents. 

 
 
 
 

Page 114



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 11 of 15 21/06213/FUL 

 

Financial impact  

4.1 The financial impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
In general, in respect of on carriageway installations, any loss of parking income may 
be mitigated by income from tables and chair licences. 

Risk, Policy, compliance and governance impact 

5.1 Provided planning applications are determined in accordance with statutory 
legislation, the level of risk is low. 

Equalities impact  

6.1 The equalities impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
The application has been assessed and has no impact in terms of equalities or human 
rights. 

Sustainability impact  

7.1 The sustainability impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
This application is not subject to the sustainability requirements of the Edinburgh 
Design Guidance. 

Consultation and engagement  

8.1 Pre-Application Process 
 
There is no pre-application process history. 
 
8.2 Publicity summary of representations and Community Council comments 
 
Following statutory neighbour notification and advertisement in the Edinburgh Evening 
News, four letters of representation have been received. 

Background reading/external references 

• To view details of the application, go to  

• Planning and Building Standards online services 

• Planning guidelines  

• Conservation Area Character Appraisals  

• Edinburgh Local Development Plan  

• Scottish Planning Policy 

Page 115

https://citydev-portal.edinburgh.gov.uk/idoxpa-web/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/planningguidelines
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/characterappraisals
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/localdevelopmentplan
http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Topics/Built-Environment/planning/Policy


 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 12 of 15 21/06213/FUL 

 

 

 
David Givan 
Chief Planning Officer 
PLACE 
The City of Edinburgh Council 
 
 
Contact: Murray Couston, Planning Officer 

E-mail:murray.couston@edinburgh.gov.uk  

Links - Policies 

 
Relevant Policies: 
 
Relevant policies of the Local Development Plan. 
 
LDP Policy Env 1 (World Heritage Site) protects the quality of the World Heritage Site 
and its setting. 
 
LDP Policy Env 3 (Listed Buildings - Setting) identifies the circumstances in which 
development within the curtilage or affecting the setting of a listed building will be 
permitted. 
 
LDP Policy Env 6 (Conservation Areas - Development) sets out criteria for assessing 
development in a conservation area. 
 

 Statutory Development 

Plan Provision 

 

The site is within the City Centre, Old Town 

Conservation Area and Edinburgh World Heritage Site 

as defined by the adopted Local Development Plan. 

 

 

 Date registered 24 November 2021 

 

 

 

 

Drawing numbers/Scheme 01-02, 

 

 

 

Scheme 1 
 

 

Page 116



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 13 of 15 21/06213/FUL 

LDP Policy Del 2 (City Centre) sets criteria for assessing development in the city 
centre. 
 
LDP Policy Des 4 (Development Design - Impact on Setting) sets criteria for assessing 
the impact of development design against its setting. 
 
LDP Policy Des 5 (Development Design - Amenity) sets criteria for assessing amenity.  
 
LDP Policy Hou 7 (Inappropriate Uses in Residential Areas) establishes a presumption 
against development which would have an unacceptable effect on the living conditions 
of nearby residents. 
 
Relevant Non-Statutory Guidelines 
 
Non-statutory guidelines  'LISTED BUILDINGS AND CONSERVATION AREAS' 
provides guidance on repairing, altering or extending listed buildings and unlisted 
buildings in conservation areas. 
 
Other Relevant policy guidance 
 
The Old Town Conservation Area Character Appraisal emphasises the survival of 
the original medieval street pattern; the wealth of important landmark buildings; the 
survival of an outstanding collection of archaeological remains, medieval buildings, and 
17th-century town houses; the consistent and harmonious height and mass of 
buildings; the importance of stone as a construction material for both buildings and the 
public realm; the vitality and variety of different uses; and the continuing presence of a 
residential community 
 

Page 117



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 14 of 15 21/06213/FUL 

Appendix 1 
 
Application for Planning Permission 21/06213/FUL 
at 119 High Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1SG. 
Outdoor seating area. 
 
Consultations 

 
 
i Environmental Protection 
 
Environmental Protection is unable to support the application and recommends refusal. 
 
The application concerns proposals for a decked platform, surrounded by a fence with 
parasols over which will house outdoor seating for diners and drinkers. The structure 
will be located on the roadway to the front of Whiski Bar and Restaurant on the High 
Street. There are residential properties on the upper floors of the tenements above the 
bar and in the surrounding area.  
 
Environmental Protection have concerns that the use of external dining areas, 
especially late at night, may generate noise leading to complaints from residents and 
would prefer for the use of the temporary structure not to be permitted beyond 10pm. 
Following discussions with Planning it is understood that it would not be possible to 
place time restrictions on only part of the premises, namely the use of the decked 
external dining area. 
 
As it will not be possible to impose a condition restricting the time of use of the structure 
and there are no other means to ensure that these structures can't be used during the 
more sensitive night time hours, Environmental Protection is unable to support this 
application. 
 
Transportation 
 
The application should be refused. 
 
Reasons: 
1.  The proposals seek to occupy a section of the carriageway that forms part of the 

adopted road; 
2.  The placement of a structure on a road or footway is considered detrimental to 

road safety; 
3.  The structure results in the loss of parking and/or loading bays to the detriment 

of disabled drivers/passengers, residents, visitors and business operations and 
will likely lead to indiscriminate parking nearby; 

4.  The presence of a structure on a road or footway has an adverse impact on 
various road operations (road maintenance, gully cleaning, gritting, street 
cleansing, events etc) and obligations (utilities access etc); 

5.  The operation of the facility may result in restrictions on the adjacent footway 
which is contrary to the Councils Equal Pavements Pledge. 

Page 118



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 15 of 15 21/06213/FUL 

 
Notes - 
1.  The Council as Roads Authority has confirmed that written approval, as required 

under Section 59 of the Roads (Scotland) Act 1984, will not be given for these 
structures. 

 
 
 
 

Location Plan 

 
 

© Crown Copyright and database right 2014. All rights reserved. Ordnance Survey License number 100023420 

END 

Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 1 of 14      21/05674/FUL 

Development Management Sub Committee 

Wednesday 19 January 2022 

 

 

 

Application for Planning Permission 21/05674/FUL 
at 148 High Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1QS. 
Planning permission is sought for outdoor seating area 
comprising of timber platform and fence with parasols. 

 

 

Summary 

 
As a result of its location, form and design, the proposal does not comply with Sections 
59 and 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997.  
 
The proposal is not acceptable in principle and would be harmful to the Edinburgh World 
Heritage Site and the Old Town Conservation Area. The proposal is likely to lead to an 
unacceptable impact on residential amenity and is not acceptable in terms of its impact 
on road safety. It fails to comply with the Local Development Plan, associated guidance 
and the principles of sustainability as set out by Scottish Planning Policy. There are no 
material considerations that outweigh this conclusion and refusal is recommended. 
 
Notwithstanding the reason for decision as set out above, no planning enforcement 
action will be taken until a decision of Planning Committee on 23 February 2022 on a 
proposed approach to planning enforcement for temporary structures for hospitality. 
 
 

Links 

Policies and guidance for 

this application 

LDPP, LEN01, LEN03, LEN06, LDEL02, LDES04, 

LDES05, LHOU07, NSG, NSLBCA, OTH, CRPOLD,  

 Item number  

 Report number 

 

 

 

 

 

Wards B11 - City Centre 

Page 121

Agenda Item 4.8

file:///C:/uniform/temp/uf04148.rtf%23Policies
file:///C:/uniform/temp/uf04148.rtf%23Policies


 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022   Page 2 of 14 21/05674/FUL 

Report 

Application for Planning Permission 21/05674/FUL 
at 148 High Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1QS. 
Planning permission is sought for outdoor seating area 
comprising of timber platform and fence with parasols. 
 

Recommendations  

1.1 It is recommended that this application be Refused for the reasons below. 

Background 

2.1 Site description 
 
The site is an area of adopted road located adjacent to the Clam Shell at 148 High 
Street (B listed; reference: LB29070; listing date: 14/12/1970).  
 
The Royal Mile, of which the High Street forms the central portion, is the spine of the 
Old Town, the main thoroughfare and great processional way of old Edinburgh. It is a 
sequence of spaces as well as a street, and these variations reveal buildings and views 
sequentially that are equally impressive in which every direction they are approached 
from. The ridge, the volcanic tail on which it sits and the natural constraints of the 
former loch and river on its long sides, helped to dictate a linear settlement form which 
is still clearly evident today. The alignment of the Royal Mile is also subject to the 
underlying natural topography and is not straight. Its gentle twists reflect the setting, 
and the work involved in its original creation. 
 
The site is located within the Edinburgh World Heritage Site. 
This application site is located within the Old Town Conservation Area. 
 
2.2 Site History 
 
Other seating applications on High Street 
 
26 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 231 High Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1PE 
(application reference 21/05691/FUL). 
 
24 November 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area at 119 High 
Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1SG (application reference 21/06213/FUL) 
 
Other seating applications on Cockburn Street 
 
14 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 19 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BP 
(application reference 21/05388/FUL). 
 

Page 122



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 3 of 14 21/05674/FUL 

22 November 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with clear polycarbonate at 34 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, 
EH1 1PB (application reference 21/06159/FUL). 
 
22 November 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with clear polycarbonate at 45 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, 
EH1 1BS (application reference 21/06060/FUL). 
 
22 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 61 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BS 
(application reference 21/05625/FUL). 
 
5 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 63 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BS 
(application reference 21/05216/FUL). 
 
27 October 2021 - Planning application made to erect outdoor seating area at 8 - 10 
North Bridge Arcade, Edinburgh, EH1 1QL (application reference 21/05721/FUL) 
 
5 November 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fencing with timber rain-screen covers over at 73 Cockburn Street, 
Edinburgh, EH1 1BU (application reference 21/05905/FUL). 
 
Other seating applications on Victoria Street 
 
15 October 2021 - Planning application made for erection of decking area on roadway 
in front of applicant premises for use as an external dining area (subject to Roads 
Department Permits and Licensing) at 36 - 38 Victoria Street, Edinburgh, EH1 2JW 
(application reference 21/05431/FUL). 
 

Main report 

3.1 Description of the Proposal 
 
Planning permission is sought for the permanent installation of a decked outdoor 
seating area. The seating area would be five metres in length and three metres wide, 
measuring 1.45 metres in height. The decking would be finished in timber with a 
parasol for coverage. The outdoor seating area is to be used by customers of the Clam 
Shell. 
 
3.2 Determining Issues 
 
Section 25 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 states - Where, in 
making any determination under the planning Acts, regard is to be had to the 
development plan, the determination shall be made in accordance with the plan unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
 
 
 

Page 123



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 4 of 14 21/05674/FUL 

Section 59 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997 states that in considering whether to grant planning permission for development 
which affects a listed building or its setting, a planning authority shall have special 
regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of 
special architectural or historic interest which it possesses. 
 
Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997 states - special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or 
enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area.  
 
Do the proposals comply with the development plan? 
 
If the proposals do comply with the development plan, are there any compelling 
reasons for not approving them? 
 
If the proposals do not comply with the development plan, are there any compelling 
reasons for approving them? 
 
3.3 Assessment  
To address these determining issues, the Committee needs to consider whether: 
 

a) the proposal will have an acceptable impact on built heritage; 
b) the proposal is acceptable in principle; 
c) the proposal will have any adverse impact on residential amenity; 
d) the proposal will have an adverse impact on road safety; 
e) other material considerations and 
f) public comments have been addressed. 

 
a) Built Heritage 
 
Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997 (the LBCA Act) states that special attention shall be paid to the desirability of 
preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area. If there 
is harm to a Conservation Area as a result of development, there is a strong 
presumption against granting planning permission. This presumption can only be 
overcome if there are advantages to the scheme a its location which outweigh the harm 
and justify granting planning permission. If such advantages are found, is necessary to 
consider then whether these can only be delivered at the development's particular 
location.  
 
The Old Town Conservation Area Character Appraisal states that:  
 
The provision of consistent and high quality natural materials, street furniture and 
lighting in the public realm is a critical factor in uniting and complementing the built 
heritage. Natural stone paving slabs and stone setts have historically been used for 
street surfaces for many centuries. The historic paving displays a tradition of high 
quality workmanship, attention to detail and the use of robust and durable materials. 
 
 
 
 

Page 124



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 5 of 14 21/05674/FUL 

It notes that: 
 
The durable architectural character of the Old Town is based around the main medieval 
streets of the Royal Mile - a sequence of five historic streets (Castlehill, Lawnmarket, 
High Street, Canongate and Abbey Strand). Castlehill is the narrow uppermost section 
and opens out into the much broader expanse of the Lawnmarket, which ends at the 
crossroads of George IV Bridge and Bank Street, from which point the Royal Mile 
becomes the High Street. The street narrows at the point where it was formerly closed 
by the main gateway into the town, the Netherbow Port. The original dense medieval 
urban fabric has been overlain by a series of Georgian and Victorian street 
improvements: North Bridge, South Bridge, George IV Bridge, Johnston Terrace, 
Victoria Street, Cockburn Street and Jeffrey Street. 
 
The main streets have a hard urban form with frontages of tall relatively uniform 
buildings. Building facades are generally laid out in continuous rows along main street 
frontages, with few gaps, forming a continuous building line directly abutting the 
footway. 
 
The proposal is for a deck that is surrounded by a timber fence, with a parasol structure 
to provide a covering. It has a utilitarian character that does not demonstrate a high 
standard of design, nor does it utilise materials appropriate to the historic environment. 
Seen within the this uniquely designed street, the proposed structure detracts from the 
visual quality of the street as a whole. It therefore harms the character and appearance 
of the Conservation Area. The presumption against granting planning permission is 
therefore engaged. 
 
The primary advantage to this installation is that it provides additional space for the 
business to enable social distancing (as a result of the coronavirus pandemic). Its use 
will help support the business and bring some economic benefit.  However, only limited 
weight can be attached to these benefits as this application is for a permanent 
installation. The benefits do not outweigh the harm identified above.  
 
The proposal therefore does not comply with Section 64 of the LBCA Act.   
 
As a result of this, the proposal does not comply with Edinburgh Local Development 
Plan (LDP) Policy Env 6 Conservation Areas - Development or LDP Policy Des 4 
Development Design - Impact on Setting. 
 
Section 59 of the LBCA Act states that in considering whether to grant planning 
permission for development which affects a listed building or its setting, a planning 
authority or the Secretary of State, as the case may be, shall have special regard to the 
desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of special 
architectural or historic interest which it possesses. The impact on the setting of 
surrounding listed buildings needs to be considered.  
 
The setting of these buildings includes the street itself. As a result of the impacts 
described above, there would be harm to the setting of the listed buildings that are in 
close proximity to the structure. For similar reasons as described above, the proposal 
breaches the requirements of section 59 of the LBCA Act. Similarly, the advantages 
described above, do not outweigh the harm. The proposal is therefore not acceptable in 
relation to LDP Policy Env 3 - Listed Buildings Setting.   

Page 125



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 6 of 14 21/05674/FUL 

 
As well as the conservation area, and listed buildings, the proposal's impact on the Old 
and New Towns of Edinburgh World Heritage Site also needs to be considered.  
 
The proposed development would harm the qualities which justified the inscription of 
the World Heritage Site and would have a detrimental impact on the site's setting. The 
use of low quality materials, not in keeping with the area, and poor design would 
negatively impact the outstanding universal value of the World Heritage Site. The 
proposal would essentially restrict public space and in doing so upset the balance and 
uniqueness of the historic streets. 
 
In summary, the proposal is not acceptable in relation to Sections 59 and 64 of the 
LBCA Act as a result of the harm to the setting of listed buildings and to the character 
and appearance of the conservation area. As a result, it does not comply with LDP 
Policies, Env 3, Env 6 and Des 4. It would harm the World Heritage Site contrary to 
LDP Policy Env 1. 
 
b) Principle 
 
The site is located within the city centre where LDP Policy Del 2 applies. The proposal 
would be detrimental to the character and attractiveness of the city centre by virtue of 
the structure's poor quality design and use of unsympathetic materials. Furthermore, 
the siting of the structure on a public road would impact on the vitality and accessibility 
of the city centre by cluttering up the street and creating difficulties for access. 
 
As a result of its impact on the character and attractiveness of the street, the proposal 
fails to comply with LDP Policy Del 2 City Centre. 
 
c) Residential Amenity 
 
The proposal is likely to result in an adverse impact on local residential amenity. 
Although it is a busy area with a vibrant night-time economy, the permanent addition of 
a decked outdoor seating area would alter the character of the area though creating a 
formalised arrangement that is conducive to the congregation of groups.   
 
Environmental Protection has objected to the proposal and consider that it could lead to 
a noise nuisance that would be detrimental to the living standards of local residents. 
Discussion between Environmental Protection and Planning explored the potential for a 
condition to control the use. It is not however appropriate to restrict the hours of 
operation of one part of a premises with the remainder having different hours of 
operation. Therefore, a condition is not appropriate.  
 
The proposal is likely to be detrimental to residential amenity and fails to comply with 
LDP Policies Des 5 Development Design - Amenity and Hou 7 Inappropriate Uses in 
Residential Areas. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 126



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 7 of 14 21/05674/FUL 

d) Road Safety 
 
Following consultation, Transportation has recommended refusal as the proposal would 
be detrimental to road safety. The permanent occupancy of a section of adopted road 
would not be supported. Furthermore, the structure would result in the loss of parking 
and loading bays to the detriment of disabled drivers and passengers as well as 
residents, visitors and business operations. The presence of a structure on the road 
would have an adverse impact on various road operations (road maintenance, gully 
cleaning, gritting, street cleansing, events etc) and obligations (utilities access etc).  
 
The proposal would be detrimental to road safety.  
 
e) Other Material Considerations 
 
Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) presumption in favour of sustainable development is a 
significant material consideration due to the development plan being over five years 
old. The planning system should support economically, environmentally and socially 
sustainable places by enabling development that balances the costs and benefits of a 
proposal over the longer term. The aim is to achieve the right development in the right 
place; it is not to allow development at any cost. SPP sets out thirteen principles of 
sustainable development. The proposal is assessed against the relevant principles 
below. 
 

− giving due weight to net economic benefit 
Although it is acknowledged that there may be economic benefit to the outdoor seating 
area, this is outweighed by the issues set out above relating to the historic 
environment, residential amenity and road safety.  
 

− supporting good design and the six qualities of successful places 
As set out above the structure is of a poor-quality design and out of keeping with the 
character of the area. The proposal does not comply with the six qualities of successful 
places as it would impact on the ability to move around, would not be welcoming and 
due to the potential for nuisance would not be safe and welcoming. 
 

− improving health and well-being by offering opportunities for social interaction 
and physical activity, including sport and recreation 

The proposals could offer opportunities for social interaction, particularly where 
Coronavirus is concerned (this is discussed further below), however this does not 
outweigh the impact on the historic environment, residential amenity and road safety. 
 

− protecting, enhancing and promoting access to cultural heritage, including the 
historic environment 

The proposal would have a negative impact on the outstanding universal value of the 
Edinburgh World Heritage Site as well as on the character and appearance of the Old 
Town Conservation Area. 
 

− avoiding over-development, protecting the amenity of new and existing 
development and considering the implications of development for water, air and 
soil quality 

 
 

Page 127



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 8 of 14 21/05674/FUL 

The proposal is likely to result in an adverse impact on the amenity of local residents. 
The proposal does not comply with the relevant principles of sustainable development 
as set out in Scottish Planning Policy. 
 
Coronavirus Pandemic 
 
Although there is an understanding that a flexible approach is required given the fast-
changing nature of the global pandemic and that it continues to impact on hospitality 
businesses, the application seeks permission for the permanent siting of the structure. 
It should be noted that the recent letter from the Scottish Government Chief Planner 
has stated that a relaxed approach to planning enforcement should remain in place 
until September 2022. A report will be brought to Planning Committee on 23 February 
2022 which will set out a proposed approach to planning enforcement for temporary 
structures for hospitality.  This will enable Planning Committee to decide on the extent 
of relaxation to planning enforcement for the months ahead.  
 
Given the current restrictions on social distancing etc remain in place, if the application 
is refused, the Chief Planning Officer would not instigate any planning enforcement 
action until further consideration has been given to enforcement by Planning 
Committee on 23 February 2022.   
 
Consideration has been given to whether a temporary permission could be granted by 
means of a planning condition to restrict the duration of the operation. However, as the 
length of coronavirus restrictions is unknown, the approach to enforcement to 23 
February with subsequent Planning Committee oversight provides a better, more 
flexible framework for continued use of this installation.  
 
f) Public Comments 
 
Eight letters of representation have been received. All representations received object 
to the proposal. 
 
Material Considerations 

− Amenity: this has been addressed in section 3.3(c); 

− Design: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a) and (b); 

− Privatisation of public space: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a); 

− Impact on Conservation Area: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a); 

− Impact on World Heritage Site: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a); 

− Road safety: this has been addressed in section 3.3(d). 
 
Conclusion 
 
As a result of its location, form and design, the proposal does not comply with Sections 
59 and 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997.  
 
The proposal is not acceptable in principle and would be harmful to the Edinburgh 
World Heritage Site and the Old Town Conservation Area. The proposal is likely to lead 
to an unacceptable impact on residential amenity and is not acceptable in terms of its 
impact on road safety. It fails to comply with the Local Development Plan, associated 
guidance and the principles of sustainability as set out by Scottish Planning Policy. 

Page 128



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 9 of 14 21/05674/FUL 

There are no material considerations that outweigh this conclusion and refusal is 
recommended. 
 
Notwithstanding the reason for decision as set out above, no planning enforcement 
action will be taken until a decision of Planning Committee on 23 February 2022 on a 
proposed approach to planning enforcement for temporary structures for hospitality. 
 
 
 
 
It is recommended that this application be Refused for the reasons below. 
 
3.4 Conditions/reasons/informatives 
 
Reasons:- 
 
1. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Env 1 World Heritage Sites as 

the proposed development would harm the qualities which justified the 
inscription of the Old and New Towns of Edinburgh as a World Heritage Site and 
would have a detrimental impact on the site's setting. 

 
2. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Env 6 Conservation Areas - 

Development as the proposal would not preserve or enhance the special 
character or appearance of the Old Town Conservation Area. 

 
3. The proposal fails to comply with the principles of sustainability as set out by 

Scottish Planning Policy. 
 
4. The proposal's adverse impact on setting of listed buildings and the conservation 

area means it does not comply with the requirements of Sections 59 and 64 of 
the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 1997. 

 
5. The proposal will have a negative impact on road safety as it would result in the 

permanent occupancy of a section of adopted road. 
 
6. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Des 5 Development Design - 

Amenity as it is likely to adversely impact on the amenity of neighbouring 
properties. 

 
7. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Hou 7 Inappropriate Uses in 

Residential Areas as it is likely to have a materially detrimental effect on the 
living conditions of nearby residents. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 129



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 10 of 14 21/05674/FUL 

Financial impact  

4.1 The financial impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
In general, in respect of on carriageway installations, any loss of parking income may 
be mitigated by income from tables and chair licences. 

Risk, Policy, compliance and governance impact 

5.1 Provided planning applications are determined in accordance with statutory 
legislation, the level of risk is low. 

Equalities impact  

6.1 The equalities impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
The application has been assessed and has no impact in terms of equalities or human 
rights. 

Sustainability impact  

7.1 The sustainability impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
This application is not subject to the sustainability requirements of the Edinburgh 
Design Guidance. 

Consultation and engagement  

8.1 Pre-Application Process 
 
There is no pre-application process history. 
 
8.2 Publicity summary of representations and Community Council comments 
 
Following statutory neighbour notification and advertisement in the Edinburgh Evening 
News, eight letters of representation have been received. 

Background reading/external references 

• To view details of the application, go to  

• Planning and Building Standards online services 

• Planning guidelines  

• Conservation Area Character Appraisals  

• Edinburgh Local Development Plan  

• Scottish Planning Policy 

  

Page 130

https://citydev-portal.edinburgh.gov.uk/idoxpa-web/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/planningguidelines
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/characterappraisals
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/localdevelopmentplan
http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Topics/Built-Environment/planning/Policy


 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 11 of 14 21/05674/FUL 

 

 
David Givan 
Chief Planning Officer 
PLACE 
The City of Edinburgh Council 
 
 
Contact: Murray Couston, Planning Officer 

E-mail:murray.couston@edinburgh.gov.uk  

Links - Policies 

 
Relevant Policies: 
 
Relevant policies of the Local Development Plan. 
 
LDP Policy Env 1 (World Heritage Site) protects the quality of the World Heritage Site 
and its setting. 
 
LDP Policy Env 3 (Listed Buildings - Setting) identifies the circumstances in which 
development within the curtilage or affecting the setting of a listed building will be 
permitted. 
 
LDP Policy Env 6 (Conservation Areas - Development) sets out criteria for assessing 
development in a conservation area. 
 
LDP Policy Del 2 (City Centre) sets criteria for assessing development in the city 
centre. 
 

 Statutory Development 

Plan Provision 

 

The site is within the City Centre, Old Town 

Conservation Area and Edinburgh World Heritage Site 

as defined by the adopted Local Development Plan. 

 

 

 Date registered 25 October 2021 

 

 

 

 

Drawing numbers/Scheme 01-02, 

 

 

 

Scheme 1 
 

 

Page 131



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 12 of 14 21/05674/FUL 

LDP Policy Des 4 (Development Design - Impact on Setting) sets criteria for assessing 
the impact of development design against its setting. 
 
LDP Policy Des 5 (Development Design - Amenity) sets criteria for assessing amenity.  
 
LDP Policy Hou 7 (Inappropriate Uses in Residential Areas) establishes a presumption 
against development which would have an unacceptable effect on the living conditions 
of nearby residents. 
 
Relevant Non-Statutory Guidelines 
 
Non-statutory guidelines  'LISTED BUILDINGS AND CONSERVATION AREAS' 
provides guidance on repairing, altering or extending listed buildings and unlisted 
buildings in conservation areas. 
 
Other Relevant policy guidance 
 
The Old Town Conservation Area Character Appraisal emphasises the survival of 
the original medieval street pattern; the wealth of important landmark buildings; the 
survival of an outstanding collection of archaeological remains, medieval buildings, and 
17th-century town houses; the consistent and harmonious height and mass of 
buildings; the importance of stone as a construction material for both buildings and the 
public realm; the vitality and variety of different uses; and the continuing presence of a 
residential community 
 

Page 132



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 13 of 14 21/05674/FUL 

Appendix 1 
 
Application for Planning Permission 21/05674/FUL 
at 148 High Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1QS. 
Planning permission is sought for outdoor seating area 
comprising of timber platform and fence with parasols. 
 
Consultations 

 
 
Environmental Protection 
 
The application proposes the erection of an outdoor customer seating area for use by 
patrons of an associated take-away food premises at 148 High Street. The customer 
area is to be situated on the road-side adjacent to the footpath. The associated takeaway 
premises fronts onto High Street adjacent to a number of other commercial and retail 
uses. Several of the existing commercial units on High Street already have existing 
outdoor seating areas for customers. The High Street includes a mix of ground floor 
commercial with residential properties above and High Street is already a mainly 
pedestrianised and vibrant location with heavy footfall. 
 
Taking into consideration the existing opening hours of the food business and the existing 
character of High Street, Environmental Protection would offer no objection to the 
application subject to the outdoor area being restricted to 10pm daily. In this regard, the 
following condition is recommended: 
 
Condition 
 
1. The hours of operation of the proposed external customer area shall be restricted 

to between 8:00 and 22:00 daily. 
  
Additional response from Environmental Protection - 10/12/21 
 
Further discussions with Planning have confirmed that the above recommended 
condition is unlikely to pass the 6 tests required of any planning condition and is therefore 
not a condition that can be applied to the outdoor seating area.  
 
With this in mind, and the fact that the area could therefore be utilised within the more 
noise sensitive times of the night, Environmental Protection has concerns that the use of 
the external dining area may generate noise, impact upon residential amenity and cause 
noise complaints to be received by the Council. 
 
Therefore, as there appears to be no other avenue available to control the hours of use 
of the outdoor seating area, Environmental Protection is unable to support the application 
and recommends it be refused. 
 
 
 

Page 133



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 14 of 14 21/05674/FUL 

Transportation 
 
The application should be refused. 
 
Reasons: 
1. The proposals seek to occupy a section of the carriageway that forms part of the 
adopted road; 
2. The placement of a structure on a road or footway is considered detrimental to road 
safety; 
3. The structure results in the loss of parking and/or loading bays to the detriment of 
disabled drivers/passengers, residents, visitors and business operations and will likely 
lead to indiscriminate parking nearby; 
4. The presence of a structure on a road or footway has an adverse impact on various 
road operations (road maintenance, gully cleaning, gritting, street cleansing, events etc) 
and obligations (utilities access etc); 
5. The operation of the facility may result in restrictions on the adjacent footway which is 
contrary to the Councils Equal Pavements Pledge. 
 
Notes - 
1. The Council as Roads Authority has confirmed that written approval, as required under 
Section 59 of the Roads (Scotland) Act 1984, will not be given for these structures. 
 
 
 

Location Plan 

 
 

© Crown Copyright and database right 2014. All rights reserved. Ordnance Survey License number 100023420 

END 

Page 134



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 1 of 15      21/05691/FUL 

Development Management Sub Committee 

Wednesday 19 January 2022 

 

 

 

Application for Planning Permission 21/05691/FUL 
at 231 High Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1PE. 
Planning permission is sought for outdoor seating area 
comprising of timber platform and fence with parasols. 

 

 

Summary 

 
As a result of its location, form and design, the proposal does not comply with Sections 
59 and 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997.  
 
The proposal is not acceptable in principle and would be harmful to the Edinburgh 
World Heritage Site and the Old Town Conservation Area. The proposal is likely to lead 
to an unacceptable impact on residential amenity and is not acceptable in terms of its 
impact on road safety. It fails to comply with the Local Development Plan, associated 
guidance and the principles of sustainability as set out by Scottish Planning Policy. 
There are no material considerations that outweigh this conclusion and refusal is 
recommended. 
 
Notwithstanding the reason for decision as set out above, no planning enforcement 
action will be taken until a decision of Planning Committee on 23 February 2022 on a 
proposed approach to planning enforcement for temporary structures for hospitality. 
 
 

 

 Item number  

 Report number 

 

 

 

 

 

Wards B11 - City Centre 

Page 135

Agenda Item 4.9



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 2 of 15      21/05691/FUL 

Links 

Policies and guidance for 

this application 

LDPP, LEN01, LEN03, LEN06, LDEL02, LDES04, 

LDES05, LHOU07, NSG, NSLBCA, OTH, CRPOLD,  

Page 136

file:///C:/uniform/temp/uf04148.rtf%23Policies
file:///C:/uniform/temp/uf04148.rtf%23Policies


 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022   Page 3 of 15 21/05691/FUL 

Report 

Application for Planning Permission 21/05691/FUL 
at 231 High Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1PE. 
Planning permission is sought for outdoor seating area 
comprising of timber platform and fence with parasols. 
 

Recommendations  

1.1 It is recommended that this application be Refused for the reasons below. 

Background 

2.1 Site description 
 
The site is an area of adopted road located adjacent to Gordon's Trattoria at 231 High 
Street (A listed; reference: LB29048; listing date: 14/12/1970).  
 
The Royal Mile, of which the High Street forms the central portion, is the spine of the 
Old Town, the main thoroughfare and great processional way of old Edinburgh. It is a 
sequence of spaces as well as a street, and these variations reveal buildings and views 
sequentially that are equally impressive in which ever direction they are approached 
from. The ridge, the volcanic tail on which it sits and the natural constraints of the 
former loch and river on its long sides, helped to dictate a linear settlement form which 
is still clearly evident today. The alignment of the Royal Mile is also subject to the 
underlying natural topography and is not straight. Its gentle twists reflect the setting, 
and the work involved in its original creation. 
 
The site is located within the Edinburgh World Heritage Site. 
This application site is located within the Old Town Conservation Area. 
 
2.2 Site History 
 
Other seating applications on High Street 
 
25 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 148 High Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1QS 
(application reference 21/05674/FUL). 
 
24 November 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area at 119 High 
Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1SG (application reference 21/06213/FUL) 
 
Other seating applications on Cockburn Street 
 
14 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 19 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BP 
(application reference 21/05388/FUL). 
 

Page 137



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 4 of 15 21/05691/FUL 

22 November 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with clear polycarbonate at 34 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, 
EH1 1PB (application reference 21/06159/FUL). 
 
22 November 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with clear polycarbonate at 45 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, 
EH1 1BS (application reference 21/06060/FUL). 
 
22 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 61 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BS 
(application reference 21/05625/FUL). 
 
5 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 63 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BS 
(application reference 21/05216/FUL). 
 
27 October 2021L - Planning application made to erect outdoor seating area at 8 - 10 
North Bridge Arcade, Edinburgh, EH1 1QL (application reference 21/05721/FUL) 
 
5 November 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fencing with timber rain-screen covers over at 73 Cockburn Street, 
Edinburgh, EH1 1BU (application reference 21/05905/FUL). 
 
Other seating applications on Victoria Street 
 
15 October 2021 - Planning application made for erection of decking area on roadway 
in front of applicant premises for use as an external dining area (subject to Roads 
Department Permits and Licensing) at 36 - 38 Victoria Street, Edinburgh, EH1 2JW 
(application reference 21/05431/FUL). 
 

Main report 

3.1 Description of the Proposal 
 
Planning permission is sought for the permanent installation of a decked outdoor 
seating area. The seating area would be six metres in length and four metres wide, 
measuring approximately 1.56 metres in height at its tallest. The decking would be 
finished in timber with a parasol for coverage. The outdoor seating area is to be used 
by customers of Gordon's Trattoria. 
 
3.2 Determining Issues 
 
Section 25 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 states - Where, in 
making any determination under the planning Acts, regard is to be had to the 
development plan, the determination shall be made in accordance with the plan unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
Section 59 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997 states that in considering whether to grant planning permission for development 
which affects a listed building or its setting, a planning authority shall have special 

Page 138



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 5 of 15 21/05691/FUL 

regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of 
special architectural or historic interest which it possesses. 
 
Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997 states - special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or 
enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area.  
 
Do the proposals comply with the development plan? 
 
If the proposals do comply with the development plan, are there any compelling 
reasons for not approving them? 
 
If the proposals do not comply with the development plan, are there any compelling 
reasons for approving them? 
 
3.3 Assessment  
To address these determining issues, the Committee needs to consider whether: 
 

a) the proposal will have an acceptable impact on built heritage; 
b) the proposal is acceptable in principle; 
c) the proposal will have any adverse impact on residential amenity; 
d) the proposal will have an adverse impact on road safety; 
e) other material considerations and 
f) public comments have been addressed. 

 
a) Built Heritage 
 
Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997 (the LBCA Act) states that special attention shall be paid to the desirability of 
preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area. If there 
is harm to a Conservation Area as a result of development, there is a strong 
presumption against granting planning permission. This presumption can only be 
overcome if there are advantages to the scheme a its location which outweigh the harm 
and justify granting planning permission. If such advantages are found, is necessary to 
consider then whether these can only be delivered at the development's particular 
location.  
 
The Old Town Conservation Area Character Appraisal states that:  
 
The provision of consistent and high quality natural materials, street furniture and 
lighting in the public realm is a critical factor in uniting and complementing the built 
heritage. Natural stone paving slabs and stone setts have historically been used for 
street surfaces for many centuries. The historic paving displays a tradition of high 
quality workmanship, attention to detail and the use of robust and durable materials. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 139



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 6 of 15 21/05691/FUL 

It notes that: 
 
The durable architectural character of the Old Town is based around the main medieval 
streets of the Royal Mile - a sequence of five historic streets (Castlehill, Lawnmarket, 
High Street, Canongate and Abbey Strand). Castlehill is the narrow uppermost section 
and opens out into the much broader expanse of the Lawnmarket, which ends at the 
crossroads of George IV Bridge and Bank Street, from which point the Royal Mile 
becomes the High Street. The street narrows at the point where it was formerly closed 
by the main gateway into the town, the Netherbow Port. The original dense medieval 
urban fabric has been overlain by a series of Georgian and Victorian street 
improvements: North Bridge, South Bridge, George IV Bridge, Johnston Terrace, 
Victoria Street, Cockburn Street and Jeffrey Street. 
 
The main streets have a hard urban form with frontages of tall relatively uniform 
buildings. Building facades are generally laid out in continuous rows along main street 
frontages, with few gaps, forming a continuous building line directly abutting the 
footway. 
 
The proposal is for a deck that is surrounded by a timber fence, with parasol structures 
to provide a covering. It has a utilitarian character that does not demonstrate a high 
standard of design, nor does it utilise materials appropriate to the historic environment. 
Seen within the this uniquely designed street, the proposed structure detracts from the 
visual quality of the street as a whole. It therefore harms the character and appearance 
of the Conservation Area. The presumption against granting planning permission is 
therefore engaged. 
 
The primary advantage to this installation is that it provides additional space for the 
business to enable social distancing (as a result of the coronavirus pandemic). Its use 
will help support the business and bring some economic benefit.  However, only limited 
weight can be attached to these benefits as this application is for a permanent 
installation. The benefits do not outweigh the harm identified above.  
 
The proposal therefore does not comply with Section 64 of the LBCA Act.   
 
As a result of this, the proposal does not comply with Edinburgh Local Development 
Plan (LDP) Policy Env 6 Conservation Areas - Development or LDP Policy Des 4 
Development Design - Impact on Setting. 
 
Section 59 of the LBCA Act states that in considering whether to grant planning 
permission for development which affects a listed building or its setting, a planning 
authority or the Secretary of State, as the case may be, shall have special regard to the 
desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of special 
architectural or historic interest which it possesses. The impact on the setting of 
surrounding listed buildings needs to be considered.  
 
The setting of these buildings includes the street itself. As a result of the impacts 
described above, there would be harm to the setting of the listed buildings that are in 
close proximity to the structure. For similar reasons as described above, the proposal 
breaches the requirements of section 59 of the LBCA Act. Similarly, the advantages 
described above, do not outweigh the harm. The proposal is therefore not acceptable in 
relation to LDP Policy Env 3 - Listed Buildings Setting.   

Page 140



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 7 of 15 21/05691/FUL 

 
As well as the conservation area, and listed buildings, the proposal's impact on the Old 
and New Towns of Edinburgh World Heritage Site also needs to be considered.  
 
The proposed development would harm the qualities which justified the inscription of 
the World Heritage Site and would have a detrimental impact on the site's setting. The 
use of low quality materials, not in keeping with the area, and poor design would 
negatively impact the outstanding universal value of the World Heritage Site. The 
proposal would essentially restrict public space and in doing so upset the balance and 
uniqueness of the historic streets. 
 
In summary, the proposal is not acceptable in relation to Sections 59 and 64 of the 
LBCA Act as a result of the harm to the setting of listed buildings and to the character 
and appearance of the conservation area. As a result, it does not comply with LDP 
Policies, Env 3, Env 6 and Des 4. It would harm the World Heritage Site contrary to 
LDP Policy Env 1. 
 
b) Principle 
 
The site is located within the city centre where LDP Policy Del 2 applies. The proposal 
would be detrimental to the character and attractiveness of the city centre by virtue of 
the structure's poor quality design and use of unsympathetic materials. Furthermore, 
the siting of the structure on a public road would impact on the vitality and accessibility 
of the city centre by cluttering up the street and creating difficulties for access. 
 
As a result of its impact on the character and attractiveness of the street, the proposal 
fails to comply with LDP Policy Del 2 City Centre. 
 
c) Residential Amenity 
 
The proposal is likely to result in an adverse impact on local residential amenity. 
Although it is a busy area with a vibrant night-time economy, the permanent addition of 
a decked outdoor seating area would alter the character of the area though creating a 
formalised arrangement that is conducive to the congregation of groups.   
 
Environmental Protection has objected to the proposal and consider that it could lead to 
a noise nuisance that would be detrimental to the living standards of local residents. 
Discussion between Environmental Protection and Planning explored the potential for a 
condition to control the use. It is not however appropriate to restrict the hours of 
operation of one part of a premises with the remainder having different hours of 
operation. Therefore, a condition is not appropriate.  
 
The proposal is likely to be detrimental to residential amenity and fails to comply with 
LDP Policies Des 5 Development Design - Amenity and Hou 7 Inappropriate Uses in 
Residential Areas. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 141



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 8 of 15 21/05691/FUL 

d) Road Safety 
 
Following consultation, Transportation has recommended refusal as the proposal would 
be detrimental to road safety. The permanent occupancy of a section of adopted road 
would not be supported. Furthermore, the structure would result in the loss of parking 
and loading bays to the detriment of disabled drivers and passengers as well as 
residents, visitors and business operations. The presence of a structure on the road 
would have an adverse impact on various road operations (road maintenance, gully 
cleaning, gritting, street cleansing, events etc) and obligations (utilities access etc).  
 
The proposal would be detrimental to road safety.  
 
e) Other Material Considerations 
 
Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) presumption in favour of sustainable development is a 
significant material consideration due to the development plan being over five years 
old. The planning system should support economically, environmentally and socially 
sustainable places by enabling development that balances the costs and benefits of a 
proposal over the longer term. The aim is to achieve the right development in the right 
place; it is not to allow development at any cost. SPP sets out thirteen principles of 
sustainable development. The proposal is assessed against the relevant principles 
below. 
 

− giving due weight to net economic benefit 
Although it is acknowledged that there may be economic benefit to the outdoor seating 
area, this is outweighed by the issues set out above relating to the historic 
environment, residential amenity and road safety.  
 

− supporting good design and the six qualities of successful places 
As set out above the structure is of a poor-quality design and out of keeping with the 
character of the area. The proposal does not comply with the six qualities of successful 
places as it would impact on the ability to move around, would not be welcoming and 
due to the potential for nuisance would not be safe and welcoming. 
 

− improving health and well-being by offering opportunities for social interaction 
and physical activity, including sport and recreation 

The proposals could offer opportunities for social interaction, particularly where 
Coronavirus is concerned (this is discussed further below), however this does not 
outweigh the impact on the historic environment, residential amenity and road safety. 
 

− protecting, enhancing and promoting access to cultural heritage, including the 
historic environment 

The proposal would have a negative impact on the outstanding universal value of the 
Edinburgh World Heritage Site as well as on the character and appearance of the Old 
Town Conservation Area. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 142



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 9 of 15 21/05691/FUL 

− avoiding over-development, protecting the amenity of new and existing 
development and considering the implications of development for water, air and 
soil quality 

The proposal is likely to result in an adverse impact on the amenity of local residents. 
 
The proposal does not comply with the relevant principles of sustainable development 
as set out in Scottish Planning Policy. 
 
Coronavirus Pandemic 
 
Although there is an understanding that a flexible approach is required given the fast-
changing nature of the global pandemic and that it continues to impact on hospitality 
businesses, the application seeks permission for the permanent siting of the structure. 
It should be noted that the recent letter from the Scottish Government Chief Planner 
has stated that a relaxed approach to planning enforcement should remain in place 
until September 2022. A report will be brought to Planning Committee on 23 February 
2022 which will set out a proposed approach to planning enforcement for temporary 
structures for hospitality.  This will enable Planning Committee to decide on the extent 
of relaxation to planning enforcement for the months ahead.  
 
Given the current restrictions on social distancing etc remain in place, if the application 
is refused, the Chief Planning Officer would not instigate any planning enforcement 
action until further consideration has been given to enforcement by Planning 
Committee on 23 February 2022.   
 
Consideration has been given to whether a temporary permission could be granted by 
means of a planning condition to restrict the duration of the operation. However, as the 
length of coronavirus restrictions is unknown, the approach to enforcement to 23 
February with subsequent Planning Committee oversight provides a better, more 
flexible framework for continued use of this installation.  
 
f) Public Comments 
 
Eight letters of representation have been received. All representations objected to the 
proposal. 
 
Material Considerations 

− Amenity: this has been addressed in section 3.3(c); 

− Design: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a) and (b); 

− Privatisation of public space: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a); 

− Impact on Conservation Area: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a); 

− Impact on World Heritage Site: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a); 

− Impact on Listed Buildings: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a); 

− Road safety: this has been addressed in section 3.3(d). 
 
Conclusion 
 
As a result of its location, form and design, the proposal does not comply with Sections 
59 and 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997.  
 

Page 143



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 10 of 15 21/05691/FUL 

The proposal is not acceptable in principle and would be harmful to the Edinburgh 
World Heritage Site and the Old Town Conservation Area. The proposal is likely to lead 
to an unacceptable impact on residential amenity and is not acceptable in terms of its 
impact on road safety. It fails to comply with the Local Development Plan, associated 
guidance and the principles of sustainability as set out by Scottish Planning Policy. 
There are no material considerations that outweigh this conclusion and refusal is 
recommended. 
 
Notwithstanding the reason for decision as set out above, no planning enforcement 
action will be taken until a decision of Planning Committee on 23 February 2022 on a 
proposed approach to planning enforcement for temporary structures for hospitality. 
 
 
 
 
It is recommended that this application be Refused for the reasons below. 
 
3.4 Conditions/reasons/informatives 
 
Reasons:- 
 
1. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Env 1 World Heritage Sites as 

the proposed development would harm the qualities which justified the 
inscription of the Old and New Towns of Edinburgh as a World Heritage Site and 
would have a detrimental impact on the site's setting. 

 
2. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Env 6 Conservation Areas - 

Development as the proposal would not preserve or enhance the special 
character or appearance of the Old Town Conservation Area. 

 
3. The proposal fails to comply with the principles of sustainability as set out by 

Scottish Planning Policy. 
 
4. The proposal's adverse impact on setting of listed buildings and the conservation 

area means it does not comply with the requirements of Sections 59 and 64 of 
the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 1997. 

 
5. The proposal will have a negative impact on road safety as it would result in the 

permanent occupancy of a section of adopted road. 
 
6. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Des 5 Development Design - 

Amenity as it is likely to adversely impact on the amenity of neighbouring 
properties. 

 
7. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Hou 7 Inappropriate Uses in 

Residential Areas as it is likely to have a materially detrimental effect on the 
living conditions of nearby residents. 

 
 
 
 

Page 144



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 11 of 15 21/05691/FUL 

Financial impact  

4.1 The financial impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
In general, in respect of on carriageway installations, any loss of parking income may 
be mitigated by income from tables and chair licences. 

Risk, Policy, compliance and governance impact 

5.1 Provided planning applications are determined in accordance with statutory 
legislation, the level of risk is low. 

Equalities impact  

6.1 The equalities impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
The application has been assessed and has no impact in terms of equalities or human 
rights. 

Sustainability impact  

7.1 The sustainability impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
This application is not subject to the sustainability requirements of the Edinburgh 
Design Guidance. 

Consultation and engagement  

8.1 Pre-Application Process 
 
There is no pre-application process history. 
 
8.2 Publicity summary of representations and Community Council comments 
 
Following statutory neighbour notification and advertisement in the Edinburgh Evening 
News, eight letters of representation have been received. 

Background reading/external references 

• To view details of the application, go to  

• Planning and Building Standards online services 

• Planning guidelines  

• Conservation Area Character Appraisals  

• Edinburgh Local Development Plan  

• Scottish Planning Policy 

Page 145

https://citydev-portal.edinburgh.gov.uk/idoxpa-web/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/planningguidelines
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/characterappraisals
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/localdevelopmentplan
http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Topics/Built-Environment/planning/Policy


 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 12 of 15 21/05691/FUL 

 

 

 
David Givan 
Chief Planning Officer 
PLACE 
The City of Edinburgh Council 
 
 
Contact: Murray Couston, Planning Officer 

E-mail:murray.couston@edinburgh.gov.uk  

Links - Policies 

 
Relevant Policies: 
 
Relevant policies of the Local Development Plan. 
 
LDP Policy Env 1 (World Heritage Site) protects the quality of the World Heritage Site 
and its setting. 
 
LDP Policy Env 3 (Listed Buildings - Setting) identifies the circumstances in which 
development within the curtilage or affecting the setting of a listed building will be 
permitted. 
 
LDP Policy Env 6 (Conservation Areas - Development) sets out criteria for assessing 
development in a conservation area. 
 

 Statutory Development 

Plan Provision 

 

The site is within the City Centre, Old Town 

Conservation Area and Edinburgh World Heritage Site 

as defined by the adopted Local Development Plan. 

 

 

 Date registered 26 October 2021 

 

 

 

 

Drawing numbers/Scheme 01-02, 

 

 

 

Scheme 1 
 

 

Page 146



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 13 of 15 21/05691/FUL 

LDP Policy Del 2 (City Centre) sets criteria for assessing development in the city 
centre. 
 
LDP Policy Des 4 (Development Design - Impact on Setting) sets criteria for assessing 
the impact of development design against its setting. 
 
LDP Policy Des 5 (Development Design - Amenity) sets criteria for assessing amenity.  
 
LDP Policy Hou 7 (Inappropriate Uses in Residential Areas) establishes a presumption 
against development which would have an unacceptable effect on the living conditions 
of nearby residents. 
 
Relevant Non-Statutory Guidelines 
 
Non-statutory guidelines  'LISTED BUILDINGS AND CONSERVATION AREAS' 
provides guidance on repairing, altering or extending listed buildings and unlisted 
buildings in conservation areas. 
 
Other Relevant policy guidance 
 
The Old Town Conservation Area Character Appraisal emphasises the survival of 
the original medieval street pattern; the wealth of important landmark buildings; the 
survival of an outstanding collection of archaeological remains, medieval buildings, and 
17th-century town houses; the consistent and harmonious height and mass of 
buildings; the importance of stone as a construction material for both buildings and the 
public realm; the vitality and variety of different uses; and the continuing presence of a 
residential community 
 

Page 147



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 14 of 15 21/05691/FUL 

Appendix 1 
 
Application for Planning Permission 21/05691/FUL 
at 231 High Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1PE. 
Planning permission is sought for outdoor seating area 
comprising of timber platform and fence with parasols. 
 
Consultations 

 
 
Environmental Protection 
 
The application concerns proposals for a timber decking platform with a railing 
surround on which outdoor seating for diners will be located. The structure will be 
located on the cobbled roadway in front of Gordon's Trattoria on the High Street. It is 
understood that the premises already utilise an outdoor tables and chairs area for 
customers on the pavement immediately outside their premises. There are residential 
properties on the upper floors of the tenements in the surrounding area of the High 
Street.  
 
Environmental Protection have concerns that the use of external dining areas, 
especially late at night, may generate noise leading to complaints from residents and 
would prefer for the use of the temporary structure not to be permitted beyond 10pm. 
Following discussions with Planning it is understood that it would not be possible to 
place time restrictions on only part of the premises, namely the use of the decked 
external dining area. 
 
As it will not be possible to impose a condition restricting the time of use of the structure 
and there are no other means to ensure that these structures can't be used during the 
more sensitive nighttime hours, Environmental Protection is unable to support this 
application. 
 
Transportation 
 
The application should be refused. 
 
Reasons: 
1.  The proposals seek to occupy a section of the carriageway that forms part of the 

adopted road; 
2.  The placement of a structure on a road or footway is considered detrimental to 

road safety; 
3.  The structure results in the loss of parking and/or loading bays to the detriment 

of disabled drivers/passengers, residents, visitors and business operations and 
will likely lead to indiscriminate parking nearby; 

4.  The presence of a structure on a road or footway has an adverse impact on 
various road operations (road maintenance, gully cleaning, gritting, street 
cleansing, events etc) and obligations (utilities access etc); 

Page 148



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 15 of 15 21/05691/FUL 

5.  The operation of the facility may result in restrictions on the adjacent footway 
which is contrary to the Councils Equal Pavements Pledge. 

 
Notes - 
1.  The Council as Roads Authority has confirmed that written approval, as required 

under Section 59 of the Roads (Scotland) Act 1984, will not be given for these 
structures. 

 
 
 
 

Location Plan 

 
 

© Crown Copyright and database right 2014. All rights reserved. Ordnance Survey License number 100023420 

END 

Page 149



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 1 of 15      21/05721/FUL 

Development Management Sub Committee 

Wednesday 19 January 2022 

 

 

 

Application for Planning Permission 21/05721/FUL 
at 8 - 10 North Bridge Arcade, Edinburgh, EH1 1QL. 
To erect outdoor seating area. 

 

 

Summary 

 
As a result of its location, form and design, the proposal does not comply with Sections 
59 and 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997.  
 
The proposal is not acceptable in principle and would be harmful to the Edinburgh 
World Heritage Site and the Old Town Conservation Area. The proposal is likely to lead 
to an unacceptable impact on residential amenity and is not acceptable in terms of its 
impact on road safety. It fails to comply with the Local Development Plan, associated 
guidance and the principles of sustainability as set out by Scottish Planning Policy. 
There are no material considerations that outweigh this conclusion and refusal is 
recommended. 
 
Notwithstanding the reason for decision as set out above, no planning enforcement 
action will be taken until a decision of Planning Committee on 23 February 2022 on a 
proposed approach to planning enforcement for temporary structures for hospitality. 
 
 

 

 

 Item number  

 Report number 

 

 

 

 

 

Wards B11 - City Centre 

Page 151

Agenda Item 4.10



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 2 of 15      21/05721/FUL 

Links 

Policies and guidance for 

this application 

LDPP, LEN01, LEN03, LEN06, LDEL02, LDES04, 

LDES05, LHOU07, NSG, NSLBCA, OTH, CRPOLD,  

Page 152

file:///C:/uniform/temp/uf04148.rtf%23Policies
file:///C:/uniform/temp/uf04148.rtf%23Policies


 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022   Page 3 of 15 21/05721/FUL 

Report 

Application for Planning Permission 21/05721/FUL 
at 8 - 10 North Bridge Arcade, Edinburgh, EH1 1QL. 
To erect outdoor seating area. 
 

Recommendations  

1.1 It is recommended that this application be Refused for the reasons below. 

Background 

2.1 Site description 
 
The site is an area of adopted road located on Cockburn Street, adjacent to Scran 
which is at 8-10 North Bridge Arcade (A listed; reference: LB30143; listing date: 
12/12/1974).  
 
Cockburn Street is an important Victorian Street within the Old Town. It connects 
Waverley Station and Princes Street Gardens to the Royal Mile and constitutes a 
strategic link between the Old Town and the New Town. It is both a residential and 
commercial street, and all buildings on the street are statutorily listed, being a mix of 
both 'A' and 'B' listed buildings. It has a unique townscape; tall narrow buildings frame 
the street and give it a strong sense of enclosure as well as continuous active frontage. 
It is also a serpentine street characterised by its sinuous path sloping up towards the 
Royal Mile. Whilst the response of urban form to topography is a distinctive feature of 
the Old Town of Edinburgh in general, it is well exemplified in Cockburn Street.  
 
The site is located within the Edinburgh World Heritage Site. 
This application site is located within the Old Town Conservation Area. 
 
2.2 Site History 
 
Other seating applications on High Street 
 
25 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 148 High Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1QS 
(application reference 21/05674/FUL). 
 
26 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 231 High Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1PE 
(application reference 21/05691/FUL). 
 
24 November 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area at 119 High 
Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1SG (application reference 21/06213/FUL) 
 
 
 

Page 153



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 4 of 15 21/05721/FUL 

Other seating applications on Cockburn Street 
 
14 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 19 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BP 
(application reference 21/05388/FUL). 
 
22 November 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with clear polycarbonate at 34 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, 
EH1 1PB (application reference 21/06159/FUL). 
 
22 November 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with clear polycarbonate at 45 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, 
EH1 1BS (application reference 21/06060/FUL). 
 
22 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 61 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BS 
(application reference 21/05625/FUL). 
 
5 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 63 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BS 
(application reference 21/05216/FUL). 
 
5 November 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fencing with timber rain-screen covers over at 73 Cockburn Street, 
Edinburgh, EH1 1BU (application reference 21/05905/FUL). 
 
Other seating applications on Victoria Street 
 
15 October 2021 - Planning application made for erection of decking area on roadway 
in front of applicant premises for use as an external dining area (subject to Roads 
Department Permits and Licensing) at 36 - 38 Victoria Street, Edinburgh, EH1 2JW 
(application reference 21/05431/FUL). 

Main report 

3.1 Description of the Proposal 
 
Planning permission is sought for the permanent installation of a decked outdoor 
seating area with a pergola. The seating area would be six metres in length and two 
metres wide, measuring approximately one metre in height. The decking would be 
finished in timber. The outdoor seating area is to be used by customers of Scran. 
 
Notwithstanding the above, the structure has been built. The pergola structure has a 
translucent covering. 
 
3.2 Determining Issues 
 
Section 25 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 states - Where, in 
making any determination under the planning Acts, regard is to be had to the 
development plan, the determination shall be made in accordance with the plan unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 

Page 154



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 5 of 15 21/05721/FUL 

Section 59 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997 states that in considering whether to grant planning permission for development 
which affects a listed building or its setting, a planning authority shall have special 
regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of 
special architectural or historic interest which it possesses. 
 
Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997 states - special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or 
enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area.  
 
Do the proposals comply with the development plan? 
 
If the proposals do comply with the development plan, are there any compelling 
reasons for not approving them? 
 
If the proposals do not comply with the development plan, are there any compelling 
reasons for approving them? 
 
3.3 Assessment  
To address these determining issues, the Committee needs to consider whether: 
 

a) the proposal will have an acceptable impact on built heritage; 
b) the proposal is acceptable in principle; 
c) the proposal will have any adverse impact on residential amenity; 
d) the proposal will have an adverse impact on road safety; 
e) other material considerations and 
f) public comments have been addressed. 

 
a) Built Heritage 
 
Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997 (the LBCA Act) states that special attention shall be paid to the desirability of 
preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area. If there 
is harm to a Conservation Area as a result of development, there is a strong 
presumption against granting planning permission. This presumption can only be 
overcome if there are advantages to the scheme a its location which outweigh the harm 
and justify granting planning permission. If such advantages are found, is necessary to 
consider then whether these can only be delivered at the development's particular 
location.  
 
The Old Town Conservation Area Character Appraisal states that:  
 
The provision of consistent and high quality natural materials, street furniture and 
lighting in the public realm is a critical factor in uniting and complementing the built 
heritage. Natural stone paving slabs and stone setts have historically been used for 
street surfaces for many centuries. The historic paving displays a tradition of high 
quality workmanship, attention to detail and the use of robust and durable materials. 
 
 
 
 

Page 155



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 6 of 15 21/05721/FUL 

It notes that: 
 
Cockburn Street has thirty Baronial blocks built between 1859 and 1864 along a 
serpentine curve to provide access to Waverley Station from the Old Town and clear 
the densely packed backlands of existing closes. The Edinburgh Railway Station Act, of 
1853, which authorised its construction, specified the need to preserve the architectural 
style and antique character of the locality to secure harmony between the new 
buildings and those of the Old Town. The variegated Baronial architecture 
acknowledged the steep gradient of the street, recreated some of the intimacy of an old 
Edinburgh close and provided a new architectural gateway to the Old Town. 
 
The proposal is for a deck that is surrounded by a timber fence, with a pergola to 
provide a covering. It has a utilitarian character that does not demonstrate a high 
standard of design, nor does it utilise materials appropriate to the historic environment. 
Seen within the this uniquely designed street, the proposed structure detracts from the 
visual quality of the street as a whole. It therefore harms the character and appearance 
of the Conservation Area. The presumption against granting planning permission is 
therefore engaged. 
 
The primary advantage to this installation is that it provides additional space for the 
business to enable social distancing (as a result of the coronavirus pandemic). Its use 
will help support the business and bring some economic benefit.  However, only limited 
weight can be attached to these benefits as this application is for a permanent 
installation. The benefits do not outweigh the harm identified above.  
 
The proposal therefore does not comply with Section 64 of the LBCA Act.   
 
As a result of this, the proposal does not comply with Edinburgh Local Development 
Plan (LDP) Policy Env 6 Conservation Areas - Development or LDP Policy Des 4 
Development Design - Impact on Setting. 
 
Section 59 of the LBCA Act states that in considering whether to grant planning 
permission for development which affects a listed building or its setting, a planning 
authority or the Secretary of State, as the case may be, shall have special regard to the 
desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of special 
architectural or historic interest which it possesses. The impact on the setting of 
surrounding listed buildings needs to be considered.  
 
The setting of these buildings includes the street itself. As a result of the impacts 
described above, there would be harm to the setting of the listed buildings that are in 
close proximity to the structure. For similar reasons as described above, the proposal 
breaches the requirements of section 59 of the LBCA Act. Similarly, the advantages 
described above, do not outweigh the harm. The proposal is therefore not acceptable in 
relation to LDP Policy Env 3 - Listed Buildings Setting.   
 
As well as the conservation area, and listed buildings, the proposal's impact on the Old 
and New Towns of Edinburgh World Heritage Site also needs to be considered.  
 
The proposed development would harm the qualities which justified the inscription of 
the World Heritage Site and would have a detrimental impact on the site's setting.  

Page 156



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 7 of 15 21/05721/FUL 

The use of low quality materials, not in keeping with the area, and poor design would 
negatively impact the outstanding universal value of the World Heritage Site. The 
proposal would essentially restrict public space and in doing so upset the balance and 
uniqueness of the historic streets. 
 
In summary, the proposal is not acceptable in relation to Sections 59 and 64 of the 
LBCA Act as a result of the harm to the setting of listed buildings and to the character 
and appearance of the conservation area. As a result, it does not comply with LDP 
Policies, Env 3, Env 6 and Des 4. It would harm the World Heritage Site contrary to 
LDP Policy Env 1. 
 
b) Principle 
 
The site is located within the city centre where LDP Policy Del 2 applies. The proposal 
would be detrimental to the character and attractiveness of the city centre by virtue of 
the structure's poor quality design and use of unsympathetic materials. Furthermore, 
the siting of the structure on a public road would impact on the vitality and accessibility 
of the city centre by cluttering up the street and creating difficulties for access. 
 
As a result of its impact on the character and attractiveness of the street, the proposal 
fails to comply with LDP Policy Del 2 City Centre. 
 
c) Residential Amenity 
 
The proposal is likely to result in an adverse impact on local residential amenity. 
Although it is a busy area with a vibrant night-time economy, the permanent addition of 
a decked outdoor seating area would alter the character of the area though creating a 
formalised arrangement that is conducive to the congregation of groups.   
 
Environmental Protection has not objected to the proposal and has recommended a 
condition limiting the hours of operation. It is not however appropriate to restrict the 
hours of operation of one part of a premises with the remainder having different hours 
of operation. Therefore, a condition is not appropriate.  
 
The proposal is likely to be detrimental to residential amenity and fails to comply with 
LDP Policies Des 5 Development Design - Amenity and Hou 7 Inappropriate Uses in 
Residential Areas. 
 
d) Road Safety 
 
Following consultation, Transportation has recommended refusal as the proposal would 
be detrimental to road safety. The permanent occupancy of a section of adopted road 
would not be supported. Furthermore, the structure would result in the loss of parking 
and loading bays to the detriment of disabled drivers and passengers as well as 
residents, visitors and business operations. The presence of a structure on the road 
would have an adverse impact on various road operations (road maintenance, gully 
cleaning, gritting, street cleansing, events etc) and obligations (utilities access etc).  
 
The proposal would be detrimental to road safety.  
 
 

Page 157



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 8 of 15 21/05721/FUL 

e) Other Material Considerations 
 
Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) presumption in favour of sustainable development is a 
significant material consideration due to the development plan being over five years 
old. The planning system should support economically, environmentally and socially 
sustainable places by enabling development that balances the costs and benefits of a 
proposal over the longer term. The aim is to achieve the right development in the right 
place; it is not to allow development at any cost. SPP sets out thirteen principles of 
sustainable development. The proposal is assessed against the relevant principles 
below. 
 

− giving due weight to net economic benefit 
Although it is acknowledged that there may be economic benefit to the outdoor seating 
area, this is outweighed by the issues set out above relating to the historic 
environment, residential amenity and road safety.  
 

− supporting good design and the six qualities of successful places 
As set out above the structure is of a poor-quality design and out of keeping with the 
character of the area. The proposal does not comply with the six qualities of successful 
places as it would impact on the ability to move around, would not be welcoming and 
due to the potential for nuisance would not be safe and welcoming. 
 

− improving health and well-being by offering opportunities for social interaction 
and physical activity, including sport and recreation 

The proposals could offer opportunities for social interaction, particularly where 
Coronavirus is concerned (this is discussed further below), however this does not 
outweigh the impact on the historic environment, residential amenity and road safety. 
 

− protecting, enhancing and promoting access to cultural heritage, including the 
historic environment 

The proposal would have a negative impact on the outstanding universal value of the 
Edinburgh World Heritage Site as well as on the character and appearance of the Old 
Town Conservation Area. 
 

− avoiding over-development, protecting the amenity of new and existing 
development and considering the implications of development for water, air and 
soil quality 

The proposal is likely to result in an adverse impact on the amenity of local residents. 
 
The proposal does not comply with the relevant principles of sustainable development 
as set out in Scottish Planning Policy. 
 
Coronavirus Pandemic 
 
Although there is an understanding that a flexible approach is required given the fast-
changing nature of the global pandemic and that it continues to impact on hospitality 
businesses, the application seeks permission for the permanent siting of the structure. 
It should be noted that the recent letter from the Scottish Government Chief Planner 
has stated that a relaxed approach to planning enforcement should remain in place 
until September 2022.  

Page 158



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 9 of 15 21/05721/FUL 

A report will be brought to Planning Committee on 23 February 2022 which will set out 
a proposed approach to planning enforcement for temporary structures for hospitality.  
This will enable Planning Committee to decide on the extent of relaxation to planning 
enforcement for the months ahead.  
 
Given the current restrictions on social distancing etc remain in place, if the application 
is refused, the Chief Planning Officer would not instigate any planning enforcement 
action until further consideration has been given to enforcement by Planning 
Committee on 23 February 2022.   
 
Consideration has been given to whether a temporary permission could be granted by 
means of a planning condition to restrict the duration of the operation. However, as the 
length of coronavirus restrictions is unknown, the approach to enforcement to 23 
February with subsequent Planning Committee oversight provides a better, more 
flexible framework for continued use of this installation.  
 
f) Public Comments 
 
Fifteen letters of representation have been received. Of these, fourteen object to the 
proposal and one makes comments in support. 
 
Material Considerations 

− Amenity: this has been addressed in section 3.3(c); 

− Design: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a) and (b); 

− Privatisation of public space: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a); 

− Impact on Conservation Area: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a); 

− Impact on World Heritage Site: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a); 

− Impact on Listed Buildings: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a); 

− Road safety: this has been addressed in section 3.3(d). 
 
Non Material Considerations 

− Premises should be made to pay rent to be allowed the use. 
 
Conclusion 
 
As a result of its location, form and design, the proposal does not comply with Sections 
59 and 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997.  
 
The proposal is not acceptable in principle and would be harmful to the Edinburgh 
World Heritage Site and the Old Town Conservation Area. The proposal is likely to lead 
to an unacceptable impact on residential amenity and is not acceptable in terms of its 
impact on road safety. It fails to comply with the Local Development Plan, associated 
guidance and the principles of sustainability as set out by Scottish Planning Policy. 
There are no material considerations that outweigh this conclusion and refusal is 
recommended. 
 
Notwithstanding the reason for decision as set out above, no planning enforcement 
action will be taken until a decision of Planning Committee on 23 February 2022 on a 
proposed approach to planning enforcement for temporary structures for hospitality. 
 

Page 159



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 10 of 15 21/05721/FUL 

 
 
 
It is recommended that this application be Refused for the reasons below. 
 
3.4 Conditions/reasons/informatives 
 
Reasons:- 
 
1. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Env 1 World Heritage Sites as 

the proposed development would harm the qualities which justified the 
inscription of the Old and New Towns of Edinburgh as a World Heritage Site and 
would have a detrimental impact on the site's setting. 

 
2. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Env 6 Conservation Areas - 

Development as the proposal would not preserve or enhance the special 
character or appearance of the Old Town Conservation Area. 

 
3. The proposal fails to comply with the principles of sustainability as set out by 

Scottish Planning Policy. 
 
4. The proposal's adverse impact on setting of listed buildings and the conservation 

area means it does not comply with the requirements of Sections 59 and 64 of 
the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 1997. 

 
5. The proposal will have a negative impact on road safety as it would result in the 

permanent occupancy of a section of adopted road. 
 
6. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Des 5 Development Design - 

Amenity as it is likely to adversely impact on the amenity of neighbouring 
properties. 

 
7. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Hou 7 Inappropriate Uses in 

Residential Areas as it is likely to have a materially detrimental 
effect on the living conditions of nearby residents. 

 

 

Financial impact  

4.1 The financial impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
In general, in respect of on carriageway installations, any loss of parking income may 
be mitigated by income from tables and chair licences. 

Risk, Policy, compliance and governance impact 

5.1 Provided planning applications are determined in accordance with statutory 
legislation, the level of risk is low. 

Page 160



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 11 of 15 21/05721/FUL 

Equalities impact  

6.1 The equalities impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
The application has been assessed and has no impact in terms of equalities or human 
rights. 

Sustainability impact  

7.1 The sustainability impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
This application is not subject to the sustainability requirements of the Edinburgh 
Design Guidance. 

Consultation and engagement  

8.1 Pre-Application Process 
 
There is no pre-application process history. 
 
8.2 Publicity summary of representations and Community Council comments 
 
Following statutory neighbour notification and advertisement in the Edinburgh Evening 
News, fifteen letters of representation have been received. 

Background reading/external references 

• To view details of the application, go to  

• Planning and Building Standards online services 

• Planning guidelines  

• Conservation Area Character Appraisals  

• Edinburgh Local Development Plan  

• Scottish Planning Policy 

Page 161

https://citydev-portal.edinburgh.gov.uk/idoxpa-web/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/planningguidelines
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/characterappraisals
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/localdevelopmentplan
http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Topics/Built-Environment/planning/Policy


 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 12 of 15 21/05721/FUL 

 

 

 
David Givan 
Chief Planning Officer 
PLACE 
The City of Edinburgh Council 
 
 
Contact: Murray Couston, Planning Officer 

E-mail:murray.couston@edinburgh.gov.uk  

Links - Policies 

 
Relevant Policies: 
 
Relevant policies of the Local Development Plan. 
 
LDP Policy Env 1 (World Heritage Site) protects the quality of the World Heritage Site 
and its setting. 
 
LDP Policy Env 3 (Listed Buildings - Setting) identifies the circumstances in which 
development within the curtilage or affecting the setting of a listed building will be 
permitted. 
 
LDP Policy Env 6 (Conservation Areas - Development) sets out criteria for assessing 
development in a conservation area. 
 

 Statutory Development 

Plan Provision 

 

The site is within the City Centre, Old Town 

Conservation Area and Edinburgh World Heritage Site 

as defined by the adopted Local Development Plan. 

 

 

 Date registered 27 October 2021 

 

 

 

 

Drawing numbers/Scheme 01-02, 

 

 

 

Scheme 1 
 

 

Page 162



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 13 of 15 21/05721/FUL 

LDP Policy Del 2 (City Centre) sets criteria for assessing development in the city 
centre. 
 
LDP Policy Des 4 (Development Design - Impact on Setting) sets criteria for assessing 
the impact of development design against its setting. 
 
LDP Policy Des 5 (Development Design - Amenity) sets criteria for assessing amenity.  
 
LDP Policy Hou 7 (Inappropriate Uses in Residential Areas) establishes a presumption 
against development which would have an unacceptable effect on the living conditions 
of nearby residents. 
 
Relevant Non-Statutory Guidelines 
 
Non-statutory guidelines  'LISTED BUILDINGS AND CONSERVATION AREAS' 
provides guidance on repairing, altering or extending listed buildings and unlisted 
buildings in conservation areas. 
 
Other Relevant policy guidance 
 
The Old Town Conservation Area Character Appraisal emphasises the survival of 
the original medieval street pattern; the wealth of important landmark buildings; the 
survival of an outstanding collection of archaeological remains, medieval buildings, and 
17th-century town houses; the consistent and harmonious height and mass of 
buildings; the importance of stone as a construction material for both buildings and the 
public realm; the vitality and variety of different uses; and the continuing presence of a 
residential community 
 

Page 163



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 14 of 15 21/05721/FUL 

Appendix 1 
 
Application for Planning Permission 21/05721/FUL 
at 8 - 10 North Bridge Arcade, Edinburgh, EH1 1QL. 
To erect outdoor seating area. 
 
Consultations 

 
 
Environmental Protection 
 
The applicant operates an existing food business which operates 8am -10pm daily. The 
unit fronts onto Cockburn Street which has a number of varied commercial and retail 
uses located at street level. Some of these existing units have existing outdoor seating 
areas for customers. There are some residential properties located on the upper floors, 
however this street is already a vibrant location. 
 
The applicant proposes installing a decked area on the cobbles to be used for 
customers. Taking into consideration the existing opening hours a of the food business 
and the existing character of the street Environmental Protection would offer no 
objection as long as the use was not permitted beyond 10pm. We recommend that this 
is conditioned. 
 
Condition 
 
1. The hours of operation of the decked area shall be restricted to between 8:00 
and 22:00 daily. 
 
Transportation 
 
The application should be refused. 
 
Reasons: 
1. The proposals seek to occupy a section of the carriageway that forms part of the 
adopted road; 
2. The placement of a structure on a road or footway is considered detrimental to road 
safety; 
3. The structure results in the loss of parking and/or loading bays to the detriment of 
disabled drivers/passengers, residents, visitors and business operations and will likely 
lead to indiscriminate parking nearby; 
4. The presence of a structure on a road or footway has an adverse impact on various 
road operations (road maintenance, gully cleaning, gritting, street cleansing, events 
etc) and obligations (utilities access etc); 
5. The operation of the facility may result in restrictions on the adjacent footway which 
is contrary to the Councils Equal Pavements Pledge. 
 
Notes - 

Page 164



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 15 of 15 21/05721/FUL 

1. The Council as Roads Authority has confirmed that written approval, as required 
under Section 59 of the Roads (Scotland) Act 1984, will not be given for these 
structures. 
 
 
 
 

Location Plan 

 
 

© Crown Copyright and database right 2014. All rights reserved. Ordnance Survey License number 100023420 

END 

Page 165



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 1 of 15      21/05431/FUL 

Development Management Sub Committee 

Wednesday 19 January 2022 

 

 

 

Application for Planning Permission 21/05431/FUL 
at 36 - 38 Victoria Street, Edinburgh, EH1 2JW. 
Erection of decking area on roadway in front of applicant 
premises for use as an external dining area (subject to 
Roads Department Permits and Licensing). 

 

 

Summary 

 
As a result of its location, form and design, the proposal does not comply with Sections 
59 and 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997.  
 
The proposal is not acceptable in principle and would be harmful to the Edinburgh 
World Heritage Site and the Old Town Conservation Area. The proposal is likely to lead 
to an unacceptable impact on residential amenity and is not acceptable in terms of its 
impact on road safety. It fails to comply with the Local Development Plan, associated 
guidance and the principles of sustainability as set out by Scottish Planning Policy. 
There are no material considerations that outweigh this conclusion and refusal is 
recommended. 
 
Notwithstanding the reason for decision as set out above, no planning enforcement 
action will be taken until a decision of Planning Committee on 23 February 2022 on a 
proposed approach to planning enforcement for temporary structures for hospitality. 
 
 

 

 Item number  

 Report number 

 

 

 

 

 

Wards B11 - City Centre 

Page 167

Agenda Item 4.11



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 2 of 15      21/05431/FUL 

Links 

Policies and guidance for 

this application 

LDPP, LEN01, LEN03, LEN06, LDEL02, LDES04, 

LDES05, LHOU07, NSG, NSLBCA, OTH, CRPOLD,  

Page 168

file:///C:/uniform/temp/uf04148.rtf%23Policies
file:///C:/uniform/temp/uf04148.rtf%23Policies


 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022   Page 3 of 15 21/05431/FUL 

Report 

Application for Planning Permission 21/05431/FUL 
at 36 - 38 Victoria Street, Edinburgh, EH1 2JW. 
Erection of decking area on roadway in front of applicant 
premises for use as an external dining area (subject to 
Roads Department Permits and Licensing). 
 

Recommendations  

1.1 It is recommended that this application be Refused for the reasons below. 

Background 

2.1 Site description 
 
The site is an area of adopted road located adjacent to Maison Bleue at 36 - 38 Victoria 
Street (B listed; reference: LB29873; listing date: 14/12/1970). Victoria Street contains 
a small fragment of the old West Bow, complete with five of its old houses, and a fine 
group of arcaded shop fronts surmounted by a pedestrian terrace.  The premises are 
three storeys in height with Victoria Terrace above. The area is generally characterised 
by retail units at ground floor, with residential above. 
 
The site is located within the Edinburgh World Heritage Site. 
This application site is located within the Old Town Conservation Area. 
 
2.2 Site History 
 
Other seating applications on High Street 
 
25 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 148 High Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1QS 
(application reference 21/05674/FUL). 
 
26 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 231 High Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1PE 
(application reference 21/05691/FUL). 
 
24 November 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area at 119 High 
Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1SG (application reference 21/06213/FUL) 
 
Other seating applications on Cockburn Street 
 
14 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 19 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BP 
(application reference 21/05388/FUL). 
 

Page 169



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 4 of 15 21/05431/FUL 

22 November 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with clear polycarbonate at 34 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, 
EH1 1PB (application reference 21/06159/FUL). 
 
22 November 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with clear polycarbonate at 45 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, 
EH1 1BS (application reference 21/06060/FUL). 
 
22 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 61 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BS 
(application reference 21/05625/FUL). 
 
5 October 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fence with parasols at 63 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1BS 
(application reference 21/05216/FUL). 
 
27 October 2021L - Planning application made to erect outdoor seating area at 8 - 10 
North Bridge Arcade, Edinburgh, EH1 1QL (application reference 21/05721/FUL) 
 
5 November 2021 - Planning application made for outdoor seating area comprising of 
timber platform and fencing with timber rain-screen covers over at 73 Cockburn Street, 
Edinburgh, EH1 1BU (application reference 21/05905/FUL). 
 

Main report 

3.1 Description of the Proposal 
 
Planning permission is sought for the permanent installation of decked outdoor seating 
area. The seating area would be approximately ten metres in length, 4.2 metres in 
height and five metres wide. The area would have a louvre pergola and finished in 
timber. The outdoor seating area is to be used by customers of Maison Bleue. 
 
The structure is already built. The side facing the drawing has a timber fence made of 
decking boards. Although the drawings show a pergola structure with electric patio 
heaters. This has not been installed. Instead there are parasols. 
 
3.2 Determining Issues 
 
Section 25 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 states - Where, in 
making any determination under the planning Acts, regard is to be had to the 
development plan, the determination shall be made in accordance with the plan unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
Section 59 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997 states that in considering whether to grant planning permission for development 
which affects a listed building or its setting, a planning authority shall have special 
regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of 
special architectural or historic interest which it possesses. 
 

Page 170



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 5 of 15 21/05431/FUL 

Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997 states - special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or 
enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area.  
 
Do the proposals comply with the development plan? 
 
If the proposals do comply with the development plan, are there any compelling 
reasons for not approving them? 
 
If the proposals do not comply with the development plan, are there any compelling 
reasons for approving them? 
 
3.3 Assessment  
To address these determining issues, the Committee needs to consider whether: 
 

a) the proposal will have an acceptable impact on built heritage; 
b) the proposal is acceptable in principle; 
c) the proposal will have any adverse impact on residential amenity; 
d) the proposal will have an adverse impact on road safety; 
e) other material considerations and 
f) public comments have been addressed. 

 
a) Built Heritage 
 
Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997 (the LBCA Act) states that special attention shall be paid to the desirability of 
preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area. If there 
is harm to a Conservation Area as a result of development, there is a strong 
presumption against granting planning permission. This presumption can only be 
overcome if there are advantages to the scheme a its location which outweigh the harm 
and justify granting planning permission. If such advantages are found, is necessary to 
consider then whether these can only be delivered at the development's particular 
location.  
 
The Old Town Conservation Area Character Appraisal states that:  
 
The provision of consistent and high quality natural materials, street furniture and 
lighting in the public realm is a critical factor in uniting and complementing the built 
heritage. Natural stone paving slabs and stone setts have historically been used for 
street surfaces for many centuries. The historic paving displays a tradition of high-
quality workmanship, attention to detail and the use of robust and durable materials. 
 
Victoria Street, formed in the mid-19th century,  is a steep sloping street that connects 
the Grassmarket with George IV Bridge and onto the High Street. It is characterised by 
speciality shops, many of which have vividly painted frontages. Its contours and curves 
contribute significantly to the intimate character and warmth. 
 
The proposal is for a deck, with a louvre pergola to provide a covering. It has a 
utilitarian character that does not demonstrate a high standard of design, nor does it 
utilise materials appropriate to the historic environment.  

Page 171



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 6 of 15 21/05431/FUL 

Seen within the this uniquely designed street, the proposed structure detracts from the 
visual quality of the street as a whole. It therefore harms the character and appearance 
of the Conservation Area. The presumption against granting planning permission is 
therefore engaged. 
 
The primary advantage to this installation is that it provides additional space for the 
business to enable social distancing (as a result of the coronavirus pandemic). Its use 
will help support the business and bring some economic benefit.  However, only limited 
weight can be attached to these benefits as this application is for a permanent 
installation. The benefits do not outweigh the harm identified above.  
 
The proposal therefore does not comply with Section 64 of the LBCA Act.   
 
As a result of this, the proposal does not comply with Edinburgh Local Development 
Plan (LDP) Policy Env 6 Conservation Areas - Development or LDP Policy Des 4 
Development Design - Impact on Setting. 
 
Section 59 of the LBCA Act states that in considering whether to grant planning 
permission for development which affects a listed building or its setting, a planning 
authority or the Secretary of State, as the case may be, shall have special regard to the 
desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of special 
architectural or historic interest which it possesses. The impact on the setting of 
surrounding listed buildings needs to be considered.  
 
The setting of these buildings includes the street itself. As a result of the impacts 
described above, there would be harm to the setting of the listed buildings that are in 
close proximity to the structure. For similar reasons as described above, the proposal 
breaches the requirements of section 59 of the LBCA Act. Similarly, the advantages 
described above, do not outweigh the harm. The proposal is therefore not acceptable in 
relation to LDP Policy Env 3 - Listed Buildings Setting.   
 
As well as the conservation area, and listed buildings, the proposal's impact on the Old 
and New Towns of Edinburgh World Heritage Site also needs to be considered.  
 
The proposed development would harm the qualities which justified the inscription of 
the World Heritage Site and would have a detrimental impact on the site's setting. The 
use of low quality materials, not in keeping with the area, and poor design would 
negatively impact the outstanding universal value of the World Heritage Site. The 
proposal would essentially restrict public space and in doing so upset the balance and 
uniqueness of the historic streets. 
 
In summary, the proposal is not acceptable in relation to Sections 59 and 64 of the 
LBCA Act as a result of the harm to the setting of listed buildings and to the character 
and appearance of the conservation area. As a result, it does not comply with LDP 
Policies, Env 3, Env 6 and Des 4. It would harm the World Heritage Site contrary to 
LDP Policy Env 1. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 172



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 7 of 15 21/05431/FUL 

b) Principle 
 
The site is located within the city centre where LDP Policy Del 2 applies. The proposal 
would be detrimental to the character and attractiveness of the city centre by virtue of 
the structure's poor quality design and use of unsympathetic materials. Furthermore, 
the siting of the structure on a public road would impact on the vitality and accessibility 
of the city centre by cluttering up the street and creating difficulties for access. 
 
As a result of its impact on the character and attractiveness of the street, the proposal 
fails to comply with LDP Policy Del 2 City Centre. 
 
c) Residential Amenity 
 
The proposal is likely to result in an adverse impact on local residential amenity. 
Although it is a busy area with a vibrant night-time economy, the permanent addition of 
a decked outdoor seating area would alter the character of the area though creating a 
formalised arrangement that is conducive to the congregation of groups.   
 
Environmental Protection has objected to the proposal and consider that it could lead to 
a noise nuisance that would be detrimental to the living standards of local residents. 
Discussion between Environmental Protection and Planning explored the potential for a 
condition to control the use. It is not however appropriate to restrict the hours of 
operation of one part of a premises with the remainder having different hours of 
operation. Therefore, a condition is not appropriate.  
 
The proposal is likely to be detrimental to residential amenity and fails to comply with 
LDP Policies Des 5 Development Design - Amenity and Hou 7 Inappropriate Uses in 
Residential Areas. 
 
d) Road Safety 
 
Following consultation, Transportation has recommended refusal as the proposal would 
be detrimental to road safety. The permanent occupancy of a section of adopted road 
would not be supported. Furthermore, the structure would result in the loss of parking 
and loading bays to the detriment of disabled drivers and passengers as well as 
residents, visitors and business operations. The presence of a structure on the road 
would have an adverse impact on various road operations (road maintenance, gully 
cleaning, gritting, street cleansing, events etc) and obligations (utilities access etc).  
 
The proposal would be detrimental to road safety.  
 
e) Other Material Considerations 
 
Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) presumption in favour of sustainable development is a 
significant material consideration due to the development plan being over five years 
old. The planning system should support economically, environmentally and socially 
sustainable places by enabling development that balances the costs and benefits of a 
proposal over the longer term. The aim is to achieve the right development in the right 
place; it is not to allow development at any cost. SPP sets out thirteen principles of 
sustainable development. The proposal is assessed against the relevant principles 
below. 

Page 173



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 8 of 15 21/05431/FUL 

− giving due weight to net economic benefit 
Although it is acknowledged that there may be economic benefit to the outdoor seating 
area, this is outweighed by the issues set out above relating to the historic 
environment, residential amenity and road safety.  
 

− supporting good design and the six qualities of successful places 
As set out above the structure is of a poor-quality design and out of keeping with the 
character of the area. The proposal does not comply with the six qualities of successful 
places as it would impact on the ability to move around, would not be welcoming and 
due to the potential for nuisance would not be safe and welcoming. 
 

− improving health and well-being by offering opportunities for social interaction 
and physical activity, including sport and recreation 

The proposals could offer opportunities for social interaction, particularly where 
Coronavirus is concerned (this is discussed further below), however this does not 
outweigh the impact on the historic environment, residential amenity and road safety. 
 

− protecting, enhancing and promoting access to cultural heritage, including the 
historic environment 

The proposal would have a negative impact on the outstanding universal value of the 
Edinburgh World Heritage Site as well as on the character and appearance of the Old 
Town Conservation Area. 
 

− avoiding over-development, protecting the amenity of new and existing 
development and considering the implications of development for water, air and 
soil quality 

The proposal is likely to result in an adverse impact on the amenity of local residents. 
 
The proposal does not comply with the relevant principles of sustainable development 
as set out in Scottish Planning Policy. 
 
Coronavirus Pandemic 
 
Although there is an understanding that a flexible approach is required given the fast-
changing nature of the global pandemic and that it continues to impact on hospitality 
businesses, the application seeks permission for the permanent siting of the structure. 
It should be noted that the recent letter from the Scottish Government Chief Planner 
has stated that a relaxed approach to planning enforcement should remain in place 
until September 2022. A report will be brought to Planning Committee on 23 February 
2022 which will set out a proposed approach to planning enforcement for temporary 
structures for hospitality.  This will enable Planning Committee to decide on the extent 
of relaxation to planning enforcement for the months ahead.  
 
Given the current restrictions on social distancing etc remain in place, if the application 
is refused, the Chief Planning Officer would not instigate any planning enforcement 
action until further consideration has been given to enforcement by Planning 
Committee on 23 February 2022.   
 
 
 

Page 174



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 9 of 15 21/05431/FUL 

Consideration has been given to whether a temporary permission could be granted by 
means of a planning condition to restrict the duration of the operation. However, as the 
length of coronavirus restrictions is unknown, the approach to enforcement to 23 
February with subsequent Planning Committee oversight provides a better, more 
flexible framework for continued use of this installation.  
 
f) Public Comments 
 
Twenty letters of representation have been received. All representations object to the 
proposal. 
 
Material Considerations 

− Amenity: this has been addressed in section 3.3(c); 

− Design: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a) and (b); 

− Privatisation of public space: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a); 

− Impact on Conservation Area: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a); 

− Impact on World Heritage Site: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a); 

− Impact on Listed Buildings: this has been addressed in section 3.3(a); 

− Road safety: this has been addressed in section 3.3(d). 
 
Conclusion 
 
As a result of its location, form and design, the proposal does not comply with Sections 
59 and 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997.  
 
The proposal is not acceptable in principle and would be harmful to the Edinburgh 
World Heritage Site and the Old Town Conservation Area. The proposal is likely to lead 
to an unacceptable impact on residential amenity and is not acceptable in terms of its 
impact on road safety. It fails to comply with the Local Development Plan, associated 
guidance and the principles of sustainability as set out by Scottish Planning Policy. 
There are no material considerations that outweigh this conclusion and refusal is 
recommended. 
 
Notwithstanding the reason for decision as set out above, no planning enforcement 
action will be taken until a decision of Planning Committee on 23 February 2022 on a 
proposed approach to planning enforcement for temporary structures for hospitality. 
 
 
 
 
It is recommended that this application be Refused for the reasons below. 
 
3.4 Conditions/reasons/informatives 
 
Reasons: - 
 
1. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Env 1 World Heritage Sites as 

the proposed development would harm the qualities which justified the 
inscription of the Old and New Towns of Edinburgh as a World Heritage Site and 
would have a detrimental impact on the site's setting. 

Page 175



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 10 of 15 21/05431/FUL 

 
2. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Env 6 Conservation Areas - 

Development as the proposal would not preserve or enhance the special 
character or appearance of the Old Town Conservation Area. 

 
3. The proposal fails to comply with the principles of sustainability as set out by 

Scottish Planning Policy. 
 
4. The proposal's adverse impact on setting of listed buildings and the conservation 

area means it does not comply with the requirements of Sections 59 and 64 of 
the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 1997. 

 
5. The proposal will have a negative impact on road safety as it would result in the 

permanent occupancy of a section of adopted road. 
 
6. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Des 5 Development Design - 

Amenity as it is likely to adversely impact on the amenity of neighbouring 
properties. 

 
7. The proposal does not comply with LDP policy Hou 7 Inappropriate Uses in 

Residential Areas as it is likely to have a materially detrimental effect on the 
living conditions of nearby residents. 

 
 
 

Financial impact  

4.1 The financial impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
In general, in respect of on carriageway installations, any loss of parking income may 
be mitigated by income from tables and chair licences. 

Risk, Policy, compliance and governance impact 

5.1 Provided planning applications are determined in accordance with statutory 
legislation, the level of risk is low. 

Equalities impact  

6.1 The equalities impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
The application has been assessed and has no impact in terms of equalities or human 
rights. 

Sustainability impact  

7.1 The sustainability impact has been assessed as follows: 
 
This application is not subject to the sustainability requirements of the Edinburgh 
Design Guidance. 

 

Page 176



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 11 of 15 21/05431/FUL 

Consultation and engagement  

8.1 Pre-Application Process 
 
There is no pre-application process history. 
 
8.2 Publicity summary of representations and Community Council comments 
 
Following statutory neighbour notification and advertisement in the Edinburgh Evening 
News, twenty letters of representation have been received. 

Background reading/external references 

• To view details of the application, go to  

• Planning and Building Standards online services 

• Planning guidelines  

• Conservation Area Character Appraisals  

• Edinburgh Local Development Plan  

• Scottish Planning Policy 

Page 177

https://citydev-portal.edinburgh.gov.uk/idoxpa-web/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/planningguidelines
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/characterappraisals
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/localdevelopmentplan
http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Topics/Built-Environment/planning/Policy


 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 12 of 15 21/05431/FUL 

 

 

 
David Givan 
Chief Planning Officer 
PLACE 
The City of Edinburgh Council 
 
 
Contact: Murray Couston, Planning Officer 

E-mail:murray.couston@edinburgh.gov.uk  

Links - Policies 

 
Relevant Policies: 
 
Relevant policies of the Local Development Plan. 
 
LDP Policy Env 1 (World Heritage Site) protects the quality of the World Heritage Site 
and its setting. 
 
LDP Policy Env 3 (Listed Buildings - Setting) identifies the circumstances in which 
development within the curtilage or affecting the setting of a listed building will be 
permitted. 
 
LDP Policy Env 6 (Conservation Areas - Development) sets out criteria for assessing 
development in a conservation area. 
 

 Statutory Development 

Plan Provision 

 

The site is within the City Centre, Old Town 

Conservation Area and Edinburgh World Heritage Site 

as defined by the adopted Local Development Plan. 

 

 

 Date registered 15 October 2021 

 

 

 

 

Drawing numbers/Scheme 01-04, 

 

 

 

Scheme 1 
 

 

Page 178



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 13 of 15 21/05431/FUL 

LDP Policy Del 2 (City Centre) sets criteria for assessing development in the city 
centre. 
 
LDP Policy Des 4 (Development Design - Impact on Setting) sets criteria for assessing 
the impact of development design against its setting. 
 
LDP Policy Des 5 (Development Design - Amenity) sets criteria for assessing amenity.  
 
LDP Policy Hou 7 (Inappropriate Uses in Residential Areas) establishes a presumption 
against development which would have an unacceptable effect on the living conditions 
of nearby residents. 
 
Relevant Non-Statutory Guidelines 
 
Non-statutory guidelines  'LISTED BUILDINGS AND CONSERVATION AREAS' 
provides guidance on repairing, altering or extending listed buildings and unlisted 
buildings in conservation areas. 
 
Other Relevant policy guidance 
 
The Old Town Conservation Area Character Appraisal emphasises the survival of 
the original medieval street pattern; the wealth of important landmark buildings; the 
survival of an outstanding collection of archaeological remains, medieval buildings, and 
17th-century town houses; the consistent and harmonious height and mass of 
buildings; the importance of stone as a construction material for both buildings and the 
public realm; the vitality and variety of different uses; and the continuing presence of a 
residential community 
 

Page 179



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 14 of 15 21/05431/FUL 

Appendix 1 
 
Application for Planning Permission 21/05431/FUL 
at 36 - 38 Victoria Street, Edinburgh, EH1 2JW. 
Erection of decking area on roadway in front of applicant 
premises for use as an external dining area (subject to 
Roads Department Permits and Licensing). 
 
Consultations 

 
 
Environmental Protection 
 
The application is to install a decking area on the roadway in front of the application 
premises, Maison Blue at 36-38 Victoria Street, Edinburgh; to use as an external dining 
area. 
 
The application is being made in retrospect, as during the Coronavirus Pandemic, to 
assist food businesses to operate and recover from the lockdown and restrictions, 
temporary structures were permitted.  The applicant now seeks to make the structure 
permanent. 
 
Environmental Protection have concerns that the use of external dining areas; 
especially late at night, may generate noise and complaints will be received.  It is noted 
that so far, this decked area has operated without complaint. 
 
Discussions have taken place with Planning who advised that it is not possible to place 
time restrictions on only part of the premises, namely the use of the decked external 
dining area.  Therefore, it is not possible to recommend a time restriction as a planning 
condition, which would alleviate some of the concerns. 
 
Although no complaints have been received to date, consent would allow an external 
dining area permanently with no controls in place to protect the amenity of residents. 
There have also been media reports of these dining areas being abused after business 
trading hours, late at night by groups of people, creating noise and disturbance. 
 
There are no other avenues open to ensuring that the decked area does not get used 
during the more sensitive night-time hours. Therefore, on balance Environmental 
Protection is unable to support the application and recommends it is refused. 
 
Transportation 
 
The application should be refused. 
 
Reasons: 
1. The proposals seek to occupy a section of the carriageway that forms part of the 
adopted road; 

Page 180



 

Development Management Sub-Committee – 19 January 2022    Page 15 of 15 21/05431/FUL 

2. The placement of a structure on a road or footway is considered detrimental to road 
safety; 
3. The structure results in the loss of parking and/or loading bays to the detriment of 
disabled drivers/passengers, residents, visitors and business operations and will likely 
lead to indiscriminate parking nearby; 
4. The presence of a structure on a road or footway has an adverse impact on various 
road operations (road maintenance, gully cleaning, gritting, street cleansing, events 
etc) and obligations (utilities access etc); 
5. The operation of the facility may result in restrictions on the adjacent footway which 
is contrary to the Councils Equal Pavements Pledge. 
 
Notes - 
1. The Council as Roads Authority has confirmed that written approval, as required 
under Section 59 of the Roads (Scotland) Act 1984, will not be given for these 
structures. 
 
 
 
 

Location Plan 

 
 

© Crown Copyright and database right 2014. All rights reserved. Ordnance Survey License number 100023420 

END 

Page 181



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4.1 19 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh - Permission is sought for outdoor seating area comprising of timber platform and fence with parasols - application no. 21/05388/FUL - Report by the Chief Planning Officer
	4.2 34 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh - Planning permission is sought for outdoor seating area comprising of timber platform and fence with clear polycarbonate roof for shelter - application no. 21/06159/FUL - Report by the Chief Planning Officer
	4.3 45 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh - Planning permission is sought for outdoor seating area comprising of timber platform and fence with clear polycarbonate roof for shelter - application no. 21/06160/FUL - Report by the Chief Planning Officer
	4.4 61 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh - Planning permission is sought for outdoor seating area comprising of timber platform and fence with parasols - application no. 21/05625/FUL - Report by the Chief Planning Officer
	4.5 63 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh - Planning permission is sought for outdoor seating area comprising of timber platform and fence with parasols - application no. 21/05216/FUL - Report by the Chief Planning Officer
	4.6 73 Cockburn Street, Edinburgh - Planning permission is sought for outdoor seating area comprising of timber platform and fencing with timber rain screen covers over - application no.21/05905/FUL - Report by the Chief Planning Officer
	4.7 119 High Street, Edinburgh - Outdoor seating area - application no. 21/06213/FUL - Report by the Chief Planning Officer
	4.8 148 High Street, Edinburgh - Planning permission is sought for outdoor seating area comprising of timber platform and fence with parasols - application no. 21/05674/FUL - Report by the Chief Planning Officer
	4.9 231 High Street, Edinburgh - Planning permission is sought for outdoor seating area comprising of timber platform and fence with parasols - application no. 21/05691/FUL - Report by the Chief Planning Officer
	4.10 8 - 10 North Bridge Arcade, Edinburgh - To erect outdoor seating area - application no. 21/05721/FUL - Report by the Chief Planning Officer
	4.11 36 - 38 Victoria Street, Edinburgh - Erection of decking area on roadway in front of applicant premises for use as an external dining area (subject to Roads Department Permits and Licensing) - application no. 21/05431/FUL - Report by the Chief Planning Officer

